
ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD 
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT 

SECTION I.  IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION 

This Section must be completed for all projects. 

Facility/Project Identification 
Facility Name: Advocate Cardiovascular ASTC and Outpatient Center Naperville 
Street Address: 1836 Freedom Drive 
City and Zip Code: Naperville, IL 60563 
County: DuPage    Health Service Area: HSA-7       Health Planning Area: A-05 

Applicant(s) [Provide for each applicant (refer to Part 1130.220)] 
Exact Legal Name: Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation 
Street Address: 2025 Windsor Drive 
City and Zip Code: Oak Brook, IL 60523 
Name of Registered Agent: CT Corporation System 
Registered Agent Street Address: 208 S. LaSalle Street Suite 814 
Registered Agent City and Zip Code: Chicago, IL 60604-1101 
Name of President: William Santulli 
President Street Address: 2025 Windsor Drive 
President and Zip Code: Oak Brook, IL 60523 
President Telephone Number: (630) 572-9393 

Type of Ownership of Applicants 

Non-profit Corporation  Partnership 
For-profit Corporation  Governmental 
Limited Liability Company Sole Proprietorship Other 

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an Illinois certificate of good standing.
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which they are organized and the name and

address of each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 1 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE 
APPLICATION FORM. 

Primary Contact [Person to receive ALL correspondence or inquiries] 
Name: Emily Jakacki 
Title: Vice President of Operations, Ambulatory and Service Lines, Central Chicagoland Region 
Company Name: Advocate Aurora Health, Inc 
Address: 1775 Dempster Street 
Telephone Number: (847) 723-2070 
E-mail Address: emily.jakacki@aah.org
Fax Number: (847) 723-2285 

Additional Contact [Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit] 
Name: Myndee Balkan 
Title: Health Facility Planning, Director 
Company Name: Advocate Aurora Health, Inc 
Address: 
Telephone Number: (847) 721-0376 
E-mail Address: myndee.balkan@aah.org
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Additional Contact [Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit] 

Name: Virginia Friesen 
Title: Vice President, Cardiovascular Service Line 
Company Name: Advocate Health – Midwest 
Address: 750 W Virginia Street, Milwaukee, WI 
Telephone Number: 847.334.8508  
E-mail Address: virginia.friesen@aah.org 

 
Additional Contact [Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit] 
 

Name: Kathleen Magurany 
Title: Executive Director, Cardiovascular Service Line, Central Chicagoland Region 
Company Name: Advocate Aurora Health, Inc 
Address: 1775 Dempster Street 
Telephone Number: 773-296-7261 
E-mail Address: kathleen.magurany@aah.org 
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD 
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT 

SECTION I.  IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION 
 
This Section must be completed for all projects 
 
Facility/Project Identification  
 

Facility Name: Advocate Cardiovascular ASTC and Outpatient Center Naperville 
Street Address: 1836 Freedom Drive 
City and Zip Code: Naperville, IL 60563 
County: DuPage    Health Service Area: HSA-7       Health Planning Area: A-05 

 
Applicant(s) [Provide for each applicant (refer to Part 1130.220)] 
 

Exact Legal Name: Advocate Aurora Health Inc. 
Street Address: 2025 Windsor Drive 
City and Zip Code: Oak Brook, IL 60523 
Name of Registered Agent: The Corporation Trust Company 
Registered Agent Street Address: Corporation Trust Center 1209 Orange Street 
Registered Agent City and Zip Code: Wilmington, DE 19801 
Name of President: William Santulli  
President Street Address: 2025 Windsor Drive 
President and Zip Code: Oak Brook, IL 60523 
President Telephone Number: (630) 572-9393 

 
Type of Ownership of Applicants 

 
 Non-profit Corporation                Partnership 
 For-profit Corporation    Governmental 
 Limited Liability Company   Sole Proprietorship   Other 

 
o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an Illinois certificate of good standing. 
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which they are organized and the name and 

address of each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner. 
 
 
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 1 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE 
APPLICATION FORM. 

 
Primary Contact [Person to receive ALL correspondence or inquiries] 
 

Name: Emily Jakacki 
Title: Vice President of Operations, Ambulatory and Service Lines, Central Chicagoland Region 
Company Name: Advocate Aurora Health, Inc 
Address: 1775 Dempster Street 
Telephone Number: (847) 723-2070 
E-mail Address: emily.jakacki@aah.org 
Fax Number: (847) 723-2285 

 
Additional Contact [Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit] 

Name: Myndee Balkan 
Title: Health Facility Planning, Director 
Company Name: Advocate Aurora Health, Inc 
Address: 
Telephone Number (847) 721-0376 
E-mail Address: myndee.balkan@aah.org 
Fax Number: 
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Additional Contact [Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit] 
Name: Virginia Friesen 
Title: Vice President, Cardiovascular Service Line 
Company Name: Advocate Health – Midwest 
Address: 750 W Virginia Street, Milwaukee, WI 
Telephone Number: 847.334.8508  
E-mail Address: virginia.friesen@aah.org 

 
Additional Contact [Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit] 
 

Name: Kathleen Magurany 
Title: Executive Director, Cardiovascular Service Line, Central Chicagoland Region 
Company Name: Advocate Aurora Health, Inc 
Address: 1775 Dempster Street 
Telephone Number: 773-296-7261 
E-mail Address: kathleen.magurany@aah.org 
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD 
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT 

SECTION I.  IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION 
 
This Section must be completed for all projects. 
 
Facility/Project Identification 
 

Facility Name: Advocate Cardiovascular ASTC and Outpatient Center Naperville 
Street Address: 1836 Freedom Drive 
City and Zip Code: Naperville, IL 60563 
County: DuPage    Health Service Area: HSA-7       Health Planning Area: A-05 

 
Exact Legal Name: Advocate Health Inc. 
Street Address: 2025 Windsor Drive 
City and Zip Code: Oak Brook, IL 60523 
Name of Registered Agent: CT Corporation System 
Registered Agent Street Address: 208 S. LaSalle Street Suite 814 
Registered Agent City and Zip Code: Chicago, IL 60604-1101 
Name of Co-Chief Executive Officer: James H. Skogsbergh 
President Street Address: 2025 Windsor Drive 
President and Zip Code: Oak Brook, IL 60523 
President Telephone Number: (630) 572-9393 

 
Type of Ownership of Applicants 

 
 Non-profit Corporation                Partnership 
 For-profit Corporation    Governmental 
 Limited Liability Company   Sole Proprietorship   Other 

 
o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an Illinois certificate of good standing. 
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which they are organized and the name and 

address of each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner. 
 
 
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 1 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE 
APPLICATION FORM. 

 
Primary Contact [Person to receive ALL correspondence or inquiries] 
 

Name: Emily Jakacki 
Title: Vice President of Operations, Ambulatory and Service Lines, Central Chicagoland Region 
Company Name: Advocate Aurora Health, Inc 
Address: 1775 Dempster Street 
Telephone Number: (847) 723-2070 
E-mail Address: emily.jakacki@aah.org 
Fax Number: (847) 723-2285 

 
Additional Contact [Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit] 

Name: Myndee Balkan 
Title: Health Facility Planning, Director 
Company Name: Advocate Aurora Health, Inc 
Address: 
Telephone Number (847) 721-0376 
E-mail Address: myndee.balkan@aah.org 
Fax Number: 
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Additional Contact [Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit] 

Name: Virginia Friesen 
Title: Vice President, Cardiovascular Service Line 
Company Name: Advocate Health – Midwest 
Address: 750 W Virginia Street, Milwaukee, WI 
Telephone Number: 847.334.8508  
E-mail Address: virginia.friesen@aah.org 

 
 
Additional Contact [Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit] 
 

Name: Kathleen Magurany 
Title: Executive Director, Cardiovascular Service Line, Central Chicagoland Region 
Company Name: Advocate Aurora Health, Inc 
Address: 1775 Dempster Street 
Telephone Number: 773-296-7261 
E-mail Address: kathleen.magurany@aah.org 
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Post Permit Contact 
[Person to receive all correspondence after permit issuance-THIS PERSON MUST BE EMPLOYED BY THE 
LICENSED HEALTH CARE FACILITY AS DEFINED AT 20 ILCS 3960] 

Name: Peter Messina  
Title: Vice President, Planning, Design & Construction 
Company Name: Advocate Aurora Health, Inc 
Address: 2025 Windsor Drive, Oak Brook, IL 60523 
Telephone Number: (630) 929-5580 
E-mail Address: peter.messina@aah.org 
Fax Number:  

 
Site Ownership 
[Provide this information for each applicable site] 

Exact Legal Name of Site Owner: CHP-HSG Naperville, LLC 
 
Address of Site Owner: CHP-HSG Naperville, LLC c/o Capital Healthcare Properties LLC 
225 West Hubbard Street, Suite 401, Chicago, IL 60654 
Street Address or Legal Description of the Site: 1836 Freedom Drive Naperville, IL 60563 
 
Proof of ownership or control of the site is to be provided as Attachment 2.  Examples of proof of ownership are 
property tax statements, tax assessor’s documentation, deed, notarized statement of the corporation attesting to 
ownership, an option to lease, a letter of intent to lease, or a lease. 
 
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 2, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE 
APPLICATION FORM. 

 
Operating Identity/Licensee 
[Provide this information for each applicable facility and insert after this page.] 
 

Exact Legal Name: Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation  
Address: 2025 Windsor Drive, Oak Brook, IL 60523 
 

 Non-profit Corporation        Partnership 
 For-profit Corporation    Governmental 
 Limited Liability Company   Sole Proprietorship   Other 

 
o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an Illinois Certificate of Good Standing. 
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of 

each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner. 
o Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be identified with the % of      

ownership. 
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 3, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE 
APPLICATION FORM. 

 
Organizational Relationships 

Provide (for each applicant) an organizational chart containing the name and relationship of any person or 
entity who is related (as defined in Part 1130.140).  If the related person or entity is participating in the 
development or funding of the project, describe the interest and the amount and type of any financial 
contribution. 
 
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 4, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE 
APPLICATION FORM. 
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Flood Plain Requirements 
[Refer to application instructions.] 
 

Provide documentation that the project complies with the requirements of Illinois Executive Order #2006-5 
pertaining to construction activities in special flood hazard areas. As part of the flood plain requirements, please 
provide a map of the proposed project location showing any identified floodplain areas.  Floodplain maps can 
be printed at www.FEMA.gov or www.illinoisfloodmaps.org.  This map must be in a readable format. In 
addition, please provide a statement attesting that the project complies with the requirements of Illinois Executive 
Order #2006-5 (http://www.hfsrb.illinois.gov).  NOTE: A SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA AND 
500-YEAR FLOODPLAIN DETERMINATION FORM has been added at the conclusion of this 
Application for Permit that must be completed to deem a project complete.  
 
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 5, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE 
APPLICATION FORM. 

 
Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements 
 
[Refer to application instructions.] 

Provide documentation regarding compliance with the requirements of the Historic Resources Preservation 
Act. 
 
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 6, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE 
APPLICATION FORM.   

 
 
DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT 
 
1. Project Classification 
[Check those applicable - refer to Part 1110.20 and Part 1120.20(b)] 
 
 

 
Part 1110 Classification : 
 

        Substantive 
  
 

        Non-substantive 
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2. Narrative Description 
 

In the space below, provide a brief narrative description of the project.  Explain WHAT is to be done in State 
Board defined terms, NOT WHY it is being done.  If the project site does NOT have a street address, include 
a legal description of the site.  Include the rationale regarding the project's classification as substantive or non-
substantive. 

 
 
Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation (“AHHC”) doing business as Advocate Medical Group 
(AMG), Advocate Aurora Health, Inc. and Advocate Health, Inc. (together, the “applicants”) propose to 
construct a cardiovascular focused ambulatory surgical treatment center (ASTC) and outpatient 
medical office building at 1836 Freedom Drive, Naperville.  The land and building will be leased by 
AHHC.   
AHHC will be the Prime Lessee for 100% of the building from a third-party landlord.  
 
The proposed project will include a newly constructed, two-story building, to include: 

• An ambulatory surgery treatment center providing cardiac catheterization services with one 
procedure room and the prep/post recovery and affiliated services to support. 

• Primary care and Cardiovascular specialty care clinician offices for Advocate Medical Group 
physicians. 

• Non-hospital-based outpatient services including cardiac diagnostic services, lab, and imaging. 
 
The total cost of the project is $52,208,999 with an anticipated completion date of May 1, 2026.  
 
The project is classified as substantiative as it proposes to establish a new Ambulatory Surgical 
Treatment Center and includes the establishment of a new category of service as defined in 20 IL CS 
3690/3.   
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Project Costs and Sources of Funds 
 
Complete the following table listing all costs (refer to Part 1120.110) associated with the project.  When a project 
or any component of a project is to be accomplished by lease, donation, gift, or other means, the fair market or 
dollar value (refer to Part 1130.140) of the component must be included in the estimated project cost.  If the project 
contains non-reviewable components that are not related to the provision of health care, complete the second 
column of the table below. Note, the use and sources of funds must be equal.   
 

Project Costs and Sources of Funds 
USE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL 

Preplanning Costs    
Site Survey and Soil Investigation    
Site Preparation    
Off Site Work    
New Construction Contracts    
Modernization Contracts    
Contingencies    
Architectural/Engineering Fees    
Consulting and Other Fees    
Movable or Other Equipment (not in construction 
contracts)    

Bond Issuance Expense (project related)    
Net Interest Expense During Construction (project 
related)    

Fair Market Value of Leased Space or Equipment    
Other Costs to Be Capitalized    
Acquisition of Building or Other Property (excluding 
land)    

TOTAL USES OF FUNDS    
SOURCE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL 

Cash and Securities    
Pledges    
Gifts and Bequests    
Bond Issues (project related)    
Mortgages    
Leases (fair market value)    
Governmental Appropriations    
Grants    
Other Funds and Sources    

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS    

NOTE: ITEMIZATION OF EACH LINE ITEM MUST BE PROVIDED AT ATTACHMENT 7, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER 
THE LAST PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. 
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Related Project Costs 
 
Provide the following information, as applicable, with respect to any land related to the project that will be or has 
been acquired during the last two calendar years: 
 
                  Land acquisition is related to project             Yes          No 
                    Purchase Price:      $_________________ 
                    Fair Market Value:  $_________________ 
 
The project involves the establishment of a new facility or a new category of service 
                                                 Yes          No 
 
If yes, provide the dollar amount of all non-capitalized operating start-up costs (including operating deficits) 
through the first full fiscal year when the project achieves or exceeds the target utilization specified in Part 1100.  
 
Estimated start-up costs and operating deficit cost is _______________. 
 

 
Project Status and Completion Schedules 
 

For facilities in which prior permits have been issued please provide the permit numbers. 
Indicate the stage of the project’s architectural drawings: 
 
                                    None or not applicable                         Preliminary 
 
                                    Schematics                                          Final Working 
Anticipated project completion date (refer to Part 1130.140): May 1, 2026 
 
Indicate the following with respect to project expenditures or to financial commitments (refer to Part 1130.140): 
 

  Purchase orders, leases or contracts pertaining to the project have been executed. 
  Financial commitment is contingent upon permit issuance.  Provide a copy of the contingent 

“certification of financial commitment” document, highlighting any language related to CON 
Contingencies  

  Financial Commitment will occur after permit issuance. 
 
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 8, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE 
APPLICATION FORM.   
 

 
State Agency Submittals [Section 1130.620(c)] 
 

Are the following submittals up to date as applicable? 
 Cancer Registry 
 APORS 
 All formal document requests such as IDPH Questionnaires and Annual Bed Reports been submitted 
 All reports regarding outstanding permits  

Failure to be up to date with these requirements will result in the application for permit being 
deemed incomplete. 
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Cost Space Requirements 
 
Provide in the following format, the Departmental Gross Square Feet (DGSF) or the Building Gross Square 
Feet (BGSF) and cost.  The type of gross square footage either DGSF or BGSF must be identified.  The sum 
of the department costs MUST equal the total estimated project costs.  Indicate if any space is being reallocated 
for a different purpose.  Include outside wall measurements plus the departments or area’s portion of the 
surrounding circulation space.  Explain the use of any vacated space. 
 
Not Reviewable Space [i.e., non-clinical]: means an area for the benefit of the patients, visitors, staff, or employees of a health care 
facility and not directly related to the diagnosis, treatment, or rehabilitation of persons receiving services from the health care facility.  "Non-
clinical service areas" include, but are not limited to, chapels; gift shops; newsstands; computer systems; tunnels, walkways, and elevators; 
telephone systems; projects to comply with life safety codes; educational facilities; student housing; patient, employee, staff, and visitor 
dining areas; administration and volunteer offices; modernization of structural components (such as roof replacement and masonry work); 
boiler repair or replacement; vehicle maintenance and storage facilities; parking facilities; mechanical systems for heating, ventilation, and 
air conditioning; loading docks; and repair or replacement of carpeting, tile, wall coverings, window coverings or treatments, or 
furniture.  Solely for the purpose of this definition, "non-clinical service area" does not include health and fitness centers.  [20 ILCS 3960/3] 
 
  Gross Square Feet Amount of Proposed Total Gross Square Feet 

That Is: 
Dept. / Area Cost Existing Proposed New Const. Modernized As Is Vacated 

Space 
REVIEWABLE        
Medical Surgical        
Intensive Care        
Diagnostic 
Radiology        

MRI        
Total Clinical        
        
NON-
REVIEWABLE        
Administrative        
Parking        
Gift Shop        
        
Total Non-clinical        
TOTAL        
 
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 9, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE 
APPLICATION FORM. 
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Facility Bed Capacity and Utilization 
 
Complete the following chart, as applicable.  Complete a separate chart for each facility that is a part of the project 
and insert the chart after this page.  Provide the existing bed capacity and utilization data for the latest Calendar 
Year for which data is available.  Include observation days in the patient day totals for each bed service.  
Any bed capacity discrepancy from the Inventory will result in the application being deemed incomplete. 
 

 
FACILITY NAME:  

 
CITY:  

 
REPORTING PERIOD DATES:                   From:  
 
Category of Service 

Authorized 
Beds Admissions Patient 

Days 
Bed 
Changes 

Proposed 
Beds 

Medical/Surgical      

Obstetrics      

Pediatrics      

Intensive Care      

Comprehensive Physical 
Rehabilitation      

Acute/Chronic Mental Illness      

Neonatal Intensive Care      

General Long-Term Care      

Specialized Long-Term Care      

Long Term Acute Care      

Other ((identify)      

TOTALS:      

 
 
Not Applicable. 
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SECTION III.  BACKGROUND, PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT, AND ALTERNATIVES - 
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS 
 
This Section is applicable to all projects except those that are solely for discontinuation with no project costs.  
 
1110.110(a) – Background of the Applicant 
READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following required information: 

 
BACKGROUND OF APPLICANT 
 

1. A listing of all health care facilities owned or operated by the applicant, including licensing, and certification if 
applicable. 
 

2. A listing of all health care facilities currently owned and/or operated in Illinois, by any corporate officers or 
directors, LLC members, partners, or owners of at least 5% of the proposed health care facility. 

 
3. For the following questions, please provide information for each applicant, including corporate officers or 

directors, LLC members, partners, and owners of at least 5% of the proposed facility.  A health care facility is 
considered owned or operated by every person or entity that owns, directly or indirectly, an ownership interest. 
 

a. A certified listing of any adverse action taken against any facility owned and/or operated by the 
applicant, directly or indirectly, during the three years prior to the filing of the application.     

 
b. A certified listing of each applicant, identifying those individuals that have been cited, arrested, taken 

into custody, charged with, indicted, convicted, or tried for, or pled guilty to the commission of any 
felony or misdemeanor or violation of the law, except for minor parking violations; or the subject of 
any juvenile delinquency or youthful offender proceeding.  Unless expunged, provide details about 
the conviction, and submit any police or court records regarding any matters disclosed. 

 
c. A certified and detailed listing of each applicant or person charged with fraudulent conduct or any act 

involving moral turpitude.   
 

d. A certified listing of each applicant with one or more unsatisfied judgements against him or her. 
 

e. A certified and detailed listing of each applicant who is in default in the performance or discharge of 
any duty or obligation imposed by a judgment, decree, order or directive of any court or governmental 
agency.   

 
4. Authorization permitting HFSRB and DPH access to any documents necessary to verify the information 

submitted, including, but not limited to official records of DPH or other State agencies; the licensing or 
certification records of other states, when applicable; and the records of nationally recognized accreditation 
organizations.  Failure to provide such authorization shall constitute an abandonment or withdrawal of 
the application without any further action by HFSRB. 

 
5. If, during a given calendar year, an applicant submits more than one application for permit, the documentation 

provided with the prior applications may be utilized to fulfill the information requirements of this criterion.  In 
such instances, the applicant shall attest that the information was previously provided, cite the project number 
of the prior application, and certify that no changes have occurred regarding the information that has been 
previously provided.  The applicant can submit amendments to previously submitted information, as needed, 
to update and/or clarify data. 

 
 
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 11, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST 
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. EACH ITEM (1-4) MUST BE IDENTIFIED IN ATTACHMENT 11.   
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Criterion 1110.110(b) & (d) 
 

PURPOSE OF PROJECT 
 

1. Document that the project will provide health services that improve the health care or well-being of the market area 
population to be served.   

 
2. Define the planning area or market area, or other relevant area, per the applicant’s definition. 

 
3. Identify the existing problems or issues that need to be addressed as applicable and appropriate for the project.   

 
4. Cite the sources of the documentation. 

 
5. Detail how the project will address or improve the previously referenced issues, as well as the population’s health 

status and well-being. 
 

6. Provide goals with quantified and measurable objectives, with specific timeframes that relate to achieving the stated 
goals as appropriate. 

 
For projects involving modernization, describe the conditions being upgraded, if any.  For facility projects, include statements 
of the age and condition of the project site, as well as regulatory citations, if any.  For equipment being replaced, include 
repair and maintenance records. 
 
NOTE:  Information regarding the “Purpose of the Project” will be included in the State Board Staff Report. 
 
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 12, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE 
OF THE APPLICATION FORM.  EACH ITEM (1-6) MUST BE IDENTIFIED IN ATTACHMENT 12.   

 
 

ALTERNATIVES 
 

1)        Identify ALL the alternatives to the proposed project:   
 
Alternative options must include:  

 
A) Proposing a project of greater or lesser scope and cost.  

 
B) Pursuing a joint venture or similar arrangement with one or more providers or entities to 

meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes; developing alternative settings 
to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes.  

 
C) Utilizing other health care resources that are available to serve all or a portion of the 

population proposed to be served by the project; and 
 
D)           Provide the reasons why the chosen alternative was selected. 

 
2) Documentation shall consist of a comparison of the project to alternative options.  The comparison 

shall address issues of total costs, patient access, quality, and financial benefits in both the short-term 
(within one to three years after project completion) and long-term.  This may vary by project or situation. 
FOR EVERY ALTERNATIVE IDENTIFIED, THE TOTAL PROJECT COST AND THE REASONS 
WHY THE ALTERNATIVE WAS REJECTED MUST BE PROVIDED.   

 
3) The applicant shall provide empirical evidence, including quantified outcome data that verifies 

improved quality of care, as available. 
 
 
 
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 13, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE 
OF THE APPLICATION FORM. 
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SECTION IV.  PROJECT SCOPE, UTILIZATION, AND UNFINISHED/SHELL SPACE 
 
Criterion 1110.120 - Project Scope, Utilization, and Unfinished/Shell Space 
 
READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following information: 

SIZE OF PROJECT: 
 

1. Document that the amount of physical space proposed for the proposed project is necessary and not excessive.  
This must be a narrative and it shall include the basis used for determining the space and the methodology 
applied. 

 
2. If the gross square footage exceeds the BGSF/DGSF standards in Appendix B, justify the discrepancy by 

documenting one of the following: 
 

a. Additional space is needed due to the scope of services provided, justified by clinical or operational needs, 
as supported by published data or studies and certified by the facility’s Medical Director. 

 
b. The existing facility’s physical configuration has constraints or impediments and requires an architectural 

design that delineates the constraints or impediments. 
 

c. The project involves the conversion of existing space that results in excess square footage. 
 

d. Additional space is mandated by governmental or certification agency requirements that were not in 
existence when Appendix B standards were adopted. 

 
Provide a narrative for any discrepancies from the State Standard. A table must be provided in the 
following format with Attachment 14. 

 
SIZE OF PROJECT 

DEPARTMENT/SERVICE PROPOSED 
BGSF/DGSF 

STATE STANDARD  DIFFERENCE MET 
STANDARD? 

 
 

    

     
 

 
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 14, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE 
APPLICATION FORM.  
 

 
PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION: 
 
This criterion is applicable only to projects or portions of projects that involve services, functions, or equipment 
for which HFSRB has established utilization standards or occupancy targets in 77 Ill. Adm. Code 1100.  
 
Document that in the second year of operation, the annual utilization of the service or equipment shall meet or exceed the 
utilization standards specified in 1110.Appendix B.  A narrative of the rationale that supports the projections must be 
provided.  
 
A table must be provided in the following format with Attachment 15. 
 

UTILIZATION 
 DEPT./ 

SERVICE 
HISTORICAL 
UTILIZATION 

(PATIENT DAYS) 
(TREATMENTS) 

ETC. 

PROJECTED 
UTILIZATION 

STATE 
STANDARD 

MEET 
STANDARD? 

YEAR 1      
YEAR 2      
      

 

 
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 15, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE 
APPLICATION FORM. 
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UNFINISHED OR SHELL SPACE: 
 
Provide the following information: 
 

1. Total gross square footage (GSF) of the proposed shell space. 
 

2. The anticipated use of the shell space, specifying the proposed GSF to be allocated to each department, 
area, or function. 

 
3. Evidence that the shell space is being constructed due to: 

a. Requirements of governmental or certification agencies; or 
b. Experienced increases in the historical occupancy or utilization of those areas proposed to 

occupy the shell space. 
 

4. Provide: 
a. Historical utilization for the area for the latest five-year period for which data is available; and 
b. Based upon the average annual percentage increase for that period, projections of future 

utilization of the area through the anticipated date when the shell space will be placed into 
operation. 

 
 
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 16, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE 
APPLICATION FORM. 
 

 
 

ASSURANCES: 
 
Submit the following: 
 

1. Verification that the applicant will submit to HFSRB a CON application to develop and utilize the shell 
space, regardless of the capital thresholds in effect at the time or the categories of service involved. 

 
2. The estimated date by which the subsequent CON application (to develop and utilize the subject shell 

space) will be submitted; and 
 

3. The anticipated date when the shell space will be completed and placed into operation. 
 
 
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 17, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE 
APPLICATION FORM. 
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E. Criterion 1110.225 - Cardiac Catheterization 
 
1. Applicants proposing to establish, expand and/or modernize the Cardiac Catheterization category of 

service must submit the following information. 
 
2. Indicate bed capacity changes by Service:        Indicate # of beds changed by action(s): 
 

 
Category of Service 

# Existing 
Rooms 

# Proposed 
Rooms 

  Cardiac Catheterization 0 1 
 

4. READ the applicable review criteria outlined below and submit the required    
 documentation for the criteria:  

 
 
 
 

1. Criterion 1110.225(a), Peer Review 
 

 Read the criterion and submit a detailed explanation of your peer review program. 
 
 2. Criterion 1110. 225(b), Establishment or Expansion of Cardiac Catheterization Service 
 

 Read the criterion and, if applicable, submit the following information: 
 
   a. A map (on 8 1/2" x 11" paper) showing the location of the other hospitals providing cardiac 

catheterization services within the planning area. 
 
   b. The number of cardiac catheterizations performed for the last 12 months at each of the 

hospitals shown on the map. 
 
   c. Provide the number of patients transferred directly from the applicant’s hospital to another 

facility for cardiac catheterization services in each of the last three years. 
 

3. Criterion 1110.225(c), Unnecessary Duplication of Services 
 

 Read the criterion and, if applicable, submit the following information. 
 
   a. Copies of the letter sent to all facilities within the planning area that currently provide cardiac 

catheterization.  This letter must contain a description of the proposed project and a request 
that the other facility quantify the impact of the proposal on its program. 

 
   b. Copies of the responses received from the facilities to which the letter was sent. 
 
 4.  Criterion 1110.225(d), Modernization of Existing Cardiac Catheterization Laboratories 
 
   Read the criterion and, if applicable, submit the number of cardiac catheterization procedures 

performed for the latest 12 months. 
 
  5.  Criterion 1110.225(e), Support Services 
 
   Read the criterion and indicate on a service-by-service basis which of the listed services are available 

on a 24-hour basis and explain how any services not available on a 24-hour basis will be available 
when needed. 

 
6.  Criterion 1110.225(f), Laboratory Location 
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  Read the criterion and, if applicable, submit line drawings showing the location of the proposed 

laboratories.  If the laboratories are not in proximity, explain why. 
 
 7.  Criterion 1110.225(g), Staffing 
 
   Read the criterion and submit a list of names and qualifications of those who will fill the positions 

detailed in this criterion.  Also, provide staffing schedules to show the coverage required by this 
criterion. 

 
     8.  Criterion 1110.225(h), Continuity of Care 
 

Read the criterion and submit a copy of the fully executed written referral agreement(s). 
 
9. Criterion 1110.225(i), Multi-institutional Variance 

 
Read the criterion and, if applicable, submit the following information: 

 
   a. A copy of a fully executed affiliation agreement between the two facilities involved. 
 
   b. Names and positions of the shared staff at the two facilities. 
 
   c. The volume of open-heart surgeries performed for the latest 12-month period at the 

existing operating program. 
 
   d. A cost comparison between the proposed project and expansion at the existing operating 

program. 
 
   e. The number of cardiac catheterization procedures performed in the last 12 months at the 

operating program. 
 
   f. The number of catheterization laboratories at the operating program. 
 
    g. The projected cardiac catheterization volume at the proposed facility annually for the next 2 

years. 
 
   h. The basis for the above projection. 
 
 
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 23 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE 
APPLICATION FORM. 
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G. Non-Hospital Based Ambulatory Surgery 
 

Applicants proposing to establish, expand and/or modernize the Non-Hospital Based Ambulatory 
Surgery category of service must submit the following information. 
 

 
ASTC Service 

  Cardiovascular/ Cardiac Cath 
  Colon and Rectal Surgery 
  Dermatology 
  General Dentistry 
 General Surgery/ Vascular 
  Gastroenterology 
  Neurological Surgery 
  Nuclear Medicine 
  Obstetrics/Gynecology 
  Ophthalmology 
  Oral/Maxillofacial Surgery 
  Orthopedic Surgery 
  Otolaryngology 
  Pain Management 
  Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation 
  Plastic Surgery 
  Podiatric Surgery 
  Radiology 
  Thoracic Surgery 
  Urology 
  Other____________________________________ 

 
3.         READ the applicable review criteria outlined below and submit the required  
 documentation for the criteria:  

 
APPLICABLE REVIEW CRITERIA Establish New 

ASTC or Service 
Expand Existing 
Service 

1110.235(c)(2)(B) –   Service to GSA Residents X X 
1110.235(c)(3) –   Service Demand – Establishment of an ASTC or  
                             Additional ASTC Service 

X  

1110.235(c)(4) – Service Demand – Expansion of Existing ASTC Service 
 

 X 

1110.235(c)(5) –   Treatment Room Need Assessment X X 
1110.235(c)(6) – Service Accessibility X  
1110.235(c)(7)(A) – Unnecessary Duplication/Maldistribution X  
1110.235(c)(7)(B) – Maldistribution X  
1110.235(c)(7)(C) – Impact to Area Providers X  
1110.235(c)(8) – Staffing X X 

1110.235(c)(9) – Charge Commitment X X 
1110.235(c)(10) – Assurances X X 
 
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 25, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE 
OF THE APPLICATION FORM. 
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M. Criterion 1110.270 - Clinical Service Areas Other than Categories of Service 
 
1. Applicants proposing to establish, expand and/or modernize Clinical Service Areas Other than      
             categories of service must submit the following information: 
 
2.          Indicate changes by Service:                              Indicate # of key room changes by action(s): 
 

 
Service 

# Existing 
Key Rooms 

# Proposed 
Key Rooms 

 
Cardiac Diagnostics 

  

 
Imaging 

  

 
Lab 

  

 
3.  READ the applicable review criteria outlined below and submit the required documentation  
 for the criteria:  
 

Project Type Required Review Criteria 

New Services or Facility or Equipment 
 

(b) − Need Determination − Establishment 

Service Modernization 
 
 
 
 

(c)(1) − Deteriorated Facilities 
 

AND/OR 
 

(c)(2) − Necessary Expansion  
PLUS 

(c)(3)(A) − Utilization − Major Medical Equipment 
 

OR 
 

(c)(3)(B) − Utilization − Service or Facility 
 

1APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 31, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE 
APPLICATION FORM. 
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The following Sections DO NOT need to be addressed by the applicants or co-applicants responsible for funding or 
guaranteeing the funding of the project if the applicant has a bond rating of A- or better from Fitch's or Standard and 
Poor's rating agencies, or A3 or better from Moody's (the rating shall be affirmed within the latest 18-month period 
prior to the submittal of the application): 
 

• Section 1120.120 Availability of Funds − Review Criteria 
• Section 1120.130 Financial Viability − Review Criteria 
• Section 1120.140 Economic Feasibility − Review Criteria, subsection (a) 
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VII.  1120.120 - AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS 
 

The applicant shall document those financial resources shall be available and be equal to or exceed the estimated total project 
cost plus any related project costs by providing evidence of sufficient financial resources from the following sources, as 
applicable [Indicate the dollar amount to be provided from the following sources]: 
 

$26,953,237  
a) Cash and Securities − statements (e.g., audited financial statements, letters from 

financial institutions, board resolutions) as to: 
 

1) the amount of cash and securities available for the project, 
including the identification of any security, its value and 
availability of such funds; and  

 

2) interest to be earned on depreciation account funds or to be 
earned on any asset from the date of applicant's submission 
through project completion. 

 
________ 

b) Pledges − for anticipated pledges, a summary of the anticipated pledges showing 
anticipated receipts and discounted value, estimated timetable of gross receipts 
and related fundraising expenses, and a discussion of past fundraising 
experience. 

 
 
 

c) Gifts and Bequests − verification of the dollar amount, identification of any 
conditions of use, and the estimated timetable of receipts. 

$25,255,761 
 

d) Debt − a statement of the estimated terms and conditions (including the debt 
time, variable or permanent interest rates over the debt time, and the anticipated 
repayment schedule) for any interim and for the permanent financing proposed to 
fund the project, including: 

 

1) For general obligation bonds, proof of passage of the required 
referendum or evidence that the governmental unit has the 
authority to issue the bonds and evidence of the dollar amount of 
the issue, including any discounting anticipated. 

 

2) For revenue bonds, proof of the feasibility of securing the 
specified amount and interest rate. 

 

3) For mortgages, a letter from the prospective lender attesting to 
the expectation of making the loan in the amount and time 
indicated, including the anticipated interest rate and any 
conditions associated with the mortgage, such as, but not limited 
to, adjustable interest rates, balloon payments, etc. 

 

4) For any lease, a copy of the lease, including all the terms and 
conditions, including any purchase options, any capital 
improvements to the property and provision of capital equipment. 

 

5)          For any option to lease, a copy of the option, including all terms 
and conditions. 

 
________ 
 

e) Governmental Appropriations − a copy of the appropriation Act or ordinance 
accompanied by a statement of funding availability from an official of the 
governmental unit.  If funds are to be made available from subsequent fiscal 
years, a copy of a resolution or other action of the governmental unit attesting to 
this intent. 

 
________ 
 

f) Grants − a letter from the granting agency as to the availability of funds in terms 
of the amount and time of receipt. 

 
________ 

g) All Other Funds and Sources − verification of the amount and type of any other 
funds that will be used for the project. 

$52,208,999 TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE 
 

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 34, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE 
APPLICATION FORM.  
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SECTION VIII.  1120.130 - FINANCIAL VIABILITY 
 
All the applicants and co-applicants shall be identified, specifying their roles in the project funding, or guaranteeing the 
funding (sole responsibility or shared) and percentage of participation in that funding. 

 
Financial Viability Waiver 
 
The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios if: 
1. “A” Bond rating or better 
2. All the project’s capital expenditures are completely funded through internal sources 
3. The applicant’s current debt financing or projected debt financing is insured or anticipated to be 

insured by MBIA (Municipal Bond Insurance Association Inc.) or equivalent 
4. The applicant provides a third-party surety bond or performance bond letter of credit from an A rated 

guarantor. 
 
See Section 1120.130 Financial Waiver for information to be provided 
 
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 35, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE 
APPLICATION FORM. 
 

 
The applicant or co-applicant that is responsible for funding or guaranteeing funding of the project shall provide 
viability ratios for the latest three years for which audited financial statements are available and for the first 
full fiscal year at target utilization, but no more than two years following project completion.  When the 
applicant's facility does not have facility specific financial statements and the facility is a member of a health 
care system that has combined or consolidated financial statements, the system's viability ratios shall be 
provided.  If the health care system includes one or more hospitals, the system's viability ratios shall be 
evaluated for conformance with the applicable hospital standards.   

 
 Historical  

3 Years  
Projected 

Enter Historical and/or Projected Years:      

         Current Ratio     

         Net Margin Percentage     

         Percent Debt to Total Capitalization     

         Projected Debt Service Coverage     

         Days Cash on Hand     

         Cushion Ratio     
 
  Provide the methodology and worksheets utilized in determining the ratios detailing the calculation and 

applicable line item amounts from the financial statements.  Complete a separate table for each co-
applicant and provide worksheets for each.   

 
  Variance 
 

Applicants not in compliance with any of the viability ratios shall document that another organization, 
public or private, shall assume the legal responsibility to meet the debt obligations should the applicant 
default. 
 

 
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 36, IN NUMERICAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE APPLICATION 
FORM. 
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SECTION IX. 1120.140 - ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY 
 
This section is applicable to all projects subject to Part 1120. 
 

 
 A. Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements 
 
   The applicant shall document the reasonableness of financing arrangements by submitting a 

notarized statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to one of the following: 
 

1) That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total with 
cash and equivalents, including investment securities, unrestricted funds, 
received pledge receipts and funded depreciation; or 

 

2) That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total or 
in part by borrowing because: 
 

A) A portion or all the cash and equivalents must be retained in the balance 
sheet asset accounts to maintain a current ratio of at least 2.0 times for 
hospitals and 1.5 times for all other facilities; or 

 

B) Borrowing is less costly than the liquidation of existing investments, and 
the existing investments being retained may be converted to cash or 
used to retire debt within a 60-day period. 

 
B. Conditions of Debt Financing 

 
This criterion is applicable only to projects that involve debt financing.  The applicant shall 
document that the conditions of debt financing are reasonable by submitting a notarized 
statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to the following, as applicable: 

 

1) That the selected form of debt financing for the project will be at the lowest net 
cost available. 

 

2) That the selected form of debt financing will not be at the lowest net cost 
available but is more advantageous due to such terms as prepayment privileges, 
no required mortgage, access to additional indebtedness, term (years), financing 
costs and other factors. 

 

3) That the project involves (in total or in part) the leasing of equipment or facilities 
and that the expenses incurred with leasing a facility or equipment are less costly 
than constructing a new facility or purchasing new equipment. 

 

C. Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs 
 
  Read the criterion and provide the following: 
 

1) Identify each department or area impacted by the proposed project and provide a 
cost and square footage allocation for new construction and/or modernization 
using the following format (insert after this page). 

  

COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY DEPARTMENT OR SERVICE 

 
Department 
(List below) 

A B C D E F G H  
Total 
Cost 

(G + H) 
Cost/Square Foot       
New            Mod. 

Gross Sq. Ft. 
New         Circ.* 

Gross Sq. Ft. 
Mod.        Circ.* 

Const. $ 
(A x C) 

Mod. $ 
(B x E) 

          

Contingency          

 TOTALS          
* Include the percentage (%) of space for circulation 

 

 D.  Projected Operating Costs 
 

  The applicant shall provide the projected direct annual operating costs (in current dollars per 
equivalent patient day or unit of service) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no 
more than two years following project completion. Direct cost means the fully allocated costs of 
salaries, benefits, and supplies for the service. 
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E. Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs 
 

The applicant shall provide the total projected annual capital costs (in current dollars per 
equivalent patient day) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than two years 
following project completion. 
 

 
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 37, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE 
APPLICATION FORM. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

#24-008



SECTION X.  SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT 
 

 
SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT that describes all the following must be submitted for ALL SUBSTANTIVE 
PROJECTS AND PROJECTS TO DISCONTINUE HEALTH CARE FACILITIES [20 ILCS 3960/5.4]: 
 
1. The project's material impact, if any, on essential safety net services in the community, including the 

impact on racial and health care disparities in the community, to the extent that it is feasible for an 
applicant to have such knowledge. 

 
2. The project's impact on the ability of another provider or health care system to cross-subsidize safety net 

services, if reasonably known to the applicant. 
 
3. How the discontinuation of a facility or service might impact the remaining safety net providers in each 

community, if reasonably known by the applicant. 
 
Safety Net Impact Statements shall also include all the following: 
 
1. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification describing the amount of charity care provided 

by the applicant. The amount calculated by hospital applicants shall be in accordance with the reporting 
requirements for charity care reporting in the Illinois Community Benefits Act. Non-hospital applicants shall 
report charity care, at cost, in accordance with an appropriate methodology specified by the Board. 

 
2. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification of the amount of care provided to Medicaid 

patients. Hospital and non-hospital applicants shall provide Medicaid information in a manner consistent 
with the information reported each year to the Illinois Department of Public Health regarding "Inpatients 
and Outpatients Served by Payor Source" and "Inpatient and Outpatient Net Revenue by Payor Source" 
as required by the Board under Section 13 of this Act and published in the Annual Hospital Profile. 

 
3. Any information the applicant believes is directly relevant to safety net services, including information 

regarding teaching, research, and any other service. 
 
A table in the following format must be provided as part of Attachment 37. 
 

Safety Net Information per PA 96-0031 

CHARITY CARE 

Charity (# of patients) Year Year Year 
Inpatient    

Outpatient    

Total    
Charity (cost in dollars)    

Inpatient    

Outpatient    
Total    

 
MEDICAID 

Medicaid (# of patients) Year Year Year 
Inpatient    

Outpatient    

Total    

Medicaid (revenue)    

Inpatient    

Outpatient    
Total    
    

 

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 38, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE 
APPLICATION FORM. 
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SECTION X. CHARITY CARE INFORMATION 
 

 
Charity Care information MUST be furnished for ALL projects [1120.20(c)].   
 
1. All applicants and co-applicants shall indicate the amount of charity care for the latest three 

audited fiscal years, the cost of charity care and the ratio of that charity care cost to net patient 
revenue.  

 
2. If the applicant owns or operates one or more facilities, the reporting shall be for each individual 

facility located in Illinois. If charity care costs are reported on a consolidated basis, the applicant 
shall provide documentation as to the cost of charity care; the ratio of that charity care to the net 
patient revenue for the consolidated financial statement; the allocation of charity care costs; and 
the ratio of charity care cost to net patient revenue for the facility under review. 

 
3. If the applicant is not an existing facility, it shall submit the facility's projected patient mix by payer 

source, anticipated charity care expense and projected ratio of charity care to net patient revenue 
by the end of its second year of operation. 

 
Charity care" means care provided by a health care facility for which the provider does not expect 
to receive payment from the patient or a third-party payer (20 ILCS 3960/3).  Charity Care must be 
provided at cost. 
 
A table in the following format must be provided for all facilities as part of Attachment 39.  
 

CHARITY CARE 

 Year Year Year 

Net Patient Revenue    

Amount of Charity Care (charges)    

Cost of Charity Care    

    
 

 
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 39, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE 
APPLICATION FORM. 
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SECTION XI - SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA AND 500-YEAR FLOODPLAIN DETERMINATION FORM 
 
In accordance with Executive Order 2006-5 (EO 5), the Health Facilities & Services Review Board (HFSRB) must 
determine if the site of the CRITICAL FACILITY, as defined in EO 5, is in a mapped floodplain (Special Flood 
Hazard Area) or a 500-year floodplain.  All state agencies are required to ensure that before a permit, grant or a 
development is planned or promoted, the proposed project meets the requirements of the Executive Order, 
including compliance with the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) and state floodplain regulation.  

1. Applicant:     
  (Name) (Address) 
      
 (City) (State) (ZIP Code) (Telephone Number) 
 
2. Project Location:     
  (Address)     (City)  (State) 
      
  (County)  (Township)  (Section) 
3. You can create a small map of your site showing the FEMA floodplain mapping using the FEMA Map 

Service Center website (https://msc.fema.gov/portal/home) by entering the address for the property in 
the Search bar. If a map, like that shown on page 2 is shown, select the Go to NFHL Viewer tab 

above the map. You can print a copy of the floodplain map by selecting the  icon in the top corner 

of the page. Select the pin tool icon  and place a pin on your site. Print a FIRMETTE size image.  

If there is no digital floodplain map available select the View/Print FIRM icon above the aerial photo. 
You will then need to use the Zoom tools provided to locate the property on the map and use the Make 
a FIRMette tool to create a pdf of the floodplain map. 

 
IS THE PROJECT SITE LOCATED IN A SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA:  Yes ___ No ___? 
 
IS THE PROJECT SITE LOCATED IN THE 500-YEAR FLOOD PLAIN? 
If you are unable to determine if the site is in the mapped floodplain or 500-year floodplain, contact the 
county or the local community building or planning department for assistance.   
If the determination is being made by a local official, please complete the following: 

FIRM Panel Number:   Effective Date:     

Name of Official:   Title:     

      
 (City) (State) (ZIP Code) (Telephone Number) 
 
Signature:   Date:   
NOTE: This finding only means that the property in question is or is not in a Special Flood Hazard Area or a 
500-year floodplain as designated on the map noted above. It does not constitute a guarantee that the property 
will or will not be flooded or be subject to local drainage problems. 

If you need additional help, contact the Illinois Statewide Floodplain Program at 217/782-4428 
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After paginating the entire completed application indicate, in the chart below, the page numbers for the included 
attachments: 

 
INDEX OF ATTACHMENTS 

 
     ATTACHMENT 
             NO.                                                                                                                                 PAGES 

1 Applicant Identification including Certificate of Good Standing 36 – 41 
2 Site Ownership 42 
3 Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be 

identified with the % of ownership. 
43 – 49 

4 Organizational Relationships (Organizational Chart) Certificate of 
Good Standing Etc.   

50 – 52 

5 Flood Plain Requirements 53 – 54 
6 Historic Preservation Act Requirements 55 – 57 
7 Project and Sources of Funds Itemization 58 – 88 
8 Financial Commitment Document if required  89 
9 Cost Space Requirements 90 

10 Discontinuation - 
11 Background of the Applicant 91 – 99 
12 Purpose of the Project 100 – 108 
13 Alternatives to the Project 109 – 111 
14 Size of the Project 112 – 114 
15 Project Service Utilization 115 – 118 
16 Unfinished or Shell Space 119 
17 Assurances for Unfinished/Shell Space 120 
18 Master Design and Related Projects - 

 Service Specific:  
19 Medical Surgical Pediatrics, Obstetrics, ICU - 
20 Comprehensive Physical Rehabilitation - 
21 Acute Mental Illness  - 
22 Open Heart Surgery - 
23 Cardiac Catheterization 121 – 153 
24 In-Center Hemodialysis - 
25 Non-Hospital Based Ambulatory Surgery 154 – 194 
26 Selected Organ Transplantation -  
27 Kidney Transplantation - 
28 Subacute Care Hospital Model - 
29 Community-Based Residential Rehabilitation Center - 
30 Long Term Acute Care Hospital  - 
31 Clinical Service Areas Other than Categories of Service 195 - 198 
32 Freestanding Emergency Center - 
33 Birth Center - 

 Financial and Economic Feasibility:  
34 Availability of Funds 199 – 227 
35 Financial Waiver 228 
36 Financial Viability 228 
37 Economic Feasibility  229 – 236 
38 Safety Net Impact Statement 237 – 243 
39 Charity Care Information 244 – 245 
40 Flood Plain Information 246 

 Appendix 248+ 
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Type of Ownership of Applicants 
 

 
 Non-profit Corporation                Partnership 
 For-profit Corporation    Governmental 
 Limited Liability Company   Sole Proprietorship   Other 

 
o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an Illinois certificate of good standing. 
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which they are organized and the name and 

address of each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner. 
 
 
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 1 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE 
APPLICATION FORM. 

 
 
Certificates of Good Standing for the applicants are provided as Attachment #1 
 
Provided for Attachment #1: 

Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation  
IL Certificate of Good Standing 

Advocate Aurora Health, Inc. 
IL Certificate of Good Standing  
DE Certificate of Good Standing 

Advocate Health, Inc. 
IL Certificate of Good Standing  
DE Certificate of Good Standing  
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#24-008
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Site Ownership 
[Provide this information for each applicable site] 
 

Exact Legal Name of Site Owner: Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation d/b/a Advocate Medical Group 
Address of Site Owner: 2025 Windsor Drive, Oak Brook, IL 60523 
Street Address or Legal Description of the Site: 1836 Freedom Drive, Naperville, IL 60563 
 
Proof of ownership or control of the site is to be provided as Attachment 2.  Examples of proof of ownership are 
property tax statements, tax assessor’s documentation, deed, notarized statement of the corporation attesting to 
ownership, an option to lease, a letter of intent to lease, or a lease. 
 
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 2, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE 
APPLICATION FORM. 

 
 
A copy of the lease is provided in the Appendix as Attachment 2, Exhibit 1. 
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Operating Identity/Licensee 
[Provide this information for each applicable facility and insert after this page.] 
 

Exact Legal Name: Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation 
Address: 3075 Highland Parkway, Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515 
 

 Non-profit Corporation        Partnership 
 For-profit Corporation    Governmental 
 Limited Liability Company   Sole Proprietorship   Other 

 
o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an Illinois Certificate of Good Standing. 
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of 

each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner. 
o Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be identified with the % of      

ownership. 
 
 
Certificates of Good Standing for the applicants are provided as Attachment #3 
 
Provided for Attachment #3: 

Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation  
IL Certificate of Good Standing 

Advocate Aurora Health, Inc. 
IL Certificate of Good Standing  
DE Certificate of Good Standing 

Advocate Health, Inc. 
IL Certificate of Good Standing  
DE Certificate of Good Standing 
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Organizational Relationships 
 

Provide (for each applicant) an organizational chart containing the name and relationship of any person or 
entity who is related (as defined in Part 1130.140).  If the related person or entity is participating in the 
development or funding of the project, describe the interest and the amount and type of any financial 
contribution. 
 
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 4, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE 
APPLICATION FORM. 

 
 
See Attachment #4, Exhibit 1. 
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Flood Plain Requirements 
 
[Refer to application instructions.] 

Provide documentation that the project complies with the requirements of Illinois Executive Order #2006-5 
pertaining to construction activities in special flood hazard areas. As part of the flood plain requirements, please 
provide a map of the proposed project location showing any identified floodplain areas.  Floodplain maps can 
be printed at www.FEMA.gov or www.illinoisfloodmaps.org.  This map must be in a readable format. In 
addition, please provide a statement attesting that the project complies with the requirements of Illinois Executive 
Order #2006-5 (http://www.hfsrb.illinois.gov).  NOTE: A SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA AND 
500-YEAR FLOODPLAIN DETERMINATION FORM has been added at the conclusion of this 
Application for Permit that must be completed to deem a project complete.  
 
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 5, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE 
APPLICATION FORM. 

 
 
By their signatures on the certifications, the Applicants certify that the site for the proposed project is located in 
an area of minimal flood hazard, as shown in the interactive map for Panel 17031C0729J from the FEMA Flood 
Map Service Center.  
 
 
See Attachment #5, Exhibit 1 
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Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements 
[Refer to application instructions.] 
 

Provide documentation regarding compliance with the requirements of the Historic Resources Preservation 
Act. 
 
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 6, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE 
APPLICATION FORM.   

 
 
The location of the project is 1835 Freedom Drive, Naperville, IL. The attached letter submitted to the 
Illinois Historic Preservation Agency is provided.  
 
 
See Attachment #6, Exhibit 1. 
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Project Costs and Sources of Funds 
 
Complete the following table listing all costs (refer to Part 1120.110) associated with the project.  When a 
project or any component of a project is to be accomplished by lease, donation, gift, or other means, the fair market 
or dollar value (refer to Part 1130.140) of the component must be included in the estimated project cost.  If the 
project contains non-reviewable components that are not related to the provision of health care, complete the 
second column of the table below. Note, the use and sources of funds must be equal.   
 

Project Costs and Sources of Funds 

USE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL 

Preplanning Costs $248,998 $164,002 $413,000 
Site Survey and Soil Investigation    
Site Preparation    
Off Site Work    
New Construction Contracts $15,718,362 $6,448,276 $22,206,638 
Modernization Contracts    
Contingencies $722,010 $475,548 $1,197,558 
Architectural/Engineering Fees $995,341 $655,576 $1,650,917 
Consulting and Other Fees $671,572 $442,328 $1,113,900 
Movable or Other Equipment (not in construction 
contracts) $7,328,984 $388,401 $7,717,385 

Bond Issuance Expense (project related) $187,985 $123,815 $311,800 
Net Interest Expense During Construction (project 
related) $556,502 $366,537 $923,039 

Fair Market Value of Leased Space or Equipment $8,312,822 $5,475,202 $13,788,024 
Other Costs to Be Capitalized $1,740,419 $1,146,319 $2,886,738 
Acquisition of Building or Other Property (excluding 
land)    

 TOTAL USES OF FUNDS $36,279,234 $15,889,765 $52,208,999 

SOURCE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL 

Cash and Securities   $26,953,237 
Pledges    
Gifts and Bequests    
Bond Issues (project related)   $25,255,761 
Mortgages    
Leases (fair market value)    
Governmental Appropriations    
Grants    
Other Funds and Sources    
TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS   $52,208,999 

NOTE: ITEMIZATION OF EACH LINE ITEM MUST BE PROVIDED AT ATTACHMENT 7, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER 
THE LAST PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. 
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Itemization of Project Costs 
Items   

Preplanning Costs $413,000 
Concept and Programming $238,000 
Pre-Construction Services $175,000 

New Construction Contracts $22,206,638 
Contingencies $1,197,558 
Architectural/Engineering Fees $1,650,917 
Consulting and Other Fees $1,113,900 

CON and Regulatory fees and Legal $208,000 

Lease Due Diligence $29,300 

Commissioning $75,000 

Permits /Testing/Utility fees $440,000 
Project Management $240,000 

      Medical equip, furniture, structural, shielding consultants $121,600 
Movable and Other Equipment: (not in construction contracts) $7,717,385 

Major Medical $6,959,400 
Minor Medical $757,985 

Fair Market Value Lease Space: $13,788,024 
Bond Issuance Expense $311,800 
Net Interest Expense During Construction  $923,039 
Other Costs to be Capitalized $2,886,738 

Furnishings  $767,500 

Signage $165,000 
Owner Project Contingency $201,000 
IS/Telecommunications  $1,753,238 

TOTAL $52,208,999 
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Naperville ASTC Cath Lab Equipment 
  Quantity 

ASTC Cath Lab  
Alcove, Apron Rack 2 

Apron 1 
Lead 1 

Rack 1 
Apron, Wall Mount 1 

Control Room 4 
Bin 1 

Shredding, Secure 1 
Ultrasound, Imaging 1 

Vascular Access 1 
Waste Can 2 

Open Top 2 
Procedure Room 55 

Allowance 1 
Miscellaneous 1 

Analyzer, Lab 3 
Blood Gas, Point-of-Care 1 
Coagulation, Portable 1 
Glucose, Point-of-Care 1 

Board 1 
Patient Transfer Device 1 

Bracket 1 
Patient Transfer Device, Wall Mount 1 

Cabinet, Warming 1 
Single, Counter 1 

Cart, Procedure 1 
Resuscitation 1 

Cart, Supply 5 
Enclosed 5 

Cart, Utility 2 
Stainless 2 

Defibrillator 1 
Monitor, w/Pacing 1 

Dispenser 4 
Disinfectant Wipes, Wall Mount 1 
Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 3 

Dispenser, Glove 3 
Triple Box 3 

Disposal, Sharps 1 
Wall Mount 1 

Doppler 1 
Vascular 1 
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Naperville ASTC Cath Lab Equipment 
  Quantity 

Electrosurgical Unit 1 
Bipolar/Monopolar 1 

Flowmeter 3 
Air 1 
Oxygen 2 

Hamper 2 
Linen 2 

Injector, Contrast Media 1 
Table mount 1 

Light, Surgical 1 
Single, Ceiling, w/Rad Shield 1 

Monitor, Radiation 1 
General (Dosimetry) 1 

Pump 2 
Balloon, Intra-Aortic 1 
Heart / Lung, Allowance 1 

Pump, Infusion 4 
Controller, Modular 2 
Single 2 

Pump, Suction/Aspirator 1 
General, Portable 1 

Refrigerator 1 
Laboratory, Undercounter 1 

Regulator 1 
Suction, Intermittent/Continuous 1 

Shield 1 
Lead, Mobile 1 

Stand, IV 2 
Chrome 2 

Stand, Mayo 1 
Foot-Operated 1 

Stool 2 
Exam, w/Backrest 1 
Step, w/Handrail 1 

Table, Instrument 1 
72 inch 1 

Thermometer 1 
Temporal Artery, Wall Mount 1 

Ultrasound, Imaging 1 
Multipurpose, Portable 1 

Waste Can 1 
Open Top 1 

Waste Disposal 1 
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Naperville ASTC Cath Lab Equipment 
  Quantity 

Pharmaceutical, Mobile 1 
X-Ray Unit, Interventional 1 

Angio / Cardiac (Single Plane) 1 
Scrub Sink Alcove 9 

Carrier, Chair 1 
Scrub Sink 1 

Dispenser 6 
Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 2 
Paper Towel, Surface Mount 2 
Soap, Wall Mount 2 

Sink 1 
Scrub, 1-Bay, Stainless Steel 1 

Waste Can 1 
Open Top 1 

Shared Supply 3 
Cart, Supply 3 

Enclosed 3 
ASTC - Prep/Recovery 156 

Alcove - Equipment 5 
Cart, Supply 1 

Chrome, 36 inch 1 
Doppler 1 

Vascular 1 
Lift, Patient 1 

Stand Assist 1 
Sphygmomanometer 1 

Aneroid, Mobile 1 
Stand, IV 1 

Chrome 1 
Alcove - Printer 3 

Bin 1 
Shredding, Secure 1 

Waste Can 2 
Open Top 1 
Recycle 1 

Alcove, Wheelchair 5 
Scale, Clinical 1 

Adult, Digital, Floor 1 
Wheelchair 4 

Adult, Bariatric 1 
Adult, Standard 3 

Clean Storage 8 
Cabinet, Warming 1 
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Naperville ASTC Cath Lab Equipment 
  Quantity 

Dual, Mobile 1 
Cart, Supply 4 

Stainless, 60 inch 4 
Dispenser 1 

Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 
Stool 1 

Step, w/Handrail 1 
Waste Can 1 

Open Top 1 
Control Desk 1 

Waste Can 1 
Open Top 1 

Emergency Equipment Alcove 3 
Cart, Procedure 1 

Resuscitation 1 
Defibrillator 1 

Monitor, w/Pacing 1 
Pump, Suction/Aspirator 1 

General, Portable 1 
Medication 9 

Dispenser 4 
Disinfectant Wipes, Wall Mount 1 
Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 
Paper Towel, Surface Mount 1 
Soap, Wall Mount 1 

Dispenser, Glove 1 
Triple Box 1 

Disposal, Sharps 1 
Wall Mount 1 

Mat, Floor 1 
Anti-Fatigue 1 

Refrigerator 1 
Laboratory, Undercounter 1 

Waste Can 1 
Step-On 1 

Nourishment 8 
Coffee Maker 1 

Thermal Pot 1 
Dispenser 3 

Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 
Paper Towel, Surface Mount 1 
Soap, Wall Mount 1 

Ice Machine 1 
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Naperville ASTC Cath Lab Equipment 
  Quantity 

Dispenser, Nugget, Countertop 1 
Refrigerator 1 

Domestic with Freezer 1 
Waste Can 2 

Open Top 1 
Recycle 1 

Nurse Station 6 
Analyzer, Lab 1 

Glucose, Point-of-Care 1 
Bin 1 

Shredding, Secure 1 
Monitor, Central Station, Telemetry 1 

General 1 
Warmer 1 

Cleansing Bath 1 
Waste Can 2 

Open Top 1 
Recycle 1 

Patient Toilet 4 
Dispenser 3 

Paper Towel, Surface Mount 1 
Soap, Wall Mount 1 
Toilet Paper, Surface Mount 1 

Waste Can 1 
Step-On 1 

Prep/Recovery Room 44 
Bracket 2 

Monitor, Wall 2 
Cart, Supply 2 

Drawers 2 
Dispenser 8 

Disinfectant Wipes, Wall Mount 2 
Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 2 
Paper Towel, Surface Mount 2 
Soap, Wall Mount 2 

Dispenser, Glove 2 
Triple Box 2 

Disposal, Sharps 2 
Wall Mount 2 

Flowmeter 2 
Oxygen 2 

Hamper 2 
Linen 2 
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Naperville ASTC Cath Lab Equipment 
  Quantity 

Monitor, Physiologic 4 
Bedside 2 
Transport 2 

Pump, Infusion 6 
Controller, Modular 2 
Single 4 

Regulator 4 
Suction, Intermittent/Continuous 4 

Stand, Mayo 2 
Foot-Operated 2 

Stretcher 2 
Procedure / Recovery 2 

Table, Overbed 2 
General 2 

Thermometer 2 
Temporal Artery, Wall Mount 2 

Waste Can 2 
Step-On 2 

Soiled Utility 8 
Cart / Truck 2 

Linen, Bulk 1 
Soiled Utility 1 

Dispenser 3 
Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 
Paper Towel, Surface Mount 1 
Soap, Wall Mount 1 

Dispenser, Glove 1 
Triple Box 1 

Waste Can 2 
Bio-Hazardous 1 
Step-On 1 

Staff Toilet 8 
Dispenser 6 

Paper Towel, Surface Mount 2 
Soap, Wall Mount 2 
Toilet Paper, Surface Mount 2 

Waste Can 2 
Step-On 2 

Universal Room 44 
Bracket 2 

Monitor, Wall 2 
Cart, Supply 2 

Drawers 2 
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Naperville ASTC Cath Lab Equipment 
  Quantity 

Dispenser 8 
Disinfectant Wipes, Wall Mount 2 
Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 2 
Paper Towel, Surface Mount 2 
Soap, Wall Mount 2 

Dispenser, Glove 2 
Triple Box 2 

Disposal, Sharps 2 
Wall Mount 2 

Flowmeter 2 
Oxygen 2 

Hamper 2 
Linen 2 

Monitor, Physiologic 4 
Bedside 2 
Transport 2 

Pump, Infusion 6 
Controller, Modular 2 
Single 4 

Regulator 4 
Suction, Intermittent/Continuous 4 

Stand, Mayo 2 
Foot-Operated 2 

Stretcher 2 
Procedure / Recovery 2 

Table, Overbed 2 
General 2 

Thermometer 2 
Temporal Artery, Wall Mount 2 

Waste Can 2 
Step-On 2 

ASTC - Support 48 
Clean Storage 3 

Cart, Supply 3 
Stainless, 60 inch 3 

EVS 6 
Cart, Supply 1 

Stainless, 60 inch 1 
Dispenser 2 

Cleaning Solution 1 
Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 

Dispenser, Glove 1 
Triple Box 1 
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Naperville ASTC Cath Lab Equipment 
  Quantity 

Rack 1 
Mops / Brooms 1 

Waste Can 1 
32-40 Gallon 1 

Locker Room, Female, Toilet 5 
Dispenser 3 

Paper Towel, Surface Mount 1 
Soap, Wall Mount 1 
Toilet Paper, Surface Mount 1 

Hamper 1 
Linen 1 

Waste Can 1 
Step-On 1 

Locker Room, Male, Toilet 5 
Dispenser 3 

Paper Towel, Surface Mount 1 
Soap, Wall Mount 1 
Toilet Paper, Surface Mount 1 

Hamper 1 
Linen 1 

Waste Can 1 
Step-On 1 

Physician Dictation 3 
Dispenser 1 

Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 
Waste Can 2 

Open Top 1 
Recycle 1 

Soiled Hold(ASTC) 11 
Dispenser 2 

Disinfectant Wipes, Wall Mount 1 
Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 

Dispenser, Glove 1 
Triple Box 1 

Rack 2 
Dunnage, 48 in. 2 

Waste Can 6 
Bio-Hazardous 5 
Step-On 1 

Soiled Utility 10 
Cart / Truck 4 

Linen, Bulk 2 
Soiled Utility 2 
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Naperville ASTC Cath Lab Equipment 
  Quantity 

Dispenser 3 
Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 
Paper Towel, Surface Mount 1 
Soap, Wall Mount 1 

Dispenser, Glove 1 
Triple Box 1 

Waste Can 2 
Bio-Hazardous 1 
Step-On 1 

Staff Lounge 1 
Waste Can 1 

Open Top 1 
Touchdown 4 

Dispenser 2 
Disinfectant Wipes, Wall Mount 1 
Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 

Waste Can 2 
Open Top 1 
Recycle 1 

ASTC Public Services 10 
Family Toilet 4 

Dispenser 3 
Paper Towel, Surface Mount 1 
Soap, Wall Mount 1 
Toilet Paper, Surface Mount 1 

Waste Can 1 
Step-On 1 

Waiting 6 
Dispenser 2 

Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 2 
Waste Can 4 

Open Top 4 
Clinic Pod - Cardiology 200 

Alcove - Equipment 16 
Cart, Cylinder 2 

D&E, Single 2 
Cart, Procedure 1 

Resuscitation 1 
Defibrillator 1 

Monitor, w/Pacing 1 
Doppler 2 

Vascular 2 
Electrocardiograph (ECG) 2 
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Naperville ASTC Cath Lab Equipment 
  Quantity 

Interpretive 2 
Monitor, Physiologic 6 

Vital Signs, w/Stand 6 
Sphygmomanometer 2 

Aneroid, Mobile 2 
Alcove -Wheelchair Scale 6 

Dispenser 2 
Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 2 

Scale, Clinical 2 
Adult, Wheelchair 2 

Stadiometer 2 
Wall Mount 2 

Device Exam Room 8 
Cart, Procedure 1 

General 1 
Dispenser 4 

Disinfectant Wipes, Wall Mount 1 
Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 
Paper Towel, Surface Mount 1 
Soap, Wall Mount 1 

Disposal, Sharps 1 
Wall Mount 1 

Stool 1 
Exam, w/Backrest 1 

Waste Can 1 
Step-On 1 

Exam Room 90 
Dispenser 36 

Disinfectant Wipes, Wall Mount 9 
Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 9 
Paper Towel, Surface Mount 9 
Soap, Wall Mount 9 

Disposal, Sharps 9 
Wall Mount 9 

Oto/Ophthalmoscope Set 9 
Desktop 9 

Scale, Clinical 9 
Adult, Digital, Floor 9 

Stool 9 
Exam, w/Backrest 9 

Table, Exam/Treatment 9 
Manual Adjust, Electric 9 

Waste Can 9 
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Naperville ASTC Cath Lab Equipment 
  Quantity 

Step-On 9 
Exam Room-Power Table 30 

Dispenser 12 
Disinfectant Wipes, Wall Mount 3 
Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 3 
Paper Towel, Surface Mount 3 
Soap, Wall Mount 3 

Disposal, Sharps 3 
Wall Mount 3 

Oto/Ophthalmoscope Set 3 
Desktop 3 

Scale, Clinical 3 
Adult, Digital, Floor 3 

Stool 3 
Exam, w/Backrest 3 

Table, Exam/Treatment 3 
Powered 3 

Waste Can 3 
Step-On 3 

Patient Toilet 8 
Dispenser 6 

Paper Towel, Surface Mount 2 
Soap, Wall Mount 2 
Toilet Paper, Surface Mount 2 

Waste Can 2 
Step-On 2 

POC 14 
Analyzer, Lab 4 

Coagulation, Portable 1 
Glucose, Point-of-Care 1 
Immunoassay, Countertop 1 
Urinalysis, Semi-Automated 1 

Dispenser 4 
Disinfectant Wipes, Wall Mount 1 
Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 
Paper Towel, Surface Mount 1 
Soap, Wall Mount 1 

Dispenser, Glove 1 
Triple Box 1 

Disposal, Sharps 1 
Wall Mount 1 

Freezer 1 
Laboratory, Undercounter 1 
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Naperville ASTC Cath Lab Equipment 
  Quantity 

Microscope 1 
Binocular 1 

Refrigerator 1 
Laboratory, Undercounter 1 

Waste Can 1 
Step-On 1 

Reading Room 2 
Dispenser 1 

Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 
Waste Can 1 

Open Top 1 
Team Workspace 22 

Bin 2 
Shredding, Secure 2 

Box 1 
Medication, Emergency 1 

Cabinet, Storage, Clinical 1 
Defibrillator 1 

Defibrillator 1 
Monitor, Automatic, Advisory 1 

Dispenser, Water 1 
Filtered 1 

Waste Can 16 
Open Top 8 
Recycle 8 

Touchdown 4 
Dispenser 2 

Disinfectant Wipes, Wall Mount 1 
Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 

Waste Can 2 
Open Top 1 
Recycle 1 

Clinic Pod -Primary Care 224 
Alcove - Equipment 16 

Cart, Cylinder 2 
D&E, Single 2 

Cart, Equipment 1 
Infant Scale 1 

Electrocardiograph (ECG) 1 
Interpretive 1 

Light, Exam/Procedure 3 
Single, Mobile, Gooseneck Arm 3 

Monitor, Physiologic 6 
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Naperville ASTC Cath Lab Equipment 
  Quantity 

Vital Signs, w/Stand 6 
Scale, Clinical 1 

Infant/Pediatric, Digital 1 
Sphygmomanometer 2 

Aneroid, Mobile 2 
Alcove - Wheelchair Scale 3 

Dispenser 1 
Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 

Scale, Clinical 1 
Adult, Wheelchair 1 

Stadiometer 1 
Wall Mount 1 

Exam Room 60 
Dispenser 24 

Disinfectant Wipes, Wall Mount 6 
Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 6 
Paper Towel, Surface Mount 6 
Soap, Wall Mount 6 

Disposal, Sharps 6 
Wall Mount 6 

Oto/Ophthalmoscope Set 6 
Desktop 6 

Scale, Clinical 6 
Adult, Digital, Floor 6 

Stool 6 
Exam, w/Backrest 6 

Table, Exam/Treatment 6 
Manual Adjust, Electric 6 

Waste Can 6 
Step-On 6 

Exam Room-Power Table 60 
Dispenser 24 

Disinfectant Wipes, Wall Mount 6 
Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 6 
Paper Towel, Surface Mount 6 
Soap, Wall Mount 6 

Disposal, Sharps 6 
Wall Mount 6 

Oto/Ophthalmoscope Set 6 
Desktop 6 

Scale, Clinical 6 
Adult, Digital, Floor 6 

Stool 6 
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Naperville ASTC Cath Lab Equipment 
  Quantity 

Exam, w/Backrest 6 
Table, Exam/Treatment 6 

Powered 6 
Waste Can 6 

Step-On 6 
Medication Room 12 

Dispenser 4 
Disinfectant Wipes, Wall Mount 1 
Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 
Paper Towel, Surface Mount 1 
Soap, Wall Mount 1 

Dispenser, Glove 1 
Triple Box 1 

Disposal, Sharps 1 
Wall Mount 1 

Freezer 1 
Laboratory, Undercounter 1 

Mat, Floor 2 
Anti-Fatigue 2 

Refrigerator 2 
Laboratory, 1 door 1 
Laboratory, Undercounter 1 

Waste Can 1 
Step-On 1 

Patient Toilet 8 
Dispenser 6 

Paper Towel, Surface Mount 2 
Soap, Wall Mount 2 
Toilet Paper, Surface Mount 2 

Waste Can 2 
Step-On 2 

POC 20 
Analyzer, Lab 7 

Blood Lead 1 
Coagulation, Portable 1 
Glucose, Point-of-Care 2 
Immunoassay, Countertop 2 
Urinalysis, Semi-Automated 1 

Dispenser 5 
Disinfectant Wipes, Wall Mount 1 
Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 2 
Paper Towel, Surface Mount 1 
Soap, Wall Mount 1 
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Naperville ASTC Cath Lab Equipment 
  Quantity 

Dispenser, Glove 1 
Triple Box 1 

Disposal, Sharps 1 
Wall Mount 1 

Freezer 1 
Laboratory, Undercounter 1 

Hemoglobinometer 1 
General 1 

Microscope 1 
Binocular 1 

Refrigerator 1 
Laboratory, Undercounter 1 

Waste Can 2 
Bio-Hazardous 1 
Step-On 1 

Procedure Room 20 
Cart, Equipment 1 

Electrosurgical Unit 1 
Cart, Supply 1 

Drawers 1 
Dispenser 5 

Disinfectant Wipes, Wall Mount 1 
Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 
Otoscope Tips, Wall Mount 1 
Paper Towel, Surface Mount 1 
Soap, Wall Mount 1 

Disposal, Sharps 1 
Wall Mount 1 

Electrosurgical Unit 1 
Bipolar/Monopolar, Wall 1 

Light, Exam/Procedure 1 
Single, Ceiling 1 

Monitor, Physiologic 1 
Vital Signs, w/Stand 1 

Oto/Ophthalmoscope Set 1 
Desktop 1 

Scale, Clinical 1 
Adult, Digital, Floor 1 

Smoke Evacuation 1 
Surgical 1 

Stand, IV 1 
Stainless Steel 1 

Stand, Mayo 1 
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Naperville ASTC Cath Lab Equipment 
  Quantity 

Foot-Operated 1 
Stool 1 

Exam, w/Backrest 1 
Table, Exam/Treatment 1 

Powered 1 
Waste Can 2 

Bio-Hazardous 1 
Step-On 1 

Team Workspace 21 
Bin 1 

Shredding, Secure 1 
Box 1 

Medication, Emergency 1 
Cabinet, Storage, Clinical 1 

Defibrillator 1 
Defibrillator 1 

Monitor, Automatic, Advisory 1 
Dispenser, Water 1 

Filtered 1 
Waste Can 16 

Open Top 8 
Recycle 8 

Touchdown 4 
Dispenser 2 

Disinfectant Wipes, Wall Mount 1 
Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 

Waste Can 2 
Open Top 1 
Recycle 1 

Clinic Shared Support 36 
Central Supply 16 

Cabinet, Storage, Clinical 1 
Gas Cylinder 1 

Cart, Cylinder 2 
D&E, Single 2 

Cart, Supply 9 
Stainless, 60 inch 9 

Cart, Utility 1 
Polymer 1 

Dispenser 1 
Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 

Stool 1 
Step, w/Handrail 1 
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Naperville ASTC Cath Lab Equipment 
  Quantity 

Waste Can 1 
Open Top 1 

EVS 10 
Cart, Supply 2 

Stainless, 60 inch 2 
Dispenser 2 

Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 2 
Dispenser, Glove 2 

Triple Box 2 
Rack 2 

Mops / Brooms 2 
Waste Can 2 

32-40 Gallon 2 
Soiled Holding 10 

Cart / Truck 2 
Linen, Bulk 1 
Soiled Utility 1 

Dispenser 2 
Disinfectant Wipes, Wall Mount 1 
Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 

Dispenser, Glove 1 
Triple Box 1 

Waste Can 5 
32-40 Gallon 1 
Bio-Hazardous 4 

Lab 60 
Alcove-Glucola 1 

Refrigerator 1 
Undercounter 1 

Blood Draw - Open Bay 26 
Cart, Procedure 2 

General 2 
Chair, Clinical 2 

Blood Draw, Electric 2 
Dispenser 10 

Disinfectant Wipes, Wall Mount 2 
Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 4 
Paper Towel, Surface Mount 2 
Soap, Wall Mount 2 

Dispenser, Glove 2 
Triple Box 2 

Disposal, Sharps 2 
Wall Mount 2 
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Naperville ASTC Cath Lab Equipment 
  Quantity 

Rack 2 
Test Tube, Wall Mount 2 

Stool 2 
Exam, w/Backrest 2 

Waste Can 4 
Bio-Hazardous 2 
Step-On 2 

Blood Draw - Private Bay 17 
Cart, Procedure 1 

General 1 
Chair, Clinical 2 

Blood Draw, Electric 1 
Blood Draw, Reclining 1 

Dispenser 5 
Disinfectant Wipes, Wall Mount 1 
Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 2 
Paper Towel, Surface Mount 1 
Soap, Wall Mount 1 

Dispenser, Glove 1 
Triple Box 1 

Disposal, Sharps 2 
Wall Mount 2 

Phlebotomy Station 1 
Infant, Freestanding 1 

Rack 1 
Test Tube, Wall Mount 1 

Stool 1 
Exam, w/Backrest 1 

Waste Can 3 
Bio-Hazardous 1 
Step-On 2 

Lab Processing 12 
Bin 2 

Supply 2 
Centrifuge 2 

General Purpose, Countertop 2 
Dispenser 4 

Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 
Paper Towel, Surface Mount 2 
Soap, Wall Mount 1 

Dispenser, Glove 1 
Triple Box 1 

Refrigerator 1 
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Naperville ASTC Cath Lab Equipment 
  Quantity 

Pharmaceutical, w/Freezer 1 
Waste Can 2 

Bio-Hazardous 1 
Open Top 1 

Patient Toilet 4 
Dispenser 3 

Paper Towel, Surface Mount 1 
Soap, Wall Mount 1 
Toilet Paper, Surface Mount 1 

Waste Can 1 
Step-On 1 

NonInvasive Services 216 
Cardiologist Reading/Work Room 3 

Dispenser 1 
Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 

Waste Can 2 
Open Top 1 
Recycle 1 

Clean Supply 9 
Cart, Supply 5 

Stainless, 60 inch 5 
Dispenser 1 

Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 
Refrigerator 1 

Laboratory, Undercounter 1 
Stool 1 

Step, w/Handrail 1 
Waste Can 1 

Open Top 1 
CT Control Room 2 

Cabinet, Warming 1 
Single, Counter 1 

Waste Can 1 
Open Top 1 

CT Gowning 6 
Dispenser 2 

Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 2 
Hamper 2 

Linen 2 
Waste Can 2 

Step-On 2 
CT Scan Room 38 

Analyzer, Lab 1 
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Naperville ASTC Cath Lab Equipment 
  Quantity 

Blood Gas, Point-of-Care 1 
Apron 2 

Lead 1 
Lead, Allowance 1 

Board 1 
Patient Transfer Device 1 

Bracket 1 
Patient Transfer Device, Wall Mount 1 

Cart, Procedure 1 
General 1 

Cart, Supply 3 
Enclosed 3 

CT Scanner 1 
Multi-Slice, 64-320 Slice 1 

Dispenser 4 
Disinfectant Wipes, Wall Mount 1 
Emesis Bag, Wall Mount 1 
Paper Towel, Surface Mount 1 
Soap, Wall Mount 1 

Dispenser, Glove 1 
Triple Box 1 

Disposal, Sharps 4 
Floor Bin 1 
Floor Cart 1 
Wall Mount 2 

Flowmeter 2 
Air 1 
Oxygen 1 

Hamper 1 
Linen 1 

Injector, Contrast Media 1 
Ceiling Mount 1 

Monitor, Physiologic 1 
Vital Signs, w/Stand 1 

Rack 1 
Apron, Wall Mount 1 

Refrigerator 1 
Laboratory, Undercounter 1 

Regulator 1 
Suction, Intermittent/Continuous 1 

Stand, IV 2 
Chrome 2 

Stand, Mayo 1 
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Naperville ASTC Cath Lab Equipment 
  Quantity 

Foot-Operated 1 
Stool 2 

Exam, Cushion-Seat 1 
Step, w/Handrail 1 

Warmer 1 
Contrast Media 1 

Waste Can 2 
Open Top 1 
Step-On 1 

Waste Disposal 3 
Pharmaceutical, Container 3 

CT Screening 5 
Chair, Clinical 1 

Recliner, Treatment 1 
Dispenser 1 

Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 
Dispenser, Glove 1 

Triple Box 1 
Stand, Mayo 1 

Foot-Operated 1 
Waste Can 1 

Step-On 1 
Echo Room 15 

Dispenser 4 
Disinfectant Wipes, Wall Mount 1 
Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 
Paper Towel, Surface Mount 1 
Soap, Wall Mount 1 

Dispenser, Glove 1 
Triple Box 1 

Disposal, Sharps 1 
Wall Mount 1 

Hamper 1 
Linen 1 

Mixer 1 
Vortex 1 

Monitor, Physiologic 1 
Vital Signs, w/Stand 1 

Stool 1 
Step, w/Handrail 1 

Table, Imaging 1 
Ultrasound 1 

Ultrasound, Imaging 1 
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Naperville ASTC Cath Lab Equipment 
  Quantity 

Cardiac / Echo 1 
Warmer 1 

Gel/Wax/Lotion 1 
Waste Can 2 

Open Top 1 
Step-On 1 

Emergency Equipment Alcove 3 
Cart, Procedure 1 

Resuscitation 1 
Defibrillator 1 

Monitor, w/Pacing 1 
Pump, Suction/Aspirator 1 

General, Portable 1 
Fast Track 22 

Dispenser 8 
Disinfectant Wipes, Wall Mount 2 
Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 2 
Paper Towel, Surface Mount 2 
Soap, Wall Mount 2 

Dispenser, Glove 2 
Triple Box 2 

Disposal, Sharps 2 
Wall Mount 2 

Hamper 2 
Linen 2 

Monitor, Physiologic 2 
Vital Signs, w/Stand 2 

Stool 2 
Exam, w/Backrest 2 

Table, Exam/Treatment 2 
Powered 2 

Waste Can 2 
Step-On 2 

Holter/EKG Room 10 
Dispenser 4 

Disinfectant Wipes, Wall Mount 1 
Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 
Paper Towel, Surface Mount 1 
Soap, Wall Mount 1 

Dispenser, Glove 1 
Triple Box 1 

Disposal, Sharps 1 
Wall Mount 1 
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Naperville ASTC Cath Lab Equipment 
  Quantity 

Electrocardiograph (ECG) 1 
Interpretive 1 

Stool 1 
Exam, w/Backrest 1 

Table, Exam/Treatment 1 
Powered 1 

Waste Can 1 
Step-On 1 

NM Control Room 3 
Dispenser 1 

Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 
Waste Can 2 

Open Top 1 
Recycle 1 

NM Hot Lab 15 
Cabinet, Storage, Clinical 1 

Lead Lined 1 
Dispenser 3 

Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 
Paper Towel, Surface Mount 1 
Soap, Wall Mount 1 

Dispenser, Glove 1 
Triple Box 1 

Disposal, Sharps 1 
Lead Lined 1 

Dose Calibrator 1 
w/ Well Counter 1 

Meter 1 
Survey 1 

Shield 5 
Lead, Syringe 3 
Lead, Syringe Carrier 1 
Lead, Table Top L-block 1 

Waste Can 2 
Lead-lined 1 
Step-On 1 

NM Injection/Holding Room 11 
Chair, Clinical 1 

Recliner, Treatment 1 
Dispenser 4 

Disinfectant Wipes, Wall Mount 1 
Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 
Paper Towel, Surface Mount 1 
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Naperville ASTC Cath Lab Equipment 
  Quantity 

Soap, Wall Mount 1 
Dispenser, Glove 1 

Triple Box 1 
Disposal, Sharps 1 

Wall Mount 1 
Sphygmomanometer 1 

Aneroid, Mobile 1 
Stand, Mayo 1 

Foot-Operated 1 
Stool 1 

Exam, w/Backrest 1 
Waste Can 1 

Step-On 1 
NM Patient Toilet 4 

Dispenser 3 
Paper Towel, Surface Mount 1 
Soap, Wall Mount 1 
Toilet Paper, Surface Mount 1 

Waste Can 1 
Step-On 1 

NM Waiting 2 
Waste Can 2 

Open Top 2 
Nuclear SPECT Scanner 8 

Camera, Gamma 1 
SPECT 1 

Dispenser 3 
Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 
Paper Towel, Surface Mount 1 
Soap, Wall Mount 1 

Dispenser, Glove 1 
Triple Box 1 

Disposal, Sharps 1 
Wall Mount 1 

Waste Can 2 
Lead-lined 1 
Open Top 1 

Nuclear Stress Treadmill Room 10 
Chair, Clinical 1 

Recliner, Treatment 1 
Dispenser 4 

Disinfectant Wipes, Wall Mount 1 
Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 
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Naperville ASTC Cath Lab Equipment 
  Quantity 

Paper Towel, Surface Mount 1 
Soap, Wall Mount 1 

Dispenser, Glove 1 
Triple Box 1 

Disposal, Sharps 1 
Wall Mount 1 

Sphygmomanometer 1 
Aneroid, Mobile 1 

Stress Test System 1 
w/ Treadmill 1 

Waste Can 1 
Open Top 1 

Patient Toilet 4 
Dispenser 3 

Paper Towel, Surface Mount 1 
Soap, Wall Mount 1 
Toilet Paper, Surface Mount 1 

Waste Can 1 
Step-On 1 

Stress/Echo 17 
Dispenser 4 

Disinfectant Wipes, Wall Mount 1 
Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 
Paper Towel, Surface Mount 1 
Soap, Wall Mount 1 

Dispenser, Glove 1 
Triple Box 1 

Disposal, Sharps 1 
Wall Mount 1 

Hamper 1 
Linen 1 

Mixer 1 
Vortex 1 

Monitor, Physiologic 1 
Vital Signs, w/Stand 1 

Sphygmomanometer 1 
Aneroid, Mobile 1 

Stool 1 
Step, w/Handrail 1 

Stress Test System 1 
w/ Treadmill 1 

Table, Imaging 1 
Ultrasound 1 
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Naperville ASTC Cath Lab Equipment 
  Quantity 

Ultrasound, Imaging 1 
Cardiac / Echo 1 

Warmer 1 
Gel/Wax/Lotion 1 

Waste Can 2 
Open Top 1 
Step-On 1 

Touchdown 2 
Dispenser 1 

Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 
Waste Can 1 

Open Top 1 
Vascular Lab 12 

Dispenser 3 
Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 
Paper Towel, Surface Mount 1 
Soap, Wall Mount 1 

Dispenser, Glove 1 
Triple Box 1 

Disposal, Sharps 1 
Wall Mount 1 

Stand, Mayo 1 
Foot-Operated 1 

Stool 1 
Step, w/Handrail 1 

Table, Imaging 1 
Ultrasound 1 

Ultrasound, Imaging 1 
Multipurpose 1 

Vascular Diagnostic System 1 
Non-Invasive 1 

Warmer 1 
Gel/Wax/Lotion 1 

Waste Can 1 
Step-On 1 

Vein Procedure Room 15 
Dispenser 3 

Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 
Paper Towel, Surface Mount 1 
Soap, Wall Mount 1 

Dispenser, Glove 1 
Triple Box 1 

Disposal, Sharps 1 
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Naperville ASTC Cath Lab Equipment 
  Quantity 

Wall Mount 1 
Doppler 1 

Vascular 1 
Laser 1 

Aesthetic, Diode 1 
Light, Exam/Procedure 1 

Single, Ceiling 1 
Stand, Mayo 1 

Foot-Operated 1 
Stool 1 

Step, w/Handrail 1 
Table, Imaging 1 

Ultrasound 1 
Ultrasound, Imaging 1 

Multipurpose 1 
Vascular Diagnostic System 1 

Non-Invasive 1 
Warmer 1 

Gel/Wax/Lotion 1 
Waste Can 1 

Step-On 1 
Public Services 28 

Alcove - Wheelchair 4 
Wheelchair 4 

Adult, Bariatric 1 
Adult, Standard 3 

Family Toilet 4 
Dispenser 3 

Paper Towel, Surface Mount 1 
Soap, Wall Mount 1 
Toilet Paper, Surface Mount 1 

Waste Can 1 
Step-On 1 

Public Toilet 4 
Dispenser 3 

Paper Towel, Surface Mount 1 
Soap, Wall Mount 1 
Toilet Paper, Surface Mount 1 

Waste Can 1 
Step-On 1 

Reception 5 
Bin 1 

Shredding, Secure 1 
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Naperville ASTC Cath Lab Equipment 
  Quantity 

Waste Can 4 
Open Top 4 

Waiting 11 
Coffee Maker 1 

Thermal Pot 1 
Dispenser 2 

Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 2 
Dispenser, Water 2 

Filtered 2 
Stand, Equipment 2 

Hand Sanitizer 2 
Waste Can 4 

Open Top 4 
Staff Support 42 

Conference Room 3 
Dispenser 1 

Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 
Waste Can 2 

Open Top 1 
Recycle 1 

Office Manager 3 
Dispenser 1 

Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 
Waste Can 2 

Open Top 1 
Recycle 1 

Office RN/Cath Scheduler 3 
Dispenser 1 

Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 
Waste Can 2 

Open Top 1 
Recycle 1 

Office SPVS/COORD 3 
Dispenser 1 

Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 
Waste Can 2 

Open Top 1 
Recycle 1 

Office/Supervisor 3 
Dispenser 1 

Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 
Waste Can 2 

Open Top 1 
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Naperville ASTC Cath Lab Equipment 
  Quantity 

Recycle 1 
Phone Room 4 

Waste Can 4 
Open Top 2 
Recycle 2 

Respite Room 4 
Dispenser 3 

Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 
Paper Towel, Surface Mount 1 
Soap, Wall Mount 1 

Waste Can 1 
Open Top 1 

Staff Lounge 11 
Coffee Maker 1 

Pour-Over, Airpot 1 
Dispenser 3 

Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount 1 
Paper Towel, Surface Mount 1 
Soap, Wall Mount 1 

Dispenser, Water 1 
Filtered 1 

Oven 2 
Domestic, Microwave, Countertop 2 

Refrigerator 2 
Domestic with Freezer 2 

Waste Can 2 
20-31 Gallon 1 
Recycle 1 

Staff Toilet 8 
Dispenser 6 

Paper Towel, Surface Mount 2 
Soap, Wall Mount 2 
Toilet Paper, Surface Mount 2 

Waste Can 2 
Step-On 2 

Staff Toilet 8 
Dispenser 6 

Paper Towel, Surface Mount 2 
Soap, Wall Mount 2 
Toilet Paper, Surface Mount 2 

Waste Can 2 
Step-On 2 

Grand Total 1,101 
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Project Status and Completion Schedules 
 

For facilities in which prior permits have been issued please provide the permit numbers. 
Indicate the stage of the project’s architectural drawings: 
 
                                    None or not applicable                         Preliminary 
 
                                    Schematics                                          Final Working 
Anticipated project completion date (refer to Part 1130.140): May 1, 2026 
 
Indicate the following with respect to project expenditures or to financial commitments (refer to Part 
1130.140): 
 

  Purchase orders, leases or contracts pertaining to the project have been executed.   
  Financial commitment is contingent upon permit issuance.  Provide a copy of the 

contingent “certification of financial commitment” document, highlighting any language 
related to CON Contingencies  

  Financial Commitment will occur after permit issuance. 
 
 
 
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 8, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE 
APPLICATION FORM.   
 
 

 
 
The following CON/COE applications have received permits from the HFSRB and are in process of 
development.  These projects are expected to be completed on time and within budget without any 
changes in scope. 
 
Advocate Christ Medical Center  #14-057 
Advocate Condell Medical Center #20-004 
Advocate Illinois Masonic Medical Center #22-009 
Advocate Outpatient Center - South Elgin                         #22-050  
Advocate Outpatient Center - Chicago Webster               #23-002 
Advocate Outpatient Center – Lakemoor                     #23-010  
Advocate Christ Medical Center          #23-021 
Advocate ASTC - Chicago Webster                                      #23-007 
Advocate Outpatient Center – Hoffman Estates        #23-028                          
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Cost Space Requirements  
 

Provide in the following format, the Departmental Gross Square Feet (DGSF) or the Building Gross Square 
Feet (BGSF) and cost.  The type of gross square footage either DGSF or BGSF must be identified.  The sum of 
the department costs MUST equal the total estimated project costs.  Indicate if any space is being reallocated for 
a different purpose.  Include outside wall measurements plus the department’s or area’s portion of the surrounding 
circulation space.  Explain the use of any vacated space. 
 

    

    Building Gross 
Square Feet Proposed Total Building Gross Square Feet 

Dept. / Area Cost Existing Proposed New 
Const. Modernized As Is Vacated 

Space 
CLINICAL Reviewable and Non-

Reviewable               

                

ASTC (1 OR room) $5,145,107 0 2,682 2,682       

PACU/Prep/Recovery (4 rooms) $5,978,999 0 4,607 4,607       

Imaging – CT (1 Unit) $4,219,235 0 1,330 1,330       

Imaging – Nuclear Medicine (1 Unit) $2,629,332 0 1,585 1,585       

Imaging – Vascular US (1 Unit) $584,740  0 301 301       

Imaging – Vein US (1 Unit) $723,299 0 339 339    

Imaging – Echo US (1 Unit) $604,558 0 275 275    

Imaging – Stress/Echo US (1 Unit) $774,449 0 384 384    

Physician Clinic Exam/Treatment 
Rooms (26 Rooms) $13,547,214 0 12,894 12,894       

Fast Track (2 rooms) $861,472 0 826 826       

Holter (1 room) $487,643 0 427 427       

Well Lab (1 private room, 2 open 
bays) $926,948 0 821 821    

Total Clinical  $36,482,995 0 26,471 26,471       

 

NON-CLINICAL Non-Reviewable  
      

Public, Circulation, Staff Support, 
Building Support $15,726,005 0 17,435 17,435 0 0 0 

Total Non-Clinical 
Non-Reviewable $15,726,005 0 17,435 17,435 0 0 0 

        
TOTAL $52,208,999 0 43,906 43,906 0 0 0 

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 9, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE APPLICATION 
FORM. 
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SECTION III.  BACKGROUND, PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT, AND ALTERNATIVES - 
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS 
 
This Section is applicable to all projects except those that are solely for discontinuation with no project costs.  
1110.110(a) – Background of the Applicant 
 
READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following required information: 

BACKGROUND OF APPLICANT 
 

1. A listing of all health care facilities owned or operated by the applicant, including licensing, and certification if 
applicable. 
 

2. A listing of all health care facilities currently owned and/or operated in Illinois, by any corporate officers or 
directors, LLC members, partners, or owners of at least 5% of the proposed health care facility. 

 
3. For the following questions, please provide information for each applicant, including corporate officers or 

directors, LLC members, partners, and owners of at least 5% of the proposed facility.  A health care facility is 
considered owned or operated by every person or entity that owns, directly or indirectly, an ownership interest. 
 

a. A certified listing of any adverse action taken against any facility owned and/or operated by the 
applicant, directly or indirectly, during the three years prior to the filing of the application.     

 
b. A certified listing of each applicant, identifying those individuals that have been cited, arrested, taken 

into custody, charged with, indicted, convicted, or tried for, or pled guilty to the commission of any 
felony or misdemeanor or violation of the law, except for minor parking violations; or the subject of 
any juvenile delinquency or youthful offender proceeding.  Unless expunged, provide details about 
the conviction, and submit any police or court records regarding any matters disclosed. 

 
c. A certified and detailed listing of each applicant or person charged with fraudulent conduct or any act 

involving moral turpitude.   
 

d. A certified listing of each applicant with one or more unsatisfied judgements against him or her. 
 

e. A certified and detailed listing of each applicant who is in default in the performance or discharge of 
any duty or obligation imposed by a judgment, decree, order or directive of any court or governmental 
agency.   

 
4. Authorization permitting HFSRB and DPH access to any documents necessary to verify the information 

submitted, including, but not limited to official records of DPH or other State agencies; the licensing or 
certification records of other states, when applicable; and the records of nationally recognized accreditation 
organizations.  Failure to provide such authorization shall constitute an abandonment or withdrawal of 
the application without any further action by HFSRB. 

 
5. If, during a given calendar year, an applicant submits more than one application for permit, the documentation 

provided with the prior applications may be utilized to fulfill the information requirements of this criterion.  In 
such instances, the applicant shall attest that the information was previously provided, cite the project number 
of the prior application, and certify that no changes have occurred regarding the information that has been 
previously provided.  The applicant can submit amendments to previously submitted information, as needed, 
to update and/or clarify data. 

 
 
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 11, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST 
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. EACH ITEM (1-4) MUST BE IDENTIFIED IN ATTACHMENT 11.   
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1. For the following questions, please a listing of all health care facilities owned or operated by the 
applicant, including licensing, and certification if applicable. 

 
Attachment 11, Exhibit 1, is the listing of all Illinois licensed health care facilities owned by the 
applicants.  

 
2. A certified listing of any adverse action taken against any facility owned and/or operated by the 

applicant, directly or indirectly, during the three years prior to the filing of the application.   
 

By the signatures on the Certification pages of this application, the applicants attest there has been no 
“adverse action” (as that term is defined in Section 1130.140 of the Illinois Health Facilities and Services 
Review Board (HFSRB) rules) against any Illinois health care facility owned and/or operated by the 
applicants, during the three-year period immediately prior to the filing of this application.  

 
3. Authorization permitting HFSRB and DPH access to any documents necessary. 

 
The applicants hereby authorize the HFSRB and the Illinois Department of Public Health to access 
information that may be required in order to verify any documentation or information submitted in 
response to the requirements of this subsection, or to obtain any documentation or information which the 
HFSRB or Illinois Department of Public Health find pertinent to this subsection.  
 

4. If, during a given calendar year, an applicant submits more than one application for permit, the 
documentation provided with the prior applications may be utilized to fulfill the information 
requirements of this criterion.  In such instances, the applicant shall attest that the information 
was previously provided, cite the project number of the prior application, and certify that no 
changes have occurred regarding the information that has been previously provided.  The 
applicant is able to submit amendments to previously submitted information, as needed, to 
update and/or clarify data 
 
All licensure and accreditation information required with this Attachment 11 is attached and the 
applicants are not relying on a previously filed application. 

 
5. A listing of all health care facilities owned or operated by the applicant, including licensing, and 

certification if applicable. 
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Illinois Hospitals owned and operated by the applicants. 

Facility Location License 
No. DNV Accreditation No.  

Advocate Christ Medical 
Center 4440 West 95th St, Oak Lawn, IL 60453 315 PRJC-435588-2012-MSL-USA 

Advocate Condell Medical 
Center 

801 South Milwaukee Ave, Libertyville, IL 
60048 5579 PRJC-492361-2013- AST-USA 

Advocate Good Samaritan 
Hospital 3815 Highland Ave, Downers Grove, IL 60515 3384 PRJC-369029-2012-MSL-USA 

Advocate Good Shepherd 
Hospital 450 West Highway 22, Barrington, IL 60010 3475 PRJC-369027-2012-MSL-USA 

Advocate Illinois Masonic 
Medical Center 836 West Wellington Ave, Chicago, IL 60657 5165 PRJC-529782-2015-AST-USA 

Advocate Lutheran General 
Hospital 1775 Dempster St, Park Ridge, IL 60068 4796 PRJC-369033-2012-MSL-USA 

Advocate Sherman Hospital 1425 North Randall Rd, Elgin, IL 60123 5884 PRJC-496379-2013-MSL-USA 

Advocate South Suburban 
Hospital 

17800 South Kedzie Ave, Hazel Crest, IL 
60429 4697 PRJC-409982-2012-MSL-USA 

Advocate Trinity Hospital 2320 East 93rd St, Chicago, IL 60617 4176 PRJC-408213-2012-MSL-USA 

      

Additionally, AHHC has ownership interest of 50% or more in the following licensed health care facilities 

Facility Location License 
No.  

Joint Commission 
Accreditation No/ 
Accreditation Association for 
Ambulatory Health Care, Inc. 

Dreyer Ambulatory Surgery 
Center 1220 N. Highland Ave, Aurora, IL 7001779 AAAHC 
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Criterion 1110.110(b) & (d) 
 

PURPOSE OF PROJECT 
 

7. Document that the project will provide health services that improve the health care or well-being of the market area 
population to be served.   

 
8. Define the planning area or market area, or other relevant area, per the applicant’s definition. 

 
9. Identify the existing problems or issues that need to be addressed as applicable and appropriate for the project.   

 
10. Cite the sources of the documentation. 

 
11. Detail how the project will address or improve the previously referenced issues, as well as the population’s health 

status and well-being. 

 
12. Provide goals with quantified and measurable objectives, with specific timeframes that relate to achieving the stated 

goals as appropriate. 

 
For projects involving modernization, describe the conditions being upgraded, if any.  For facility projects, include statements 
of the age and condition of the project site, as well as regulatory citations, if any.  For equipment being replaced, include 
repair and maintenance records. 
 

 
1. Document that the project will provide health services that improve the health care or well-

being of the market area population to be served  
 

The purpose of this project is to provide enhanced access and lower cost of care to patients by 
developing a Cardiovascular ASTC that establishes an onsite cardiac cath lab that will provide invasive 
cardiovascular and other vascular procedures.  This would include non-emergency diagnostic cardiac 
catheterization procedures, and non-complex elective procedures to open blocked arteries, known as 
percutaneous coronary intervention, or PCI.  This cath lab will also include implementation/explant of 
cardiac devices such as pacemakers, and insertion of a catheter to measure pressures in the heart 
used for heart failure patients (swan ganz catheter). We will strictly follow CMS guidelines to which 
types of procedures can safely be performed in this ATSC setting.     

 
This project will include primary care and cardiology physician offices, imaging, cardiac diagnostic 
testing, and procedural capabilities all in one convenient location, close to where Advocate Health 
patients live and work. The proposed project will meet the current and future needs of the applicants’ 
patients and community for access to high-quality, cost efficient, primary, and cardiovascular care by 
co-locating these Advocate Medical Group physicians and outpatient services.    
 
The project is to develop a facility that will allow procedures that are appropriate for an ASTC to be 
performed in a setting that is demonstrated to be less costly and more convenient for patients and their 
families.   
 
The benefits of establishment of an ambulatory cardiac catheterization service in an ASTC facility 
include:   
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A. Increased access to Cardiovascular services 
These Advocate Medical Group services will be in partnership with Advocate Good Samaritan 
Hospital to increase access to Cardiovascular services to provide a full continuum of care to patients 
living in the DuPage and western suburbs. 

Advocate Good Samaritan Hospital is a leader in Cardiovascular services offering comprehensive CV 
services within the community and surrounding suburbs. Good Samaritan has received National 
recognition as a top Cardiology Hospital in the World and recognized by Health Grades as one of 
America’s 100 Best Hospitals for Cardiac Care and Coronary Intervention for the last 3 years. This 
recognition demonstrates the high quality and clinical outcomes provided by Advocate and the 
physicians that provide care to this service area. 

Cardiovascular services have significantly increased at Good Samaritan Hospital, including the 
growing volume of more complex, higher acuity Cardiovascular procedures being performed in the 
Cardiac Cath lab. This includes valve replacement and complex ablation procedures that require 
multiple resources such as anesthesia, open heart surgeons and cardiac imaging (echo) during the 
procedure. These higher acuity procedures are longer in duration, resulting in access challenges for 
the daily schedule. Performing lower acuity, low risk procedures in an ATSC would increase access 
for the higher acuity procedures in the cath lab by shifting these low-risk cases to the ATSC, at a 
lower cost to the patient. It would then open capacity at the hospital to accommodate the growing 
volume of structural heart and EP procedures. This project will increase capacity needed due to the 
high utilization of the cardiac catheterization labs at Advocate Good Samaritan Hospital. 

B. Increased access to Cardiology providers and timely services/preventative services 

The Advocate Medical Cardiology Group has increased and has developed processes for improved 
navigation for patients to schedule testing and clinic visits quickly. EMR enhancements have 
allowed AMG providers to see patient referrals on the same day and view all orders to cardiology 
and cardiology testing. Historically the patient would need to get a paper or electronic order and 
try to navigate through a complex system themselves to get scheduled with a provider or schedule 
for testing. These EMR enhancements allow the clinicians to navigate patient care and to increase 
the number of patients in the clinics, testing and downstream cath/EP procedures. This has 
resulted in more timely care and enhanced experience for our patients. 

The Fast Track Program is one example of providing cardiac evaluation and clinical services for low-
risk chest pain patients in this outpatient location. These patients will be evaluated by an advanced 
clinical provider and receive the necessary cardiac diagnostic and ancillary testing as part of this 
visit and receive results before they leave.   

The Heart Scan CT screening has been an effective tool to identify cardiac disease early before a 
debilitating cardiac event. Patients needing follow up testing and procedures can be seen quickly. 
They may be referred to a Cardiologist for evaluation, outpatient cardiology diagnostic or imaging 
services, or the Fast track Program. This is a type of patient that might get an elective cath 
procedure in the ATSC.  
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C. Higher satisfaction for patients and providers 

An ASTC/Cardiac cath service in an ambulatory location translates to higher patient and physician 
satisfaction for the appropriate patients in a care delivery setting that is accessible and convenient. 
These factors combine to provide better continuity of care in a high-quality lower cost setting and 
improve timely access to outpatient care.  

This facility will provide patients who reside in the DuPage area and recognize Advocate Health as 
their preferred provider for healthcare services, access to an ASTC facility for their CV procedures. 
This facility would allow patients to maintain their current healthcare relationships which focuses 
on meeting their needs while staying close to home.  
 
This ASTC will provide an ambulatory healthcare setting that treats low risk patients that need 
elective cardiac cath and vascular procedures, such as noncomplex angiograms, intervention, and 
workup for structural heart procedures and elective surgeries.  The ATSC will provide patients a 
more time efficient and comforting experience than a hospital setting due to not having their 
procedures delayed in order to provide emergent and urgent procedures. Because of the shift in 
low acuity elective procedures, this will also allow for improved access in the hospital for more 
lengthy, high acuity procedures requiring multiple resources such as anesthesia and surgeons.   
 
This facility will also be in the same building with Advocate Medical Group (AMG) primary care 
providers and Cardiologists in the Medical Office building.  The proposed Medical Office building 
components will include physician clinic space, cardiac diagnostics, lab, and imaging. This will 
increase the satisfaction of these physicians by creating a more efficient operating model that 
streamlines processes and eliminates scheduling delays due to emergency or trauma patients. 
Patients will have coordinated care starting with primary care and referral to a cardiology 
specialist who can test and treat in the same environment. 
 

D. Cost Savings: ASTCs can generate significant savings for patients, employers, and payers 

With the addition of cardiac diagnostics and interventions to CMS’s ambulatory surgery center 
(ASC) reimbursement list in recent years, cardiovascular programs can now provide cardiovascular 
procedures across multiple sites on the care continuum, such as an ASTC or office-based lab (OBL) 
in a lower cost setting to patients.  
Changes in payer support, technological advances and care redesign enable care to shift 
procedures to the ambulatory setting and deliver care in lower-acuity and lower-cost settings for 
appropriate patients. 
 
2. Define the planning area or market area. 
The project is planned to serve the residents of the Western Suburbs. The primary market area is 
defined by a ten-mile radius of the surgery center location as shown in the map below. 

One hundred percent (100%) of the committed cardiovascular catheterization/surgical cases for 
this proposed project are currently being performed in the operating rooms at Advocate hospitals. 
Only procedures from within the defined market area zip codes were used to develop these 
estimates.  

In accordance with 77 Illinois Admin Code Section 1110.235© (2)(8), we have included a list of all 
zip code areas in the GSA that are located within a 10-mile radius of the proposed site of the ASTC. 
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Zipcode Town 2022 Population 2027 Population 

60137 Glen Ellyn 38,593 38,155 

60139 Glendale Heights 32,728 32,224 

60148 Lombard 53,527 53,372 

60181 Villa Park 29,668 29,618 

60185 West Chicago 34,843 34,300 

60187 Wheaton 30,084 29,874 

60188 Carol Stream 43,452 42,604 

60189 Wheaton 29,854 29,456 

60190 Winfield 11,151 11,305 

60440 Bolingbrook 51,291 51,334 

60490 Bolingbrook 21,863 21,707 

60502 Aurora 23,541 23,679 

60503 Aurora 16,906 17,089 

60504 Aurora 38,434 38,174 

60505 Aurora 56,550 54,903 

60510 Batavia 28,253 27,959 

60514 Clarendon Hills 10,565 10,389 

60515 Downers Grove 29,719 29,345 

60516 Downers Grove 29,092 28,726 

60517 Woodridge 32,606 32,056 

60523 Oak Brook 10,040 10,106 

60532 Lisle 28,529 28,320 

60540 Naperville 44,128 43,585 

60555 Warrenville 14,861 15,348 

60559 Westmont 24,048 24,076 

60561 Darien 22,615 22,115 

60563 Naperville 38,498 39,177 

60564 Naperville 47,067 47,342 

60565 Naperville 39,857 39,209 

 TOTAL 912,363 905,547 
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Although the total population in the broader service area is anticipated to be consistent over the next 
5 years, the growth in the 65+ population is projected to increase by over 15% from 139,566 to 
160,685; an increase of 21,000 older residents.  

Age Group    2022 2027 
0-19     237,819    227,627  
20-44     299,266    298,555  
45-64     235,717    218,691  
65+     139,566    160,685  
TOTAL   912,363 905,547 

 

3. Identify the existing problems or issues that need to be addressed.  
 

A. Increased Cardiovascular Disease 
Cardiovascular disease remains the leading cause of disease and death across the globe according to 
the CDC. Access to health care, both preventive care and treatment, is crucial for cardiovascular 
health. Research shows that by improving health care access to and affordability of cardiovascular 
treatment and decrease barriers to care, population-level cardiovascular disease (CVD) risk may be 
reduced. (Source: AHA) 

The Advisory Board, a national consulting firm, had outlined that the prevalence of cardiovascular 
disease and related comorbidities is already high and will continue to increase over the next decade. 
This is driven by a growing and aging population that is amassing more chronic conditions. 

• In 2010, the estimated US population diagnosed with atrial fibrillation was 5.2M, and by 2030, 
that number is expected to more than double to an estimated 12.1M. 

• There is a projected 54% increase in adult diabetes from 2017 to 2045. 

• There is a projected 20% increase in the number of individuals who will have a stroke from 
2012-2030.  

• This amounts to heart disease remaining the leading cause of death in the US, with 239.8 
deaths per 100k people attributed to CV disease in 2020.  

• The total number of CV-attributable deaths continues to grow as the size of the older 
population grows, but this is an age-adjusted rate. It had been decreasing each year until 2020, 
when it increased by 4.6%. That increase was fueled by COVID-19, both directly (as the virus 
attacked circulatory systems) and indirectly (as people with CV risk factors avoided care in the 
early days of the pandemic).  

Sg2, consulting firm, stated that the growth of cardiovascular disease is fueled by not only the aging of 
the population, but also a concerning rise in disease onset and acute events in patients younger than 
45 with hypertension impacting nearly 50% of the population. The aging population, along with 
sedentary lifestyles, obesity and diabetes and increased comorbidity, continues to drive an increase in 
cardiovascular disease. 
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Forecasted growth and shifts in the way care is delivered requires a new approach. Sg2 projected that 
nationally, the need for outpatient cardiovascular services will increase by 22% over the next 5 years, 
peripheral vascular disease by 27% and diseases of the venous system by 24%. Demand for 
endovascular procedures is expected to grow by 30%, with over half of these procedures expected to 
be performed in office-based settings. The demand for cardiovascular imaging is also projected to 
grow CT by 11%, Nuclear Medicine by 31% and outpatient cardiac diagnostics such as Echo by 31%.   
 

The Advocate DuPage market has identified health equity needs for the South Asian community and 
currently provide outreach for education and preventative case for this patient population.  

Research has shown: 

• South Asians develop coronary artery disease, on average, up to 10 years earlier than the 
general population. 

• 25% of heart attacks occur under the age of 40 for young South Asians, and 50% occur under 
age 50. 

• There is a 40% higher chance of mortality from heart attacks among South Asians than the 
average population. 

• According to a WHO report, by 2020, South Asians will comprise 25% of the world’s population, 
but will suffer over 50% of the world’s cardiovascular deaths. 

 

With over 50,000 adult South Asians in the DuPage market, there are plans to expand Advocate’s South 
Asian Cardiac clinics, to support the primary care and cardiology patients at this location for easier 
access.  

The patients referred to and using this facility are those that currently receive hospital-based cardiac 
catheterization or surgical care at Advocate Good Samaritan Hospital. Internal analysis identified that a 
percentage of patients would be well served with an ambulatory surgery center option.   

This project offers convenient, lower cost ambulatory options in a market that has historically focused 
on hospital-only care allowing Advocate Health to improve access to and affordability of healthcare 
across populations. Creating new, lower-cost, convenient access for elective Cardiac cath and vascular 
procedures is especially important in improving access for Advocate patients in this service area.  

 
B. Meet the community need for access to non-hospital care  

Advances in technology, safety and early diagnosis for low-risk procedures will continue to create 
opportunities to shift more care to the outpatient setting.  With medical advances such as the shift in 
access to the radial artery from femoral artery, patients no longer need to lay flat for many hours post 
procedure. Radial access also decreases complications such as bleeding.  

The physicians that will practice at the ASTC are significant providers who perform a high volume of 
procedural cases for people that live in this community and the patients have a long-established pattern 
of coming to Advocate Health for their comprehensive care. This ambulatory cardiac cath service will 
allow these patients who need elective procedures to choose this location without disrupting continuity 
of their care.  
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C. ASTC Charity Care Plan 
 

This proposed ASTC/Cardiac Cath service will follow the Advocate Health charity care policy and 
provide services to Medicaid and charity care patients of all ages.  

AAH’s proposed, non-profit ASTC will follow the same charity care policies as Advocate Illinois 
hospitals committed to serving the entire market’s needs.  

 
4. Cite the sources of the documentation. 

 
Information used in this application included reports submitted to the State and various credentialing 
organizations, AAH Strategic and business plans, analysis done by external planners, architects, and 
engineers. Physician experts were consulted as well as independent professionals in relevant 
disciplines.  
  

• Sg2 - Impact of Change data, market estimates and publications - 2023  
• Advisory Board 
• Advocate Aurora internal patient care statistics and business planning  
• Illinois Department of Public Health Hospital Licensing Code 
• Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board (HFSRB) Administrative Rules 
• Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board (HFSRB) Ambulatory Surgical Treatment 

Center Facility Data Profiles – 2022   
• IHA Compdata 
• Esri Population 2023 and the US Census Bureau 
• American College of Cardiology 
• Insurance documents 

 
5. Detail how the project will address or improve the previously referenced issues, as well as 

the populations health status and well-being 
 

The primary purpose of this project is to meet the current and future needs of this community by 
offering a high quality, cost effective elective outpatient cardiac catheterization and vascular 
procedures for the appropriate patients and create additional access at Advocate Good Samaritan 
Hospital for high acuity and complex cardiovascular cases. 
 
The addition of the ASTC/Cardiac Cath will further support the initiatives of the Cardiovascular 
Institute at Advocate Good Samaritan Hospital. The program highlights are provided in Attachment 
12, Exhibit 1. This Includes programs such as prevention, access, screening, diagnosis, treatment, and 
chronic disease management for conditions like hypertension, heart valve disease, coronary artery 
disease, arrhythmias, lipids, cardiometabolic disease, and heart failure.              
 
The proposed ASTC will implement a charity care policy to mirror the charity care policies of AAH. This 
includes seeing Medicare, Medicaid, and charity care patients. This proposed ASTC continues building 
the necessary future infrastructure for care coordination and aims to improve access to low-cost 
options for Advocate patients and physicians in this community. 
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6. Provide goals for the proposed project.  
 

The proposed Project allows for Advocate Medical Group to continue providing quality health care to 
residents in its geographic area. The goals for this project include:  

• Improving access to care in a non-hospital setting for cardiac catheterization procedures for 
existing Advocate patients. Cardiac cath utilization in the ASTC is projected to reach 249 cases 
equaling 300 procedures by the second year of operation.   

• Providing increased access to Primary Care and Cardiology Advocate Medical Group clinical 
providers.  This will include ancillary services that are needed as part of the patient’s clinic 
visit allowing for collaboration and referrals between providers and testing completed at one 
location. 

• Offering a lower cost setting for patients in the community needing access to outpatient CV 
testing, screenings, and health care.  

• Creating a fast-track cardiac service for patients with non-life-threatening heart conditions 
such as palpitations, chest pain, hypertension, and indigestion or patients with a family 
history.   

• Occupancy of the new facility to be completed by May 1, 2026 
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ALTERNATIVES 
 

1)  Identify ALL the alternatives to the proposed project:   
 

Alternative options must include:  
 

A) Proposing a project of greater or lesser scope and cost.  
 

B) Pursuing a joint venture or similar arrangement with one or more providers or entities to 
meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes; developing alternative settings 
to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes.  

 
C) Utilizing other health care resources that are available to serve all or a portion of the 

population proposed to be served by the project; and 
 
D)           Provide the reasons why the chosen alternative was selected. 

 
2) Documentation shall consist of a comparison of the project to alternative options.  The comparison 

shall address issues of total costs, patient access, quality, and financial benefits in both the short-term 
(within one to three years after project completion) and long-term.  This may vary by project or situation. 
FOR EVERY ALTERNATIVE IDENTIFIED, THE TOTAL PROJECT COST AND THE REASONS 
WHY THE ALTERNATIVE WAS REJECTED MUST BE PROVIDED.   

 
3) The applicant shall provide empirical evidence, including quantified outcome data that verifies 

improved quality of care, as available. 
 
 
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 13, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE 
OF THE APPLICATION FORM. 
 

 
The proposed project is being developed to increase access to outpatient Cardiovascular services for 
Advocate Health patients living in the DuPage service area by establishing a cardiovascular ambulatory 
surgical treatment center for this region.  Additionally, the project is designed to increase access and 
coordination of primary and cardiology clinical care and outpatient cardiology diagnostic services. 

The applicants considered a number of alternatives to improve outpatient cardiovascular services to 
support the needs of this community. The following options were evaluated in the development of 
this ambulatory surgery center and other clinical services to determine the location, size, and scope 
needed for the residents of this service area.  

Alternative #1: Maintain current services: (Cost: $0)  

Maintaining current services is not an option as it does not keep pace with the changes needed in 
health care to meet community demand for improved access, lower costs, and patient experience in a 
lower acuity environment.  Maintaining current services would not provide the access needed with 
growing demand for care in the acute care setting resulting in capacity issues and need to shift to 
lower acuity care to ambulatory settings.  Population trends in the community demonstrate aging 
population as well as increases in co-morbidities with cardio-metabolic disease including 
hypertension, diabetes, hyperlipidemia, and recently long COVID disease.  This option would 
negatively impact the ability to continue to provide the access needed for Cardiovascular services in 
this community. These needs cannot be met if the status quo is maintained. 
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Alternative #2: Utilizing other health care facilities to serve the population (Cost: $ No construction 
cost but would experience loss of patients and lack of continuity of care.)  

As one of the highest quality programs in this region, Advocate Good Samaritan is viewed as a significant 
resource for Cardiovascular services in this region. 

Other health care facilities are also facing capacity issues and transfer to another site of care when 
hospitals are at capacity can create delays in care.  Delays in care adversely impacts heart-health 
outcomes.  Many of the residents have an existing relationship with Advocate providers and are looking 
for a high quality, cost appropriate setting for outpatient procedures. The physicians seeing these 
patients are principally located nearby and are on staff at Advocate Good Samaritan Hospital. Patients 
in this community have a long-established relationship with these physicians for their comprehensive 
care and requiring use of other facilities could result in delays in access to care, repeat tests and disrupt 
continuity of care.  

Alternative #3: Develop a Project of lesser scope and cost (Cost: $36,000,000) 

This option to develop an ASTC in a facility where the Cardiology physicians that will have clinic offices 
and the outpatient cardiac diagnostics at this location will enhance the continuity of care of 
preventative and diagnostic services needed by these patients.  To develop these clinic offices and 
outpatient services at another location would not provide the continuum of care and would be more 
costly to develop another location in the future.  

A Project of lessor scope such as developing just the ASTC without the diagnostic cardiac services and 
the clinic services would not support the needs of the community or achieve the goal to provide a 
coordinated patient experience at lower cost.  This site will support the full continuum of ambulatory 
cardiac care including clinic office visits, non-invasive and low risk invasive cardiac diagnostic testing 
and treatment in the ASTC.  This is a unique opportunity to develop a new care model to better serve 
our patients on an ambulatory basis.  The project scope, inclusive of a shift of lower acuity cases to 
the ASTC with a cardiac catheterization lab supports patients in the community who need early access 
for acute and complex care at the hospital by increasing hospital capacity. 
 

Alternative #4: Acquire or joint venture with an existing ASTC (Cost: Unknown)   

Although a JV might lower the upfront investment cost to Advocate Health Care, there are no surgery 
centers in this service area that have expressed interest in being acquired or have the ability to 
support a cardiac catheterization lab within the ASTC.  Additionally, the financial and quality policies 
of Advocate Health Care would be a requirement of any facility owned by Advocate and must align 
with the high patient outcome metrics and standards.  

Alternative #5: Establish an outpatient Cardiac Cath service in a Ambulatory Surgery Treatment 
Center including Outpatient Cardiology diagnostic services and Physician clinics (Cost: $52,208,999) - 
Project selected 

This option was selected as it provides an outpatient location for appropriate elective cardiac 
catheterization and vascular surgical procedures for Advocate patients in the service area.  This 
project will achieve the key reasons for developing this ambulatory surgery treatment center at this 
location that include: 
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• Provides patients access to a high-quality, lower cost care in an appropriate setting for 
outpatient procedures while maintaining current health care relationships in their service 
area.  This will increase access and patient satisfaction, focusing on the needs of the patient. 

• Increases physician satisfaction with an efficient operating model, streamlines processes and 
improves scheduling without trauma or emergency patients. 

• Capital costs are lower to build an ASTC compared with expanding the hospital cardiac 
catheterization and operating room suite. This will increase capacity at the hospital to provide 
increased access for the higher acuity, complex cases. 

• Offers outpatient cardiovascular diagnostic services at the same location.  These medical office 
building services provide clinics and ancillary services increasing continuity of care and access 
to high quality medical services in the service area. 
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Criterion 1110.120 - Project Scope, Utilization, and Unfinished/Shell Space 
 
READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following information: 

SIZE OF PROJECT: 
 

5. Document that the amount of physical space proposed for the proposed project is necessary and not excessive.  
This must be a narrative and it shall include the basis used for determining the space and the methodology 
applied. 

 
6. If the gross square footage exceeds the BGSF/DGSF standards in Appendix B, justify the discrepancy by 

documenting one of the following: 
 

a. Additional space is needed due to the scope of services provided, justified by clinical or operational needs, 
as supported by published data or studies and certified by the facility’s Medical Director. 

 
b. The existing facility’s physical configuration has constraints or impediments and requires an architectural 

design that delineates the constraints or impediments. 
 

c. The project involves the conversion of existing space that results in excess square footage. 
 

d. Additional space is mandated by governmental or certification agency requirements that were not in 
existence when Appendix B standards were adopted. 

 
Provide a narrative for any discrepancies from the State Standard. A table must be provided in the 
following format with Attachment 14. 

 
SIZE OF PROJECT 

DEPARTMENT/SERVICE PROPOSED 
BGSF/DGSF 

STATE STANDARD  DIFFERENCE MET 
STANDARD? 

 
 

    

     
 

 
The project proposes to establish an ASTC with 1 Cardiac Cath procedure room. The project will 
include 4 recovery stations to support the operating/procedure room.  
As outlined in Section 1110 of the Administrative Code, the state standard for operating rooms in an 
ASTC is 2,075-2,750 gross square feet per operating room.  
 
The gross square footage of the proposed ASTC/procedure room meet the state standards as outlined 
below. 
 

SIZE OF PROJECT  
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE  PROPOSED 

DGSF  
STATE 
STANDARD   

DIFFERENCE  MET STANDARD?   

Clinical/Reviewable           

ASTC (1 OR room)  2,682 2,075-2750 dgsf/ 
Operating Room  

68 Yes   

PACU/Prep/Recovery (4 rooms)  4,607   NA 
 

 

Imaging – CT (1 Unit)  1,330 1,800 dgft/unit  470 Yes  
Imaging – Nuclear Medicine (1 Unit) 1,585 1,600 dgft/unit  15 Yes  

Imaging – Vascular US (1 Unit)  301 900 dgsf/unit 699 Yes  
Imaging - Vein US (1 Unit)  339 900 dgsf/unit 561 Yes  
Imaging - Echo US (1 Unit)  275 900 dgsf/unit 625 Yes  

#24-008



SIZE OF PROJECT  
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE  PROPOSED 

DGSF  
STATE 
STANDARD   

DIFFERENCE  MET STANDARD?   

Imaging – Stress/Echo US (1 Unit)  384 900 dgsf/unit 516 Yes  
Physician Clinic Exam/Treatment (26 
Rooms)  

12,894 NA  -  NA   
Fast Track Cardiology Clinic (2 rooms) 826 NA  -  NA   
Holter (1 room) 427 NA  -  NA   
Well Lab (1 private room, 2 open bays) 821 NA - NA  
TOTAL CLINICAL  26,471     
      
Non-Clinical/ Non-Reviewable       
Public, Circulation, Staff Support, Building 
Support  

17,435 NA  -  NA   
TOTAL NON-CLINICAL  17,435     

 
 
Clinical Components   
 
ASTC 
The proposed square footage of 2,682 DGSF for the OR room, and 4,607 DGSF for 
PACU/prep/recovery are below the State guidelines for ASTC service areas and the necessary support 
space for these services.  
  
ASTC Operating Rooms  
The proposed project includes Operating Rooms (1 Room) and support spaces with 2,682 DGSF.  
  
PACU/Prep/Recovery  
The 4 prep and recovery rooms in the proposed project includes PACU (1 Room) and Prep/Recovery 
Phase 2 (3 Rooms), and support spaces with 4,607 DGSF  

 
Outpatient Imaging Services 
The proposed project includes diagnostic imaging services that will be available to clinic patients and 
those receiving care at the Fast Track Cardiology Clinic service.  
The Imaging Center will include the following types of diagnostic imaging equipment:  

• 1 CT scan unit 
• 1 Nuclear Medicine unit   
• 1 Vascular Ultrasound unit 
• 1 Vein Ultrasound unit 
• 1 Echo Ultrasound unit 
• 1 Echo/Stress Ultrasound unit 
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The proposed square footage of 1,330 DGSF for CT, 1,585 DGSF for Nuclear Medicine, 275 DGSF for 
Echo Ultrasound, 384 for Stress/Echo Ultrasound, 301 DGSF for Vascular Ultrasound, and 339 DFSF for 
Vein Ultrasound are below the State guidelines for imaging equipment and the necessary support 
space for these services.  
 
Physician Office Space and Other Cardiology Diagnostic Services  
 
The proposed project includes physician offices for Advocate Medical Group (AMG) physicians.   
Physicians in the following specialties will be included in the proposed project: Primary care (13 rms), 
and Cardiology (13 rms). This physician office space is being developed to include new providers and 
relocate many of the primary care and specialty physicians from current offices located close to this 
project.  
  
There will be 3 rooms in this project for Cardiology Diagnostic services. This space will include the Fast 
Track Cardiology Clinic and Holter service to patients as part of their examinations. The space was 
developed based on AAH guidelines for primary and specialty provider offices to include 12,894 DGSF 
for the exam rooms and 1,253 DGSF for the Cardiology Diagnostic services.   
  
There are no State Guidelines for square footage of the examination rooms for these type of clinic 
services.   
  
Well-Patient Laboratory (Blood Draw)  
The Well Lab will include 1 private bay and 2 open bays for well-patient blood draw with 821 DGSF.   
 
There are no State Guidelines for square footage for Laboratory Blood Draw.   
 
Non-Clinical Components   
 
The Non-clinical components of the project total 17,435 DGSF of space.  
This includes staff support space, storage, public waiting, circulation, building support, lobby. 
 
There are no State Guidelines for the non-clinical components of the project. 
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PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION: 
 
This criterion is applicable only to projects or portions of projects that involve services, functions or equipment 
for which HFSRB has established utilization standards or occupancy targets in 77 Ill. Adm. Code 1100.  
 
Document that in the second year of operation, the annual utilization of the service or equipment shall meet or exceed the 
utilization standards specified in 1110.Appendix B.  A narrative of the rationale that supports the projections must be 
provided.  
 
A table must be provided in the following format with Attachment 15. 
 

UTILIZATION 
 DEPT./ 

SERVICE 
HISTORICAL 
UTILIZATION 

(PATIENT DAYS) 
(TREATMENTS) 

ETC. 

PROJECTED 
UTILIZATION 

STATE 
STANDARD 

MEET 
STANDARD? 

YEAR 1      
YEAR 2      
      

 

 
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 15, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE 
APPLICATION FORM. 

 
 
The clinical services in the proposed project will be provided by Advocate Medical Group (AMG) and 
will not be hospital-based services.   
The includes the following services for which the Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board 
has established standards: 
 
ASTC 

• 1 Cath/ASTC room 
• 4 PACU/prep/recovery rooms 

 
Diagnostic Imaging 

• 1 CT scan unit 
• 1 Nuclear Medicine unit   
• 1 Vascular Ultrasound unit 
• 1 Vein Ultrasound unit 
• 1 Echo Ultrasound unit 
• 1 Echo/Stress Ultrasound unit 
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ASTC/Cardiac Cath 
 
A total of 207 outpatient cardiac cath/surgical cases or 311 surgical hours have been committed to 
this ASTC in year 1 by physicians on the medical staff at Advocate Good Samaritan Hospital. 
The projected utilization is outlined for years 1 and 2 in the chart below.   
 
The 311 Surgical hours for year 1 are based on the physician case referrals to the ASTC and support 
the need for 1 operating room in the project.  
The referral letters from the physicians that will be performing outpatient cardiac cath/surgical 
procedures at this location are include in Attachment 25, Exhibit 1.  
 

          

DEPT./SERVICE PROJECTED UTILIZATION (PATIENT 
DAYS) (TREATMENTS)  STATE STANDARD MEET 

STANDARD? 
  Year 1 Year 2     

Operating Rooms (1 rm) 

207 Cardiac Cath 
cases 

 249 Cardiac Cath 
cases    

250 Procedures 300 Procedures   

311 hours  374 hours 1,500 hrs per 
operating/procedure rm Yes 

 
As a newly established ASTC, there is no historic utilization for the facility. The projections for 
Operating Room in year 2 were based on the historical growth for outpatient Cardiac Cath and other 
Cardiovascular procedures at Good Samaritan Hospital, the Sg2 Impact of change for this service area 
and the outpatient growth forecasts from the Advisory Board. Growth across the cardiovascular 
service line is due to an aging and sicker patient population as well as ongoing cardiovascular 
complications from long COVID disease. 
 

 
Source: Advisory Board 2023 
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The procedures that will be performed in this ASTC will be outpatient cardiac cath and other 
Cardiovascular/cardiology procedures CMS approved to be performed in an ASTC setting/site of care. 
Based on the projected utilization in year 2, the surgical and procedural hours support the need for 1 
operating room.  
 
Outpatient Imaging Services 
 
Outpatient imaging projections are based on the historic utilization and forecasted growth in the 
service area. The utilization at the site is projected to grow as it provides accessible diagnostic services 
to residents in the area.   
 

          

DEPT./SERVICE PROJECTED UTILIZATION 
(TREATMENTS/VISITS)  

STATE 
STANDARD 

MEET 
STANDARD? 

  Year 1 Year 2     

CT Scan 2,032 2,235 7,000/unit Yes 

Nuclear Medicine  828 910 2,000/unit Yes 

Vascular US  720 900 3,100/unit Yes 

Vein Treatment US 200 300 3,100/unit Yes 

Echo US 1,723 1,895 3,100/unit Yes 

Stress/Echo US  442 486 3,100/unit Yes 

 
• CT scans and Nuclear Medicine visits are imaging services that are ordered by both Primary 

care physicians and Cardiologists.  
• Vascular ultrasound is an imaging test providers use to evaluate blood flow in arteries and 

veins of the arms, neck, and legs.   
• The vein visits are clinic visits using the Ultrasound as part of the visit with the vascular 

provider to shrink varicose veins. 
• Echo visits include testing with ultrasound of the heart. This ultrasound looks at the chambers, 

valves, and nearby blood vessels of the heart. 
• A stress echocardiogram is a test done to assess how well the heart works under stress. 

Equipment used are cardiac ultrasound (echo) with a treadmill. If patient is unable to use a 
treadmill, medication will be given in lieu of exercise. 

 
Based on the projected utilization in year 2, the standards have been met for all of the Imaging 
modalities as these are represent the clinical reviewable services in the project. 
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Other Outpatient Diagnostic Services and Physician Clinic office Visits 
 
There are other clinical services which will be provided at the site that do have a state utilization 
standard.  Provided below are the projected utilization based on the number of providers in the 
building and the need in the service area. 

  UTILIZATION - Visits 

DEPT./SERVICE PROJECTED UTILIZATION  

  Year 1 Year 2 

Physician Office visits -PCP 15,956 17,889 

Physician Office visits - Cardiology 4,326  5,829  

Fast Track Cardiology Clinic 150 180 

Holter/Event Monitor  150 180 

Well-Patient Lab 14,160 14,160 

   

 

• The Fast-Track Cardiology clinic service as outlined in Attachment 31, will be a “one stop shop” 
providing evaluation and clinical services for low-risk chest pain patients in an outpatient 
location. These patients will be evaluated by an advanced clinical provider and receive the 
necessary cardiac diagnostic and ancillary testing as part of this visit and receive results before 
they leave.   

• Holter exams include the implementation and education to provide this wearable device 
monitoring heart rhythm. The patient wears for 24-30 days. 
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UNFINISHED OR SHELL SPACE: 
 
Provide the following information: 
 

1. Total gross square footage (GSF) of the proposed shell space. 
 

2. The anticipated use of the shell space, specifying the proposed GSF to be allocated to each department, 
area, or function. 

 
3. Evidence that the shell space is being constructed due to: 

a. Requirements of governmental or certification agencies; or 
b. Experienced increases in the historical occupancy or utilization of those areas proposed to 

occupy the shell space. 
 
       4.  Provide: 

a. Historical utilization for the area for the latest five-year period for which data is available; and 
b. Based upon the average annual percentage increase for that period, projections of future 

utilization of the area through the anticipated date when the shell space will be placed into 
operation. 

 
 
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 16, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE 
APPLICATION FORM. 
 

 
 
Not Applicable – no shell space. 
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ASSURANCES: 
 
Submit the following: 
 

1. Verification that the applicant will submit to HFSRB a CON application to develop and utilize the shell 
space, regardless of the capital thresholds in effect at the time or the categories of service involved. 

 
2. The estimated date by which the subsequent CON application (to develop and utilize the subject shell 

space) will be submitted; and 
 

3. The anticipated date when the shell space will be completed and placed into operation. 
  
 
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 17, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE 
APPLICATION FORM. 
 

 
 
Not Applicable – no shell space. 
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E. Criterion 1110.225 - Cardiac Catheterization 
 
1. Applicants proposing to establish, expand and/or modernize the Cardiac Catheterization category of 

service must submit the following information. 
 
2. Indicate bed capacity changes by Service:        Indicate # of beds changed by action(s): 
 

 
Category of Service 

# Existing 
Rooms 

# Proposed 
Rooms 

                           
  Cardiac Catheterization    

 
0 

 
1 

 
3. READ the applicable review criteria outlined below and submit the required    
 documentation for the criteria:  
 

 
1. Criterion 1110.225(a), Peer Review 

 
 Read the criterion and submit a detailed explanation of your peer review program. 

 
 2. Criterion 1110. 225(b), Establishment or Expansion of Cardiac Catheterization Service 
 

 Read the criterion and, if applicable, submit the following information: 
 
   a. A map (on 8 1/2" x 11" paper) showing the location of the other hospitals providing cardiac 

catheterization services within the planning area. 
 
   b. The number of cardiac catheterizations performed for the last 12 months at each of the 

hospitals shown on the map. 
 
   c. Provide the number of patients transferred directly from the applicant’s hospital to another 

facility for cardiac catheterization services in each of the last three years. 
 

3. Criterion 1110.225(c), Unnecessary Duplication of Services 
 

 Read the criterion and, if applicable, submit the following information. 
 
   a. Copies of the letter sent to all facilities within the planning area that currently provide cardiac 

catheterization.  This letter must contain a description of the proposed project and a request 
that the other facility quantify the impact of the proposal on its program. 

 
   b. Copies of the responses received from the facilities to which the letter was sent. 
 
 4.  Criterion 1110.225(d), Modernization of Existing Cardiac Catheterization Laboratories 
 
   Read the criterion and, if applicable, submit the number of cardiac catheterization procedures 

performed for the latest 12 months. 
 
  5.  Criterion 1110.225(e), Support Services 
 
   Read the criterion and indicate on a service-by-service basis which of the listed services are available 

on a 24-hour basis and explain how any services not available on a 24-hour basis will be available 
when needed. 

 
6.  Criterion 1110.225(f), Laboratory Location 

 
  Read the criterion and, if applicable, submit line drawings showing the location of the proposed 

laboratories.  If the laboratories are not in proximity, explain why. 
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7. Criterion 1110.225(g), Staffing 
 
   Read the criterion and submit a list of names and qualifications of those who will fill the positions 

detailed in this criterion.  Also, provide staffing schedules to show the coverage required by this 
criterion. 

 
8. Criterion 1110.225(h), Continuity of Care 

 
Read the criterion and submit a copy of the fully executed written referral agreement(s). 

 
9. Criterion 1110.225(i), Multi-institutional Variance 

 
Read the criterion and, if applicable, submit the following information: 

 
   a. A copy of a fully executed affiliation agreement between the two facilities involved. 
 
   b. Names and positions of the shared staff at the two facilities. 
 
   c. The volume of open-heart surgeries performed for the latest 12-month period at the 

existing operating program. 
 
   d. A cost comparison between the proposed project and expansion at the existing operating 

program. 
 
   e. The number of cardiac catheterization procedures performed in the last 12 months at the 

operating program. 
 
   f. The number of catheterization laboratories at the operating program. 
 
    g. The projected cardiac catheterization volume at the proposed facility annually for the next 2 

years. 
 
   h. The basis for the above projection. 
 
 
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 22 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE 
APPLICATION FORM. 
 

 
 
The proposed project will include the establishment of a Cardiac Catheterization service to be located 
in the ASTC.  
 
1. Criterion 1110.225(a), Peer Review 

 
 Read the criterion and submit a detailed explanation of your peer review program. 
 

As a leader in cardiovascular services, Advocate Good Samaritan Hospital has a well-established peer 
review process as part of the Cardiology Institute. The ATSC will follow the same culture of safety 
developed at Advocate Good Samaritan Hospital and across all of Advocate Health. Complications will 
be reported through the Origami system in addition to any concerns from staff, physicians, or any 
staff member. Once in Origami, this starts the process of addressing the concern and sending cases for 
peer review. 
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The peer review process at the Naperville ASTC will follow the Advocate Cardiovascular Services Peer 
Review Committee structure.  The process will be associated with the existing cardiac catheterization 
process at Advocate Good Samaritan Hospital.   

The peer review process, Cardiology Quality Committee (CQC) is a representative physician group that 
meets regularly for case review as outlined by Advocate Good Samaritan CQC.  Membership includes 
physicians, patient safety nurses, risk manager, Chief Medical Officer, and content experts.  

Cases are referred for review based on, but not limited to, patient safety reporting, guideline non-
compliance, CMS Quality Measures non-compliance (including other department defined indicators), 
National Cardiovascular Data Registry (NCDR) definition, external referral (i.e. Quality Improvement 
Organization QIO), patient/family concerns, site leadership concerns, and/or nurse/physician referral. 
Safety event reporting is electronically stored, and case review is used for process improvements and 
Physician Practice Evaluation and privileging. This group also regularly reviews data to identify 
troublesome trends needing more intense evaluation. 

The determination of the location of where the cases will be performed will be based on the CMS ASC 
cardiology approved procedure list, clinical assessment, and physician judgement. 

 
2. Criterion 1110. 225(b), Establishment or Expansion of Cardiac Catheterization Service 
 
 Read the criterion and, if applicable, submit the following information: 
 

  a. A map (on 8 1/2" x 11" paper) showing the location of the other hospitals providing cardiac 
catheterization services within the planning area. 

 
  b. The number of cardiac catheterizations performed for the last 12 months at each of the hospitals 

shown on the map. 
 
  c. Provide the number of patients transferred directly from the applicant’s hospital to another facility 

for cardiac catheterization services in each of the last three years. 
 
The ASTC providing cardiac catheterization services will be located in Naperville in HSA Health Service 
Area VII. The map and chart below outline all hospitals providing cardiac catheterization in the 
planning area.  The number of cardiac catheterization procedures performed are included.  
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Hospital City 
Health 
Service 

Area 

Hospital 
Planning 

Area 
County 

Cardiac 
Catheterization   
2022 Procedures  

Advocate Christ Medical Center Oak Lawn 7 A-04 Cook 
                                        

6,045  
 

Evanston Hospital Evanston 7 A-08 Cook 
                                        

3,584  
 

Advent Health Hinsdale Hinsdale 7 A-05 DuPage 
                                        

1,112  
 

Ingalls Memorial Hospital Harvey 7 A-04 Cook 
                                            

671  
 

Northwest Community Hospital Arlington Heights 7 A-07 Cook 
                                        

1,417  
 

Rush Oak Park Hospital, Inc. Oak Park 7 A-06 Cook 
                                            

475  
 

Alexian Brothers Medical Center Elk Grove Village 7 A-07 Cook 
                                        

3,022  
 

Palos Community Hospital Palos Heights 7 A-04 Cook 
                                        

2,002  
 

Advocate Good Samaritan Hospital  Downers Grove 7 A-05 DuPage 
                                        

3,204  
 

NorthShore Glenbrook Hospital Glenview 7 A-08 Cook 
                                            

118  
 

AdventHealth Glen Oaks Glendale Heights 7 A-05 DuPage 
                                            

355  
 

Edward Hospital Naperville 7 A-05 DuPage 
                                        

4,825  
 

Advocate South Suburban Hospital Hazel Crest 7 A-04 Cook 
                                        

1,540  
 

Advocate Lutheran General Hospital  Park Ridge 7 A-07 Cook 
                                        

3,972  
 

Saint Alexius Medical Center Hoffman Estates 7 A-07 Cook 
                                        

1,153  
 

Franciscan Health- Olympia Fields Olympia Fields 7 A-04 Cook 
                                            

800  
 

Northwestern Central DuPage Hospital Winfield 7 A-05 DuPage 
                                        

2,795  
 

Elmhurst Hospital Elmhurst 7 A-05 DuPage 
                                        

4,447  
 

Loyola Health System at Gottlieb Melrose Park 7 A-06 Cook 
                                            

412  
 

AdventHealth La Grange La Grange 7 A-04 Cook 
                                            

206  
 

Presence Saint Francis Hospital Evanston 7 A-08 Cook 
                                            

524  
 

MacNeal Hospital Berwyn 7 A-06 Cook 
                                        

1,466  
 

West Suburban Medical Center Oak Park 7 A-06 Cook 
                                            

614  
 

OSF Little Company of Mary Medical 
Center Evergreen Park 7 A-04 Cook 

                                        
1,153  
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There is only one hospital in the HSA VII Cardiac Catheterization Planning Area that operated at  
less than 200 cardiac cath procedures in 2022, due to the hospital not operating this service 
during construction.  
 
As the proposed project is not a hospital-based facility, there are no patients transferred.  
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3. Criterion 1110.225(c), Unnecessary Duplication of Services 
 
 Read the criterion and, if applicable, submit the following information. 
 

  a. Copies of the letter sent to all facilities within the planning area that currently provide cardiac 
catheterization.  This letter must contain a description of the proposed project and a request that the 
other facility quantify the impact of the proposal on its program. 

 
  b. Copies of the responses received from the facilities to which the letter was sent. 
 

The primary purpose of this project is to increase access and provide an ambulatory option for  
elective cardiac catheterization and vascular procedures. As Cardiovascular services have  
increased at Good Samaritan Hospital, there is a growing volume of more complex, higher 
acuity CV procedures, requiring much longer case times being performed in the Cardiac Cath 
labs.  This has created a need to expand capacity for elective, lower acuity cardiac 
catheterization and vascular procedures so that they can be done on a timely basis.  
 
The number of cardiac catheterization procedures performed at Advocate Good Samaritan 
Hospital in 2022 was 3,204 procedures, averaging over 800 procedures per lab and the number of  
cases and the length of procedure time for many of the high acuity cases has increased. The  
Hospital is operating above 750 cath procedures annually per room and utilization is projected 
to continue to increase.  
 
Good Sam Cath lab volumes have experienced over 16% growth from 2022-2023. Many of these cases 
are ablations, complex PCIs, and structural heart cases including transcatheter valve repairs 
and replacements than can take several hours to complete and need multiple resources. The 
longer the case, the more challenging it is to add additional outpatient elective cases. In 
addition, approximately 40% of our business are very sick inpatients. These patients may 
require devices such as balloon pumps and cardiac assist devices to help their weakened heart 
pump.  
 
This new ASTC with cardiac cath lab will provide an alternative site of care that will improve patient 
experience for appropriate patients to receive these procedures and increase capacity for urgent and 
emergent case at the hospital.   
 
As outlined, all of the cardiac cath procedures that will be performed at this facility have 
historically been performed at Advocate Good Samaritan Hospital. Based on the planned cases that 
will be performed at this new facility, this is not anticipated to reduce volume at existing facilities.  
 
Attachment 23, Exhibit 1 provides the copies of the request for impact statements sent to all 
cardiac catheterization programs in the Planning Area HSA VII. 
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5.  Criterion 1110.225(e), Support Services 
   Read the criterion and indicate on a service-by-service basis which of the listed services are available 

on a 24-hour basis and explain how any services not available on a 24-hour basis will be available when 
needed. 

 
The required support service will be developed at this location and will be offered Monday-Friday 
during normal business hours. The ATSC will operate Monday-Friday, have onsite point of care testing 
and partner with Good Samaritan Hospital for 24/7 support related to the required support services 
outlined below. Nuclear medicine and echocardiography services will be provided during normal 
business hours. Emergent needs will be provided by Advocate Good Samaritan Hospital. 
 

A) Nuclear medicine laboratory  
B) Echocardiography Services  
C) Echocardiography lab and services, including stress testing and continuous cardiogram 

monitoring.  
D) Pulmonary Function Unit. NA  
E) Blood bank NA 
F) Hematology laboratory/coagulation laboratory  
G) Microbiology laboratory   
H) Blood Gas laboratory  
I) Clinical pathology laboratory with facilities for blood chemistry NA 

 
6.  Criterion 1110.225(f), Laboratory Location  
 

 Read the criterion and, if applicable, submit line drawings showing the location of the proposed laboratories.  
If the laboratories are not in proximity, explain why. 

 
This Cardiac catheterization lab will include 1 Lab. All support services will be in close  
proximity to the Lab.  
 
7.  Criterion 1110.225(g), Staffing 
 
   Read the criterion and submit a list of names and qualifications of those who will fill the positions detailed 

in this criterion.  Also, provide staffing schedules to show the coverage required by this criterion. 
 
The Cardiac catheterization service will include the following required personnel.  
 

1) Lab director board-certified in internal medicine, pediatrics, or radiology with subspecialty training in 
cardiology or cardiovascular radiology. 

There will be a lab director board certified in Cardiology.   

2) A physician with training in cardiology and/or radiology present during examination with extra physician 
backup personnel available.  

 
A physician board certified in Cardiology, invasive non-interventional Cardiology, Advanced Heart 
Failure, Electrophysiology, or Vascular surgery will be present during examination and procedures 
with skilled personnel available.  An interventional cardiologist is credentialled in and can also 
perform peripheral procedures. In addition to board certified Interventionalists/EP physicians, there 
will be a minimum of 3 staff trained in cath/EP procedures that will support cases in the ATSC/Cath 
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lab. This will include RNs and Radiologic Technologist (RT) that have experience working in the cath 
lab and will be deemed competent in their roles.  
 
Staff will cross cover with the hospital to maintain their skillset and attend educational lectures and 
in-services. The training and competencies will replicate those for the hospital cath team for the 
procedures that they will support to have consistency in training. This will allow utilization of 
hospital staff to provide consistent quality care should there be staffing challenges. 
The roles of this 3-person team are circulator, scrub, and monitor/record services. All will be 
ACLS certified. There will be additional RNs to support the prep and hold space and recovery.  

 
3) Nurse specially trained in critical care of cardiac patients, knowledge of cardiovascular medication, and 

understanding of catheterization equipment. 

 
RNs will be licensed by State of Illinois and competent in cardiac cath procedures.  

4)         Radiologic technologist highly skilled in conventional radiographic techniques and angiographic 
principles, knowledgeable in every aspect of catheterization instrumentation, and with thorough knowledge of the 
anatomy and physiology of the cardiovascular system. 

 
Radiologic technologists will be licensed in Radiography by IEMA (Illinois Emergency Management 
Agency and Office of Homeland Security), registered ARRT (American Registry Radiologic 
Technologist) and competent in cardiac cath and vascular procedures.   
  
5)         Cardiopulmonary technician for patient observation, handling blood samples and performing blood gas 
evaluation calculations. 
 

Radiologic technologists and RNs will be competent and perform onsite point of care testing with the 
support of ACL and competency in partnership with Good Samaritan Hospital.   

  
6)         Monitoring and recording technician for monitoring physiologic data and alerting physician to 
any changes. 
 
RNs and Radiologic technologists will have training and competency in hemodynamic 
monitoring. Both RTs and RNs will be ACLS certified.  
 
7)         Electronic radiologic repair technician to perform systematic tests and routine maintenance; 
must be immediately available in the event of equipment failure during a procedure. 
 
Clinical engineering is available through Advocate Good Samaritan Hospital.  

  
8)         Darkroom technician well trained in photographic processing and in the operation of automatic 
processors used for both sheet and cine film. 

 
 This position is no longer needed as all images are recorded electronically.  
 
8.  Criterion 1110.225(h), Continuity of Care 
 

Read the criterion and submit a copy of the fully executed written referral agreement(s). 
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The ASTC has a written transfer agreement with Advocate Good Samaritan Hospital for the  
transfer of seriously ill patients including Open Heart Surgery to ensure continuity of  
care. The transfer agreement is Attachment 25, Exhibit 4. 
 
9. Criterion 1110.225(i), Multi-institutional Variance 
 
 

Read the criterion and, if applicable, submit the following information: 
 
   a. A copy of a fully executed affiliation agreement between the two facilities involved. 

 
   b. Names and positions of the shared staff at the two facilities. 

 
   c. The volume of open-heart surgeries performed for the latest 12-month period at the existing 

operating program. 
 

   d. A cost comparison between the proposed project and expansion at the existing operating 
program. 

 
   e. The number of cardiac catheterization procedures performed in the last 12 months at the 

operating program. 
 

   f. The number of catheterization laboratories at the operating program.  
 

    g. The projected cardiac catheterization volume at the proposed facility annually for the next 2 
years.  

 
   h. The basis for the above projection.  
 
a. The ASTC will be affiliated with the existing Advocate Good Samaritan Hospital cardiac program. The 

hospital program includes a highly utilized cardiac catheterization and Open-Heart Surgery program. All 
physicians on staff at the ASTC will also be on staff at Good Samaritan Hospital. The affiliation and 
transfer agreement is provided in Attachment 25, Exhibit 4.   

b. Physicians and other clinical staff will be providing patient care at both the Hospital and ASTC cath 
services.  

c. For the most recent 12-month period, in 2023 there were 281 Open Heart Surgery cases at Advocate 
Good Samaritan Hospital.  

d. Attachment 25, Exhibit 6 provides a cost comparison of charges that outlines that the ASTC service will 
be more cost effective as compared with the existing hospital program. This would allow the low-risk 
procedures to shift to a lower-cost outpatient setting that’s specifically designed for these procedures.  

e. The number of cardiac catheterization procedures performed at Advocate Good Samaritan Hospital in 
2022 was 3,204 procedures. The Hospital is operating above 750 cath procedures annually per room 
and cardiac cath utilization has increased by over 16% from 2022-2023. This is expected to continue to 
increase due to the population trends in the service area. The proposed ASTC/cath lab at the hospital is 
expected to maintain utilization above the state standard of 750 procedures annually.  
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Advocate Good Samaritan Hospital State Standard  2021 2022 2023 % Change  
2022-2023 

Open Heart Surgery Cases 200 cases annually 246  254 281 10.6% 

Cardiac Cath Procedures  200 procedures annually 2,716 3,204 3,736 16.6% 

 
f. There are 4 Cardiac Cath laboratories at Advocate Good Samaritan Hospital.  Two are Cath and 1 is 

dedicated to EP and 1 is a hybrid lab to accommodate high risk and acuity structural heart procedures.  

g. The projected cardiac cath volume at the proposed ASTC facility is provided below. These will be patients 
living in the service area that are currently receiving care at Advocate Good Samaritan Hospital. In year 2, the 
number of procedures will be greater than the minimum state standard of 200 cardiac catheterization 
procedures performed annually within two years of initiation.  

 
    

ASTC Cardiac Cath PROJECTED UTILIZATION 
 Year 1 Year 2 
Cases 207 249 
Procedures 250 300 

 
 

h. These projections are outlined in the attached physician referral letters provided in Attachment 25, 
Exhibit 1. 
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G. Non-Hospital Based Ambulatory Surgery 
 

Applicants proposing to establish, expand and/or modernize the Non-Hospital Based Ambulatory 
Surgery category of service must submit the following information. 
 

 
ASTC Service 

 Cardiovascular/ Cardiac Cath 
  Colon and Rectal Surgery 
  Dermatology 
  General Dentistry 
  General Surgery including Vascular 
  Gastroenterology 
  Neurological Surgery/Spine 
  Nuclear Medicine 
  Obstetrics/Gynecology 
  Ophthalmology 
  Oral/Maxillofacial Surgery 
  Orthopedic Surgery 
  Otolaryngology 
  Pain Management 
  Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation 
  Plastic Surgery 
  Podiatric Surgery 
  Radiology 
  Thoracic Surgery 
  Urology 
  Other   

 
 

3.         READ the applicable review criteria outlined below and submit the required  
 documentation for the criteria:  
 

APPLICABLE REVIEW CRITERIA Establish New 
ASTC or Service 

Expand Existing 
Service 

1110.235(c)(2)(B) –   Service to GSA Residents X X 
1110.235(c)(3) –   Service Demand – Establishment of an ASTC or  
                             Additional ASTC Service 

X  

1110.235(c)(4) – Service Demand – Expansion of Existing ASTC Service 
Patient  

 X 

1110.235(c)(5) –   Treatment Room Need Assessment X X 
1110.235(c)(6) – Service Accessibility X  
1110.235(c)(7)(A) – Unnecessary Duplication/Maldistribution X  
1110.235(c)(7)(B) – Maldistribution X  
1110.235(c)(7)(C) – Impact to Area Providers X  
110.235(c)(8) – Staffing X 

 
X 

1110.235(c)(9) – Charge Commitment X X 
1110.235(c)(10) – Assurances X X 
 
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 25, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE 
OF THE APPLICATION FORM. 
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The proposed project is for the establishment of a non-hospital based ambulatory surgical treatment 
center with a focus on Cardiac catheterization and outpatient vascular surgical procedures. The 
proposed ASTC will be located in this Medical Office building project that includes Primary care and 
Cardiovascular clinician offices with non-hospital-based outpatient services including cardio-diagnostic 
testing.  
 
The location of this project is designed to serve the Naperville and surrounding communities and the 
Advocate Good Samaritan Hospital patient population. The patient base will be those patients 
currently receiving low-risk cardiac cath and outpatient [peripheral] endovascular surgical care and 
treatment at Advocate Good Samaritan Hospital and other Advocate hospitals. 
 
The proposed ASTC will be multi-specialty, offering the following specialties: 

• Cardiovascular  
• General Surgery (including Vascular) – limited to [peripheral] endovascular surgery procedures  

 
Criterion 1110.235(c)(2)(B) – Service to GSA Residents 
 

The ASTC is located in Naperville and pursuant to Section 1110.510 (d), the Naperville ASTC/Cath Lab’s 
service area (GSA) is defined by a radius of 10 miles surrounding the project.  The zip codes that 
comprise the service area (those within a 10-mile radius) includes a population of 905,000 residents. 
The population by zip code and town name are provided in Attachment 12.   
 
Eleven physicians have committed to referring their appropriate outpatient peripheral endovascular 
and cardiac catheterization cases to the proposed project from current patients that they have 
performed cases at Advocate Good Samaritan Hospital that live in the defined service area.  
 
The referral letters from the physicians that will be performing cardiac catheterization and outpatient 
surgical procedures at this location are include in Attachment 25, Exhibit 1.   
 
Attachment 25, Exhibit 2 shows ALL of the outpatient cardiac cath/surgical cases performed by these 
physicians at Advocate Good Samaritan Hospital including those outside of the Naperville ASTC’s 10-
mile radius. As shown, 518 or 50% of their total patients over the last 12 months (Nov 2022-Oct 2023) 
were patients that live in the zip code of this geographic service area. (GSA).  
 

#24-008



Attachment 25 Exhibit 2 - Surgical Cases 
 

Physician Referrals to ASTC  

PHYSICIAN Specialty Total OP Cases by 
Physician 

OP Cases in 
Service Area  % in Service Area 

Dr. Dominick Bufalino Interventional Cardiology 138 79 57% 

Dr. Ramesh Kashinath Interventional Cardiology 11 2 18% 

Dr. Ankhush Goel Interventional Cardiology 67 20 30% 

Dr. Li Shien Low Interventional Cardiology 71 12 17% 

Dr. Owasis Malick Cardiology/Heart Failure 21 15 71% 

Dr. Justin Mao Electrophysiology 285 135 47% 

Dr. Manan Naik Interventional Cardiology 68 44 65% 

Dr. Michael Nuyles Interventional Cardiology 74 16 22% 

Dr. Mahesh Raju Interventional Cardiology 118 79 67% 

Dr. Ali Valika Cardiology/Heart Failure 53 28 53% 

Dr. Joseph Venturini Interventional Cardiology 130 88 68% 

          

TOTAL   1,036 518 50% 
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Criterion 1110.235(c)(3) – Service Demand – Establishment of an ASTC or Additional ASTC Service 
 

Eleven physicians have been committed to perform 207 outpatient cardiac cath/surgical cases (250 
procedures) of 311 hours of outpatient surgery in the proposed ASTC in year 1.  
 
The chart in Attachment 25, Exhibit 3 summarizes the cases provided in the referral letters. Provided 
is the total number of cases performed by physician in the last 12 months (Nov 2022- Oct 2023) at 
Advocate Good Samaritan Hospital and the number projected to be performed at the ASTC. 
 
As outlined, the cases and hours for these cardiac catheterization and outpatient surgical cases 
support the need for the one OR in the proposed ASTC project. 
 
Attachment 25 Exhibit 3 - Surgical Cases 
 

Physician Referrals to ASTC  

PHYSICIAN Specialty Total OP Cases by 
Physician 

PROJECTED ASTC 
Cases Year 1  

Dr. Dominick Bufalino Interventional Cardiology 138 32 

Dr. Ramesh Kashinath Interventional Cardiology 11 1 

Dr. Ankhush Goel Interventional Cardiology 67 8 

Dr. Li Shien Low Interventional Cardiology 71 5 

Dr. Owasis Malick Cardiology/Heart Failure 21 6 

Dr. Justin Mao Electrophysiology 285 54 

Dr. Manan Naik Interventional Cardiology 68 18 

Dr. Michael Nuyles Interventional Cardiology 74 6 

Dr. Mahesh Raju Interventional Cardiology 118 32 

Dr. Ali Valika Cardiology/Heart Failure 53 11 

Dr. Joseph Venturini Interventional Cardiology 130 35 

        

TOTAL   1,036 207 
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Criterion 1110.235(c)(5) – Treatment Room Need Assessment 
 

In the attached referral letters, 11 physicians have been committed to performing 207 outpatient 
cardiac cath/surgical cases in the proposed ASTC in year 1, increasing to 249 cases (300 procedures) in 
year 2.  These cardiac cath and surgical cases were performed at Advocate Good Samaritan Hospital.  
 
The projected utilization is outlined for years 1 and 2 in the chart below.  The projections for the 
Operating Room in year 2 were based on the historical growth for outpatient cardiac cath hours, 
procedures at Advocate Good Samaritan Hospital and the Sg2’s Impact of change projections for this 
service area.  
 
The State Board standard is 1,500 hours per procedure room. The estimated average length of time 
per procedure will be 1.5 hours per case including set up and clean up time.  The projected hours are 
included for year 1 and year 2. These hours support the need to establish a Surgery center with one 
cardiac catheterization lab. 
 

          

DEPT./SERVICE PROJECTED UTILIZATION 
(PATIENT DAYS) (TREATMENTS)  STATE STANDARD MEET 

STANDARD? 
  Year 1 Year 2     

Operating Rooms (1 rm) 
207 cases  249 cases    

311 hours  374 hours 1,500 hrs per 
operating/procedure rm Yes 

 
Based on the State’s utilization standard of 1,500 hours per operating room per year, the referral 
hours justify the 1 Operating room in the project. 
 
Criterion 1110.235(c)(6) – Service Accessibility 
 

The planned ASTC/ Cardiac Cath service will improve access to cardiovascular services for residents of 
the defined geographic service area. The proposed project will be owned by AHHC d/b/a AMG and is a 
cooperative project developed to support the patients and physicians at Advocate Good Samaritan 
Hospital for patients living in the service area.  The AMG cardiology group has grown to increase 
access in this region, and volumes have increased significantly over the last few years. 

Advocate Good Samaritan Hospital currently operates 4 cardiac/EP highly utilized cardiac cath labs. 
One of these labs is dedicated to EP procedures which are long procedures that require specialty 
equipment to accommodate routine to the most complex ablation procedures.  

Advocate Good Samaritan’s Cath lab volumes grown by over 16% in 2023. Many of these cases are 
ablations, complex PCIs and structural cases than can take several hours to complete and need 
multiple resources. The longer the case, the more challenging it is to add additional outpatient 
elective cases. In addition, approximately 40% of our business are very sick inpatients. These patients 
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may require devices such as balloon pumps and cardiac assist devices to help their weakened heart 
pump. The types of procedures that will remain at the hospital’s cath lab include: 

o Emergent cases, All  
o Inpatient cases  
o Complex PCI 
o Ablations 
o LAAO 
o TAVR,  
o Diagnostic cath that are clinically deemed to be performed at hospital versus ASTC,  
o Structural cases  
o Complex EP device implant/explants  
o AAA 
o TCAR 
o EVAR 

 
Establishing the additional needed capacity in an outpatient ASTC supports the shifting trends due to 
provider and patient demand, changes in medical technology and financial and operational benefits. It 
also increases access at the hospital for these lengthy, high acuity procedures that require multiple 
resources and planning. In addition to the cath team, at the hospital, this includes the 
anesthesiologist, surgeons, perfusionist and OR staff.  

For this reason, a shift in low acuity elective outpatient, CMS approved cases will open access for 
more complex cases at Good Samaritan Hospital. Patients are very apprehensive when having to go 
through these procedures. The less wait time and quicker access to care will enhance the patient 
experience and treat the disease processes quickly, potentially avoiding a catastrophic medical event 
for the patient.  
 
Provided as Attachment 25, Exhibit 4 is a transfer agreement between the Advocate Naperville ASTC 
and Advocate Good Samaritan Hospital in the event it is determined to be medically appropriate and 
needed to transfer to the patient to a higher level of care.    

Attachment 25, Exhibit 5 provides the statement that Advocate Medical Group agrees not to increase 
surgical/treatment room capacity until the ASTC project’s surgical and procedure rooms are operating 
at or above the utilization outline in t 77 Ill. Admin. Code 1100 for at least 12 consecutive months.   
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Criterion 1110.235(c)(7)(a) – Unnecessary Duplication/Maldistribution 
 
The 2022 total population for the service area is provided below.  
 

Age Group    2022 2027 
0-19     237,819    227,627  
20-44     299,266    298,555  
45-64     235,717    218,691  
65+     139,566    160,685  
TOTAL   912,363 905,547 

 
Although the area is anticipated to be consistent over the next 5 years, the growth in the 65+ 
population is projected to increase by over 15% from 139,566 to 160,685; an increase of 21,000 older 
residents. The population in the Service Area has sufficient population to utilize the surgical treatment 
room proposed by the project. 
 
There are 17 ASTCs within the 10- mile radius of the Naperville proposed ASTC. Outlined below are the 
facility name, location and types of clinical services performed at each facility.  
 
This ASTC is unique as none of these ASTCs include cardiac catheterization procedures or cardiovascular 
services. Additionally, this will be co-located in the medical office building that included patients’ 
primary and cardiology physicians and other ambulatory cardiology services as part to the continuum 
of care.  
 
Many of the ASTCs outlined, have limited ownership and medical credentialling that prevent the 
Advocate physicians that plan to use this proposed ASTC from performing procedures. This ASTC 
allows patients to receive comprehensive preventative and therapeutic healthcare in an outpatient 
setting that allows them to remain with their trusted providers – who do not have access to other 
ASTCs in the market.  
 
Unlike other ASTC in this service area, this proposed ASTC will follow the Advocate Aurora charity care 
policy and provide services to Medicaid and charity care patients.  
 
This ASTC will improve access to residents living in this services area for these procedures.  
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  ASTCs in Geographic Service 
Area Address City Zip Code HSA Specialties Reported ORs 

2022 

Proc 
Rms 
2022 

Hours 
Reported 

2022 

1 DMG Surgical Center 2725 Technology 
Drive Lombard 60148 7 

Gen Surg, OB/Gyn, Ophth, 
Ortho, Otola, Pain, Plastic, 
Pod, Urology; GI proc 

8 3  14,035+ 
2,808  

2 Loyola Ambulatory Surgery Ctr 1 South 224 Summit 
Avenue, Suite 201 

Oak Brook 
Terrace 60181 7 Gen Surg, Neuro, Ortho, 

Otola, Pain, Pod 3 0                      
948  

3 DuPage Eye Surgery Center 2015 North Main 
Street Wheaton 60187 7 Ophth 4 2  3063+ 430  

4 Rush Copley Surgicenter LLC 
dba Castle Surgicenter 

2111 Ogden 
Avenue Aurora 60504 8 Ortho, Pain, Pod 2 0                   

1,040  

5 Midwest Center for Day 
Surgery 

3811 Highland 
Avenue 

Downers 
Grove 60515 7 GI, Neuro, Ophth, Otola, 

Pain, Plastic, Pod 5 1                   
4,238  

6 Ambulatory Surgicenter of 
Downers Grove 4333 Main Street Downers 

Grove 60515 7 OB/Gyn  3 1                   
2,285  

7 The Oak Brook Surgical Centre, 
Inc. 

2425 W. 22nd 
Street, Suite 101 Oak Brook 60523 7 Gen Surg, OB/Gyn, Ortho, 

Pain, Plastics, Pod, Urol 5 0  1,498+1,104  

8 Rush Oak Brook Surgery 
Center 

2011 York Road, 
Suite 3000 Oak Brook 60523 7 Gen Surg, Neuro, Ortho, 

Otola, Pain, Plastics, Pod 6 2  8,573+ 424  

9 Midwest Endoscopy Center 1243 Rickert Drive Naperville 60540 7 GI proc 0 3                   
5,478  

10 Naperville Surgical Centre 1263 Rickert Drive Naperville 60540 7 
GI, Gen Surg, Neuro, 
Ob/Gyn, Ophth, Ortho, 
Otola, Plastic, Pod, Urol 

4 0  NA  

11 Naperville Fertility Center 3 N. Washington 
Street Naperville 60540 7 OB/Gyn 1 0                   

1,507  

12 Northwestern Medicine 
Surgery Center 

27650 Ferry Road, 
Suite 140 Warrenville 60555 7 Ortho, Pain, Pod 4 0                   

5,420  

13 Chicago Prostate Surgery Ctr 815 Pasquinelli 
Drive Westmont 60559 7 Ortho, Pod 4 0                   

5,533  

14 Westmont Surgery Center DBA 
Salt Creek Surgery Ctr 530 N Cass Avenue Westmont 60559 7 Ortho, Pain, Pod; GI proc 4 0                   

8,498  

15 Chicago Vascular ASC 700 Pasquinelli 
Drive Westmont 60559 7 Vasc Proc 0 3                   

4,748  

16 The Center for Surgery 475 E. Diehl Road Naperville 60563 7 GI, Gen Surg, Ophth, Otola, 
Pain, Plastic, Pod, Urol 8 3  NA  

17 DMG Pain Mgmt Surgery Ctr 2940 Rollingridge 
Road, Suite 200 Naperville 60564 9 Pain 0 2                   

2,173  
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Criterion 1110.235(c)(7)(b) – Unnecessary Duplication/Maldistribution 
 
As outlined in the referral letters, all cases included are patients who live in the service area and are 
current Advocate hospital patients. Therefore, this should not diminish the patient case volume at 
other non-Advocate ASTC or hospitals and not result in maldistribution of services.  
 
Criterion 1110.235(c)(7)(b) – Impact to Area Providers 
 
This ASTC is not anticipated to have an adverse impact or lower the utilization of other area providers 
below utilization standards. As outlined in the physician referral letters, it is anticipated that these 
procedures will be those that had been performed at Advocate Good Samaritan Hospital and 
Advocate hospitals.   
 
Criterion 1110.235(c)(8) – Staffing 
 
Staff 
Staffing the proposed ASTC will be accomplished through various means. The employees will be team 
members of Advocate Healthcare. Advocate has a long history of staffing its procedural areas and 
uses a variety of tools to recruit staff.  The Advocate system uses a web-based program for developing 
and maintaining a pipeline of candidates for various roles along with traditional campus and in-person 
recruiting efforts. These same recruiting tools will be used to staff the proposed surgery center, as 
well as offering positions to existing team members at other sites. This type of surgery center typically 
employs approximately 15 full-time team members in a variety of clinical and non-clinical roles 
including a lead administrator and nursing to lead this local site staffing effort. The surgery center 
typically operates Monday - Friday during normal business hours, making it an attractive workplace.  
 
Medical Director   
The ASTC will follow conditions for coverage established by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid 
services. A medical director will represent the clinical and medical needs of the Facility. The Medical 
Director will also represent the views of the Medical Staff and be responsible for communicating 
concerns, conclusions, recommendations, and decisions of the Medical Staff to the Governing Body.  
 
In addition, the Medical Director shall review and make recommendations on policies affecting the 
direct delivery of patient care, quality and the purchase of equipment needed to maintain and 
improve upon the delivery of patient care at the Facility.  
 
Criterion 1110.235(c)(9) – Charge Commitment 
 
A charge commitment letter and a list of the proposed charges for the procedures to be performed at 
the ASTC are provided in Attachment 25, Exhibit 6. These charges will be lower than the hospital 
charges for comparable procedures. 
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Comparison of Advocate Ambulatory Surgery Center Naperville fees 

CPT CPT Description CMC Projected 
2023 Claims 

2025'Proposed 
ASC Fee 

Hospital 2025 
Average  

93451 RIGHT HEART CATH 6,060 6,491 -6.6% 

93454 CORONARY ARTERY ANGIO S&I 6,060 15,422 -60.7% 

93455 CORONARY ART/GRFT ANGIO S&I 6,060 18,639 -67.5% 

93456 R HRT CORONARY ARTERY ANGIO 6,060 9,937 -39.0% 

93458 L HRT ARTERY/VENTRICLE ANGIO 6,060 16,070 -62.3% 

93459 L HRT ART/GRFT ANGIO 6,060 18,860 -67.9% 

93460 R&L HRT ART/VENTRICLE ANGIO 6,060 12,521 -51.6% 

37221 ILIAC REVASC W/STENT 26,850 34,645 -22.5% 

37224 FEM/POPL REVAS W/TLA 13,140 16,360 -19.7% 

37225 FEM/POPL REVAS W/ATHER 28,710 66,774 -57.0% 

37229 TIB/PER REVASC W/ATHER 45,240 75,241 -39.9% 

33285 INSJ SUBQ CAR RHYTHM MNTR 28,680 31,194 -8.1% 

33208 INSRT HEART PM ATRIAL & VENT 31,420 37,610 -16.5% 

33228 REMV&REPLC PM GEN DUAL LEAD 30,710 34,413 -10.8% 

33229 REMV&REPLC PM GEN MULT LEADS 48,210 63,966 -24.6% 

33289 TCAT IMPL WRLS P-ART PRS SNR 72,800 149,334 -51.3% 

C9600 PERC DRUG-EL COR STENT SING 26,400 48,174 -45.2% 

37241 VASC EMBOLIZE/OCCLUDE VENOUS 23,960 49,404 -51.5% 

37242 VASC EMBOLIZE/OCCLUDE ARTERY 27,340 50,245 -45.6% 

37243 VASC EMBOLIZE/OCCLUDE ORGAN 18,630 58,727 -68.3% 

36247 INS CATH ABD/L-EXT ART 3RD 3,700 12,355 -70.1% 

36561 INSERT TUNNELED CV CATH 5,880 12,843 -54.2% 

37227 FEM/POPL REVASC STNT & ATHER 47,970 53,749 -10.8% 
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Criterion 1110.235(c)(10) – Assurances 
 
By their signatures, the applicants attest that a peer review process will be implemented that 
evaluates whether patient outcomes are consistent with quality standards established by professional 
organizations for the ASTC services, and if outcomes do not meet or exceed those standards, a quality 
improvement plan will be initiated. 
 
A letter is included in Attachment 25, Exhibit 7 that defines the expectation that the volume of cases 
will be sufficient to meet or exceed the utilization standards in the second year of operation. The 
volume of cases that the physicians are committing to bring to the ASTC, based on their historical 
utilization experience, will meet the standards in the first year of operation. 
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M.  Criterion 1110.270 - Clinical Service Areas Other than Categories of Service 
 
1. Applicants proposing to establish, expand and/or modernize Clinical Service Areas Other than      
             categories of service must submit the following information: 
 
2.          Indicate changes by Service:    Indicate # of key room changes by action(s): 
 

 
Service 

# Existing Key 
Rooms 

# Proposed Key 
Rooms 

 
 Imaging – CT 0 1 

 
Imaging – Nuclear Medicine 0 1 

  
Imaging – Vascular US 0 1 

  
Imaging – Vein US 0 1 

  
Imaging – Echo US 0 1 

  
Imaging – Echo/Stress US 0 1 

  
Physician Examination/Clinic Rooms Primary Care 0 12 

  
Physician Examination/Clinic Rooms Cardiology 0 12 

  
Fast Track Clinic Rooms 0 2 

  
Holter 0 1 

  
Well-Patient Lab (1 room- 3 bays) 0 1 

 
3.  READ the applicable review criteria outlined below and submit the required documentation  
 for the criteria:  
 

Project Type Required Review Criteria 

New Services or Facility or Equipment 
 

(b) − Need Determination − Establishment 

Service Modernization 
 
 
 
 

(c)(1) − Deteriorated Facilities 
AND/OR 

(c)(2) − Necessary Expansion  
PLUS 

(c)(3)(A) − Utilization − Major Medical Equipment 
OR 

(c)(3)(B) − Utilization − Service or Facility 
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 31, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE 
APPLICATION FORM. 
 

 
The services in the proposed project will be provided by Advocate Medical Group (“AMG”) and will 
not be hospital-based services.  The Proposed project includes services that allow patients to receive 
are closer to home with ancillaries’ services provided.  The project will support residents that live 
within a 10-mile radius.  
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Outpatient Imaging  
 
c) Service Modernization 
     The applicant shall document that the proposed Project meets one of the following: 
 
This project will bring important imaging and onsite services to assist in promoting convenient 
coordinated patient care for Primary care and Cardiology services. The imaging services are designed 
based on the specialties located in the building. This improves patient compliance and satisfaction, 
increasing access to the residents of the service area.  
 
Diagnostic imaging is an integral part of a Cardiology or Primary Care examination.   
The Imaging Center will include the following types of diagnostic imaging equipment:   

• 1 CT unit   
• 1 Nuclear Medicine unit   
• 1 Vascular Ultrasound unit 
• 1 Vein Ultrasound unit 
• 1 Echo Ultrasound unit 
• 1 Echo/Stress Ultrasound unit 

 
It is beneficial to patients to have onsite imaging with specialized medical professionals to have this as 
part of their diagnosis and evaluation. A goal is to enable patients to have same day testing and 
results prior to leaving the appointment. If the patient does not receive testing same day, the goal is 
to have the appointment scheduled for testing prior to leaving appointment.   
 
3)(B) -Utilization – Service or Facility 
The imaging volume is provided below. The projected volume was determined based on ratios of 
clinicians practicing at the other existing AAH ambulatory sites.   
 

 Imaging Projected Utilization 

DEPT/SERVICE  Year 1 Year 2 
CT  2,032 2,235 

Nuclear Medicine  828 910 

Vascular US 720 900 

Vein Treatment US 200 300 

Echo US 1,723 1,895 

Stress/Echo US 442 486 
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Physician Offices/Clinics 
 
c) Service Modernization 
     The applicant shall document that the proposed Project meets one of the following: 
 
2) - Necessary Expansion 
 
This new building will provide a location for the Primary Care and Cardiology Advocate Medical Group 
clinical providers in the area.  It will also allow for the ancillary services that will be included as part of 
the patient’s clinic visit. This will benefit patients to have one location to allow for collaboration and 
referrals between providers and have all testing completed at one location. 
 
3)(B) -Utilization – Service or Facility 
The Clinic volume and ancillary services provided in the office visit are outlined below. The patients 
will be able to receive many of their primary care and specialty services in one building. The projected 
volume was determined based on AMG historical growth of clinicians entering new geographies and 
the need for these ancillary services as part of their visit.  There are no state standards for these 
clinical services. 
 

 Projected Utilization 
DEPT/SERVICE  Year 1 Year 2 

Physician Office visits -Primary Care 15,956 17,889 
Physician Office visits - Cardiology 4,326 5,829 
Holter 150 180 
Well-Patient Lab 14,160 14,160 
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Fast Track Cardiology Clinic 
 
c) Service Modernization 
     The applicant shall document that the proposed Project meets one of the following: 
 
2) - Necessary Expansion 
 
The fast-track clinic service will be a “one stop shop” providing evaluation and clinical services for low-
risk chest pain patients in an outpatient location.  
These patients will be evaluated by an advanced clinical provider and receive the necessary cardiac 
diagnostic and ancillary testing as part of this visit and receive results before they leave.  A cardiologist 
will also be onsite to read testing and consult with the patient.  
 
The Fast Track Cardiac program is for patients with low-risk heart conditions such as palpitations, 
chest pain, hypertension, and indigestion or patients with a family history that want a comprehensive 
quick workup.  These patients can be sent from another physician office, a program such as 
Advocate’s South Asian Community Outreach program or patients discharged from an emergency 
room for low-risk chest pain or palpitations and need further workups. The patient can be seen the 
next day for a complete work up, testing and answers. Many of these patients never follow up due to 
the complexities in navigating care.  This will also provide less interruption in their work schedules and 
supports those who have transportation needs. The patient experience by making it easy and quick, 
will help them navigate the testing and provide the answers they need for peace of mind and have 
their fears addressed quickly. Patients that need higher level procedures at the hospital will be 
navigated and scheduled quickly to provide a comprehensive, positive experience. 

 
3)(B) -Utilization – Service or Facility 
The fast-track patient volume is provided below.  The projected volume for the diagnostic and 
ancillary services that are part of their visit are include in the Cardiology Diagnostic and Imaging 
sections.  There are no state standards for this clinical service. 
 

 Projected Utilization 
DEPT/SERVICE  Year 1 Year 2 

Fast Track visits 150 180 
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The following Sections DO NOT need to be addressed by the applicants or co-applicants responsible for 
funding or guaranteeing the funding of the project if the applicant has a bond rating of A- or better from 
Fitch's or Standard and Poor's rating agencies, or A3 or better from Moody's (the rating shall be affirmed 
within the latest 18-month period prior to the submittal of the application): 
 

• Section 1120.120 Availability of Funds − Review Criteria 
• Section 1120.130 Financial Viability − Review Criteria 
• Section 1120.140 Economic Feasibility − Review Criteria, subsection (a) 

 
 
VI.  1120.120 - AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS   

 
The applicant shall document that financial resources shall be available and be equal to or exceed the estimated 
total project cost plus any related project costs by providing evidence of sufficient financial resources from the 
following sources, as applicable [Indicate the dollar amount to be provided from the following sources]: 
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$26,953,237 

 
a) Cash and Securities − statements (e.g., audited financial statements, letters from 

financial institutions, board resolutions) as to: 
 

1) the amount of cash and securities available for the project, 
including the identification of any security, its value and 
availability of such funds; and  
 

2) interest to be earned on depreciation account funds or to be 
earned on any asset from the date of applicant's submission 
through project completion; 

 
________ 

b) Pledges − for anticipated pledges, a summary of the anticipated pledges showing 
anticipated receipts and discounted value, estimated timetable of gross receipts 
and related fundraising expenses, and a discussion of past fundraising 
experience. 

 
________ 

c) Gifts and Bequests − verification of the dollar amount, identification of any 
conditions of use, and the estimated timetable of receipts; 

 
$25,255,761 

d) Debt − a statement of the estimated terms and conditions (including the debt time 
period, variable or permanent interest rates over the debt time period, and the 
anticipated repayment schedule) for any interim and for the permanent financing 
proposed to fund the project, including: 

 

1) For general obligation bonds, proof of passage of the required 
referendum or evidence that the governmental unit has the 
authority to issue the bonds and evidence of the dollar amount of 
the issue, including any discounting anticipated; 
 

2) For revenue bonds, proof of the feasibility of securing the 
specified amount and interest rate; 
 

3) For mortgages, a letter from the prospective lender attesting to 
the expectation of making the loan in the amount and time 
indicated, including the anticipated interest rate and any 
conditions associated with the mortgage, such as, but not limited 
to, adjustable interest rates, balloon payments, etc.; 
 

4) For any lease, a copy of the lease, including all the terms and 
conditions, including any purchase options, any capital 
improvements to the property and provision of capital equipment; 

 

5) For any option to lease, a copy of the option, including all terms 
and conditions. 

 
________ 

e) Governmental Appropriations − a copy of the appropriation Act or ordinance 
accompanied by a statement of funding availability from an official of the 
governmental unit.  If funds are to be made available from subsequent fiscal 
years, a copy of a resolution or other action of the governmental unit attesting to 
this intent; 

 
________ 

f) Grants − a letter from the granting agency as to the availability of funds in terms 
of the amount and time of receipt; 

 
________ 

g) All Other Funds and Sources − verification of the amount and type of any other 
funds that will be used for the project. 

 

$52,208,999 TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE 
 

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 34, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE 
APPLICATION FORM.  
 

 
N/A, Advocate Aurora Health, Inc has a AA long-term bond rating from Fitch and Standard & Poors. 
Advocate Aurora Health, Inc has an Aa3 long-term bond rating from Moody’s.  
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N/A, Advocate Aurora Health, Inc has a AA long-term bond rating from Fitch and Standard & Poors. 
Advocate Aurora Health, Inc has an Aa3 long-term bond rating from Moody’s.  
 
SECTION VII.  1120.130 - FINANCIAL VIABILITY 
 
All the applicants and co-applicants shall be identified, specifying their roles in the project funding or guaranteeing the funding 
(sole responsibility or shared) and percentage of participation in that funding. 
 

Financial Viability Waiver 
 
The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios if: 
5. “A” Bond rating or better 
6. All the project’s capital expenditures are completely funded through internal sources 
7. The applicant’s current debt financing or projected debt financing is insured or anticipated to be 

insured by MBIA (Municipal Bond Insurance Association Inc.) or equivalent 
8. The applicant provides a third-party surety bond or performance bond letter of credit from an A rated 

guarantor. 
 

See Section 1120.130 Financial Waiver for information to be provided 
 
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 35, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE 
APPLICATION FORM. 
 

 
The applicant or co-applicant that is responsible for funding or guaranteeing funding of the project shall provide 
viability ratios for the latest three years for which audited financial statements are available and for the first 
full fiscal year at target utilization, but no more than two years following project completion.  When the 
applicant's facility does not have facility specific financial statements and the facility is a member of a health 
care system that has combined or consolidated financial statements, the system's viability ratios shall be 
provided.  If the health care system includes one or more hospitals, the system's viability ratios shall be 
evaluated for conformance with the applicable hospital standards.   

 
 Historical  

3 Years  
Projected 

  Enter Historical and/or Projected 
Years: 

     

         Current Ratio     

         Net Margin Percentage     

         Percent Debt to Total Capitalization     

         Projected Debt Service Coverage     

         Days Cash on Hand     

         Cushion Ratio     
 
    Provide the methodology and worksheets utilized in determining the ratios detailing the 

calculation and applicable line item amounts from the financial statements.  Complete a separate 
table for each co-applicant and provide worksheets for each.   

   
  Variance 
 

Applicants not in compliance with any of the viability ratios shall document that another 
organization, public or private, shall assume the legal responsibility to meet the debt obligations 
should the applicant default. 

 
 
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 36, IN NUMERICAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE APPLICATION 
FORM. 
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SECTION IX. 1120.140 - ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY 
 
This section is applicable to all projects subject to Part 1120. 

 
A. Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements 

 
 The applicant shall document the reasonableness of financing arrangements by submitting a 

notarized statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to one of the following: 
 

1) That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total with cash 
and equivalents, including investment securities, unrestricted funds, received pledge 
receipts and funded depreciation; or 

 

2) That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total or in part by 
borrowing because: 

 
A) A portion or all the cash and equivalents must be retained in the balance sheet 

asset accounts to maintain a current ratio of at least 2.0 times for hospitals and 
1.5 times for all other facilities; or 

 

B) Borrowing is less costly than the liquidation of existing investments, and the 
existing investments being retained may be converted to cash or used to retire 
debt within a 60-day period. 

 
B. Conditions of Debt Financing 

 
This criterion is applicable only to projects that involve debt financing.  The applicant shall 
document that the conditions of debt financing are reasonable by submitting a notarized statement 
signed by an authorized representative that attests to the following, as applicable: 

 

1) That the selected form of debt financing for the project will be at the lowest net cost 
available. 

 

2) That the selected form of debt financing will not be at the lowest net cost available but is 
more advantageous due to such terms as prepayment privileges, no required mortgage, 
access to additional indebtedness, term (years), financing costs and other factors. 

 

3) That the project involves (in total or in part) the leasing of equipment or facilities and that 
the expenses incurred with leasing a facility or equipment are less costly than constructing 
a new facility or purchasing new equipment. 

 
C. Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs 

 
  Read the criterion and provide the following: 
 

1) Identify each department or area impacted by the proposed project and provide a cost and 
square footage allocation for new construction and/or modernization using the following 
format (insert after this page). 

 

COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY DEPARTMENT OR SERVICE 

 
Department 
(List below) 

A B C D E F G H  
Total 
Cost 

(G + H) 
Cost/Square Foot       
New            Mod. 

Gross Sq. Ft. 
New         Circ.* 

Gross Sq. Ft. 
Mod.        Circ.* 

Const. $ 
(A x C) 

Mod. $ 
(B x E) 

          

Contingency          

 TOTALS          
* Include the percentage (%) of space for circulation 
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D.  Projected Operating Costs 

 
The applicant shall provide the projected direct annual operating costs (in current dollars per equivalent 
patient day or unit of service) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than two years 
following project completion. Direct cost means the fully allocated costs of salaries, benefits and supplies 
for the service. 

 
  

F. Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs 
 

The applicant shall provide the total projected annual capital costs (in current dollars per 
equivalent patient day) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than two years 
following project completion. 
 

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 37, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE 
APPLICATION FORM. 

 
See Attachment #37, Exhibit 1, 2 and 3. 
 
The AGC (Association of General Construction’s 2022 Construction Inflation Report is provided in the Appendix.) 
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Cost & Gross Square Feet by Building  

Dept. / Area 

A B C D E F G H   

Cost / Sq. Ft. Gross Sq. Ft. Gross Sq. Ft. Const. $ Mod. $ 
Total Cost 

(G+H) 
New Mod. New Circ.* Mod. Circ.* AxC BxE (G+H) 

Clinical                  
ASTC (1 OR room)  $802.26   2,682 24%    $2,151,649    $2,151,649  

PACU/Prep/Recovery (4 rooms)  $694.16   4,607 33%    $3,198,004    $3,198,004  

Imaging – CT (1 Unit)  $641.80   1,330 11%    $853,600    $853,600  

Imaging – Nuclear Medicine (1 Unit)  $650.25   1,585 21%    $1,030,645    $1,030,645  

Imaging – Vascular US (1 Unit)  $641.80   301 30%    $193,183    $193,183  

Imaging – Vein US (1 Unit)  $646.87   339 30%    $219,289    $219,289  

Imaging – Echo US (1 Unit)  $645.18   275 30%    $177,425    $177,425  

Imaging – Stress/Echo US (1 Unit)  $648.56   384 30%    $249,047    $249,047  
Physician Clinic Exam/Treatment Rooms 
(26 Rooms) $505.00  12,894 38%   $6,511,453  $6,511,453 

Fast Track (2 rooms) $505.00  826 30%   $417,129  $417,129 
Holter (1 room) $591.14  427 14%   $252,415  $252,415 

Well Lab (1 private room, 2 open bays) $565.80  821 21%   $464,523  $464,523 

Total Clinical    26,471    $15,718,362  $15,718,362 

Clinical Contingency            $722,010 

Total Clinical Reviewable + 
Contingency 

           $16,440,372 

Non-Clinical               

Public, Circulation, Staff Support, 
Building Support  $372.14  17,435 31%   $6,488,277   $6,488,277  

Total Non-Clinical    17,435     $6,488,277  $6,488,277 

Non-Clinical Contingency 
            $475,548 

Total Non-Clinical + Contingency 
              $6,963,825 

Total 
 

$22,206,639 

Contingency  $1,197,558  

Total + Contingency  $23,404,197   
 
*    Percentage of space for circulation 
**  Construction Costs Only 
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The Naperville Cardiovascular ASTC construction cost includes premiums that are above the typical 
Business Occupancy construction.   
 
In looking at the Clinical Reviewable costs, the higher $/SF is attributed to the following factors: 
 

1. Majority of the Clinical Reviewable costs comprise of cost to build 1 Cath Lab Operating Room. The 
infrastructure would be at a much lower $/SF had there been more OR rooms to distribute the 
infrastructure costs.  Medical gas piping is not only provided for the OR Room, but also for the 
Prep/Recovery which is not required by code or regulatory agencies but is needed to support the 
safe recovery for the patients we serve. 
 

2. Specific to this location, the existing roof structure was designed for a gym facility.    Additional 
structural reinforcements are needed for the MEP infrastructure and for the Operating Room and 
CT ceiling equipment.  

 
3. This facility is planned to be installed in a Gym facility based upon 2007 energy codes. The existing 

exterior wall and roof construction does not meet present energy standards. For the facility to 
meet present energy standards for a clinic and a surgery facility the exterior walls need additional 
insulation to prevent moisture build up in the walls.  
 

4. This building has a high roof deck elevation. The space is a 2-story volume for a single level. The 
mechanical systems are sized to condition the additional plenum space.  
 

5. Construction escalation is at an all-time high.  Current contractor pricing indicates that bid price 
escalation is approximately 31.5% averaged across the various trades from 3 years ago. The price 
index is up 18.6% from 2 years ago. For Year 2023, escalation reduced to 0.4%.  The current pricing 
reflects an Output-based/ bid price indices whereas, it is our understanding that RS Means indexing 
accounts for Cost Inputs of labor and material (a lagging indicator). 

 

#24-008



   
 
 

Description of Building Construction Premiums for 
Naperville Cardiology ASTC Project: Estimated Premium $  

Imaging rooms are the only clinic reviewable spaces and 
account for a very small SF, resulting in higher $/SF Refer to Attachment 14 

Structured Rooftop Unit Screening required by City of 
Naperville $100,000 

On-stage / Off-stage circulation, doors, and portal entries for 
elevated level of services  
 

$386,400 

Exterior Wall Construction enhancements for an ASC to 
address humidity, R-values, and furring wall $341,000 

Floor infill and pool infill 
$145,600 

Generator Infrastructure to support emergency power to 
facility. $208,100 
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Description of Building Construction Premiums for 
Naperville Cardiology ASTC Project: Estimated Premium $  

Structural enhancements for rooftop equipment 
21,000 

Energy enhancements for facility (EV Charging-ready) 
$60,000 

Real-Time Location Systems (RTLS) infrastructure for 
elevated level of services.   $195,000 

Building Construction Cost Premiums Only 
$1,457,100 
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D.  Projected Operating Cost per Equivalent Pt Day in Year 1 and Year 2 
E.  Impact of Project on Capital Costs in Year of Completion Year 1 and Year 2 
 
 

Projected Operating Costs 

  Cost Per Visit in Year 1 Cost Per Visit in Year 2 

Operating Costs $420.43 $441.28 

   

Impact of Project on Capital Costs 

  Cost Per Visit in Year 1 Cost Per Visit in Year 2 

Capital Costs $1,241.32 $1,108.44 
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SECTION IX.  SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT 
 
SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT that describes all the following must be submitted for ALL 
SUBSTANTIVE PROJECTS AND PROJECTS TO DISCONTINUE HEALTH CARE FACILITIES [20 ILCS 
3960/5.4]: 
 
1. The project's material impact, if any, on essential safety net services in the community, to the extent 
that it is feasible for an applicant to have such knowledge. 
 
2. The project's impact on the ability of another provider or health care system to cross-subsidize safety 
net services, if reasonably known to the applicant. 
 
3. How the discontinuation of a facility or service might impact the remaining safety net providers in a 
given community, if reasonably known by the applicant. 
Safety Net Impact Statements shall also include all of the following: 
 
1. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification describing the amount of charity care 
provided by the applicant. The amount calculated by hospital applicants shall be in accordance with the 
reporting requirements for charity care reporting in the Illinois Community Benefits Act. Non-hospital 
applicants shall report charity care, at cost, in accordance with an appropriate methodology specified 
by the Board. 
2. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification of the amount of care provided to 
Medicaid patients. Hospital and non-hospital applicants shall provide Medicaid information in a manner 
consistent with the information reported each year to the Illinois Department of Public Health regarding 
"Inpatients and Outpatients Served by Payor Source" and "Inpatient and Outpatient Net Revenue by 
Payor Source" as required by the Board under Section 13 of this Act and published in the Annual 
Hospital Profile. 
3. Any information the applicant believes is directly relevant to safety net services, including 
information regarding teaching, research, and any other service. 
A table in the following format must be provided as part of Attachment 37. 
 

Safety Net Information per PA 96-0031 

CHARITY CARE 

Charity (# of patients) Year Year Year 
Inpatient    

Outpatient    

Total    
Charity (cost In dollars)    

Inpatient    

Outpatient    
Total    

 
 

MEDICAID 
Medicaid (# of patients) Year Year Year 

Inpatient    

Outpatient    

Total    

Medicaid (revenue)    

Inpatient    

Outpatient    
Total    

 

 
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 38, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE 
APPLICATION FORM. 
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Advocate Health has a long history of serving the Western suburbs of Chicago inclusive of DuPage, Kane 
and Will counties through Advocate Good Samaritan Hospital and its ambulatory sites of care. Advocate 
Health takes great pride in the relationships we have with the neighborhood, communities, organizations, 
and agencies we serve.  

Advocate Health has a strong relationship with our diverse patient base across the communities we are 
privileged to serve. As DuPage and the western suburbs population have grown over the past decade, 
Advocate Good Samaritan Hospital and our network of providers have strived to stay current with the 
community’s health care needs. This includes investment in bilingual clinicians, support team members 
and a robust local interpretation services team offering support to patients and their families from all 
backgrounds.  In addition, Advocate Health has explored new innovative ways to care for the communities 
we serve, such as the newly developed South Asian Cardiovascular Center. The first of its kind in the 
Midwest, serves South Asian people through a special combination of community outreach, primary care, 
advanced clinical services, and research.  

Advocate Good Samaritan’s Community Health Council, a council comprised of community and internal 
representatives, conducts a Community Health Needs Assessment every three years to identify health 
needs for low income, and underserved communities and help identify programming to meet those needs 
with measurable impact. The 2022 CHNA Report: Good Samaritan Hospital identified behavioral health, 
healthy lifestyles, and social determinants of health as priority health needs for service development.  
 
Advocate Health and team members are committed to advancing health equity and fulling our purpose in 
helping people live well. In developing coordinated, lower-cost ambulatory access to primary care and 
preventative services, in addition to advanced care, we believe we can better serve our patients and 
communities in need. 
 
As an extension of the non-profit Advocate Health system, the proposed location will develop and 
implement a charity care policy that mirrors the policy of Advocate Good Samaritan Hospital and Advocate 
Health committed to serving the entire market, not only certain payers.  This includes seeing Medicare, 
Medicaid, and charity care patients. The following chart in Attachment 38, Exhibit 1, outlines the amount 
of charity care provided by Advocate Health care Illinois hospitals in the last three fiscal years.  
 
The proposed establishment of this project supports Advocate Health’s overall DE&I efforts by reducing 
delays in or cost-barriers to accessing high quality care ambulatory cardiac catheterization and vascular 
surgical services.  Advocate’s Diversity Equity and Inclusion Impact Report is highlighted in Attachment 38, 
Exhibit 2. Ambulatory access is especially important for the primary care and cardiovascular services 
included in this facility. 
  
Advocate Health is proud of our service line institutes, specifically Advocate’s Cardiovascular Institute, 
through our highly experienced team of heart specialists can diagnose and treat all types of heart and 
vascular conditions and diseases. 
 
The ASTC and the ambulatory services in this project will be developed in partnership with Advocate Good 
Samaritan Hospital. Good Samaritan is recognized nationally for providing exceptional care and service to 
the community: 
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• Healthgrades - America’s 100 Best Hospitals for Cardiac Care Award™ (2024, 2023, 2022) for 
superior clinical outcomes in heart bypass surgery, coronary interventional procedures, heart 
attack treatment, heart failure treatment, and heart valve surgery. 

• Healthgrades - America’s 100 Best Hospitals for Coronary Intervention Award™ (2024, 2023, 
2022) Superior clinical outcomes in coronary intervention procedures (angioplasty with stent) 

• Magnet recognition for nursing excellence, achieved by only 7 percent of hospitals nationwide 
• Malcolm Baldridge National Quality Award for performance excellence 
• Truven 100 Top Hospitals (formerly Thomson Reuters) 
• Gold Level award, American Heart Association "Get with the Guidelines" 
• Three-star quality rating from the Society of Thoracic Surgeons: their highest rating, given to only 

the top 10% of all cardiac surgery programs in the U.S. 
 

Advocate’s cardiovascular experts treat a full range of conditions, and offer the following Advanced 
Services & Treatments: 
• Open heart surgery 
• Minimally invasive vascular surgeries, including endovascular abdominal aortic aneurysm (EndoAAA) 

repair 
• Cardiodiagnostic tests 
• Heart rhythm care program 
• Congestive heart failure clinic 
• Cardiac rehabilitation 
• Electrophysiology studies (EPS) 
• Cardiac ablation 
• Cardiac catheterization 
• Permanent pacemaker placement 
• Implantable cardioverter defibrillator (ICD) placement 
 

In summary, the impact of this ASTC for Cardiac Catheterization and non-invasive Cardiovascular ancillary 
services with primary care services is far reaching and is a critical organization supporting the communities 
of DuPage, Kane, and Will counties.  These communities have come to rely on many of these programs 
outlined to meet the special needs of the population in the service area.  
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https://www.advocatehealth.com/health-services/advocate-heart-institute/programs-and-treatments/heart-rhythm-care-program/
https://www.advocatehealth.com/health-services/advocate-heart-institute/programs-and-treatments/congestive-heart-failure-clinic/
https://www.advocatehealth.com/health-services/advocate-heart-institute/programs-and-treatments/cardiac-rehabilitation
https://www.advocatehealth.com/health-services/advocate-heart-institute/programs-and-treatments/heart-rhythm-care-program/cardiac-ablation
https://www.advocatehealth.com/health-services/advocate-heart-institute/programs-and-treatments/interventional-cardiology/cardiac-catheterization
https://www.advocatehealth.com/health-services/advocate-heart-institute/programs-and-treatments/heart-rhythm-care-program/pacemakers
https://www.advocatehealth.com/health-services/advocate-heart-institute/programs-and-treatments/heart-rhythm-care-program/implantable-cardioverter-defibrillator
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SECTION X. CHARITY CARE INFORMATION 
 

 
Charity Care information MUST be furnished for ALL projects [1120.20(c)].   
 
1. All applicants and co-applicants shall indicate the amount of charity care for the latest three audited 

fiscal years, the cost of charity care and the ratio of that charity care cost to net patient revenue.  
 
2. If the applicant owns or operates one or more facilities, the reporting shall be for each individual facility 

located in Illinois. If charity care costs are reported on a consolidated basis, the applicant shall provide 
documentation as to the cost of charity care; the ratio of that charity care to the net patient revenue for 
the consolidated financial statement; the allocation of charity care costs; and the ratio of charity care 
cost to net patient revenue for the facility under review. 

 
3. If the applicant is not an existing facility, it shall submit the facility's projected patient mix by payer 

source, anticipated charity care expense and projected ratio of charity care to net patient revenue by 
the end of its second year of operation. 

 
Charity care" means care provided by a health care facility for which the provider does not expect to 
receive payment from the patient or a third-party payer (20 ILCS 3960/3).  Charity Care must be 
provided at cost. 
 
A table in the following format must be provided for all facilities as part of Attachment 39.  
 

CHARITY CARE 

 Year Year Year 

Net Patient Revenue    

Amount of Charity Care (charges)    

Cost of Charity Care    

    
 

 
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 39, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE 
APPLICATION FORM. 
 

 
 
See Attachment 39, Exhibit 1 
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ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH CHARITY CARE 

  2020 2021 2022 

Net Patient Revenue $4,328,346,158 $4,891,752,006 $5,084,505,419 

Amount of Charity Care (charges) $190,768,385 $342,625,287 $197,885,600 

Cost of Charity Care $50,107,969 $76,109,520 $44,348,164 
 

Source: Advocate Aurora Hospital records 
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SECTION XI-SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA AND 500-YEAR FLOODPLAIN DETERMINATION FORM 
 

In accordance with Executive Order 2006-5 (EO 5), the Health Facilities & Services Review Board (HFSRB) must 
determine if the site of the CRITICAL FACILITY, as defined in EO 5, is in a mapped floodplain (Special Flood Hazard 
Area) or a 500-year floodplain.  All state agencies are required to ensure that before a permit, grant or a development 
is planned or promoted, the proposed project meets the requirements of the Executive Order, including compliance 
with the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) and state floodplain regulation.  

4. Applicant: Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation d/b/a Advocate Aurora Medical Group  
  (Name) 

2025 Windsor Drive     Oak Brook                        IL                60523               
 (Address)                            (City)                        (State)         (Zip code)       (Telephone Number) 

5. Project Location: 1836 Freedom Drive                             Naperville                  IL   
               (Address)                                                    (City)                     (State) 
               DuPage                                                      Lisle Township   
                      (County)  (Township)                                (Section) 
6. You can create a small map of your site showing the FEMA floodplain mapping using the FEMA Map 

Service Center website (https://msc.fema.gov/portal/home) by entering the address for the property in the 
Search bar. If a map, like that shown on page 2 is shown, select the Go to NFHL Viewer tab above the 

map. You can print a copy of the floodplain map by selecting the  icon in the top corner of the page. 

Select the pin tool icon  and place a pin on your site. Print a FIRMETTE size image.  

If there is no digital floodplain map available select the View/Print FIRM icon above the aerial photo. You 
will then need to use the Zoom tools provided to locate the property on the map and use the Make a 
FIRMette tool to create a pdf of the floodplain map. 

IS THE PROJECT SITE LOCATED IN A SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA: Yes      No_X_ 
 
IS THE PROJECT SITE LOCATED IN THE 500-YEAR FLOOD PLAIN? 
If you are unable to determine if the site is in the mapped floodplain or 500-year floodplain, contact the county or the 
local community building or planning department for assistance.   
If the determination is being made by a local official, please complete the following: 

FIRM Panel Number:  Effective Date:  

Name of Official:   Title:  

Business/Agency:   Address:  

(City) (State) (ZIP Code) (Telephone Number) 

Signature:     Date: ____________________ 

NOTE: This finding only means that the property in question is or is not in a Special Flood Hazard Area or a 500-
year floodplain as designated on the map noted above. It does not constitute a guarantee that the property will or 
will not be flooded or be subject to local drainage problems. 
 
If you need additional help, contact the Illinois Statewide Floodplain Program at 217/782-4428 
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After paginating the entire completed application indicate, in the chart below, the page numbers for the included 
attachments: 
 

INDEX OF ATTACHMENTS 
 
     ATTACHMENT 
             NO.                                                                                                                                 PAGES              

1 Applicant Identification including Certificate of Good Standing 36 – 41 
2 Site Ownership 42 
3 Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be 

identified with the % of ownership. 
43 – 49 

4 Organizational Relationships (Organizational Chart) Certificate of 
Good Standing Etc.   

50 – 52 

5 Flood Plain Requirements 53 – 54 
6 Historic Preservation Act Requirements 55 – 57 
7 Project and Sources of Funds Itemization 58 – 88 
8 Financial Commitment Document if required  89 
9 Cost Space Requirements 90 

10 Discontinuation - 
11 Background of the Applicant 91 – 99 
12 Purpose of the Project 100 – 108 
13 Alternatives to the Project 109 – 111 
14 Size of the Project 112 – 114 
15 Project Service Utilization 115 – 118 
16 Unfinished or Shell Space 119 
17 Assurances for Unfinished/Shell Space 120 
18 Master Design and Related Projects - 

 Service Specific:  
19 Medical Surgical Pediatrics, Obstetrics, ICU - 
20 Comprehensive Physical Rehabilitation - 
21 Acute Mental Illness  - 
22 Open Heart Surgery - 
23 Cardiac Catheterization 121 – 153 
24 In-Center Hemodialysis - 
25 Non-Hospital Based Ambulatory Surgery 154 – 194 
26 Selected Organ Transplantation -  
27 Kidney Transplantation - 
28 Subacute Care Hospital Model - 
29 Community-Based Residential Rehabilitation Center - 
30 Long Term Acute Care Hospital  - 
31 Clinical Service Areas Other than Categories of Service 195 - 198 
32 Freestanding Emergency Center - 
33 Birth Center - 

 Financial and Economic Feasibility:  
34 Availability of Funds 199 – 227 
35 Financial Waiver 228 
36 Financial Viability 228 
37 Economic Feasibility  229 – 236 
38 Safety Net Impact Statement 237 – 243 
39 Charity Care Information 244 – 245 
40 Flood Plain Information 246 

 Appendix 248+ 
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Ernst & Young LLP 

155 North Wacker Drive 

Chicago, IL 60606-1787 

Tel: +1 312 879 2000 

Fax: +1 312 879 4000 

ey.com 

 
 
 
 
 

Report of Independent Auditors 
 

The Board of Directors 
Advocate Health, Inc. 

Opinion 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Advocate Aurora Health, Inc. (the 
Organization), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, 
and the related consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets, and cash flows for 
the years then ended, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “financial statements”). 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Organization at December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the results of its operations 
and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. 

 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be 
independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the 
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions 
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Organization’s ability to 
continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the financial statements are issued. 

 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered 
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the 
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we: 
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• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. 
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control. Accordingly, no such 
opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the 
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Organization’s ability to continue as a 
going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 

 
 

Other information 
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Condensed 
Consolidated Financial Statements and Other Information but does not include the financial statements 
and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other 
information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon. 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the 
financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on 
the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information 
exists, we are required to describe it in our report. 

 
 

 
April 11, 2023 
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ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

(in thousands) 
 

 

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 
  

Assets 
Current assets 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 372,898  $ 703,725 
Assets limited as to use 153,557  139,742 
Patient accounts receivable 1,796,499  1,816,705 
Other current assets 934,604  706,253 
Third-party payors receivables 23,400  22,154 
Collateral proceeds under securities lending program 17,402  18,550 

Total current assets 3,298,360  3,407,129 

 
Assets limited as to use 

 
10,981,192 

  
12,394,605 

Property and equipment, net 5,971,542 
 

5,943,011 

Other assets 
Reinsurance receivable 

 

116,786 

  

42,100 
Goodwill and intangible assets, net 476,564  271,178 
Investments in unconsolidated entities 216,176  259,127 
Operating lease right-of-use assets 305,311  283,398 
Other noncurrent assets 512,339  538,013 

Total other assets 1,627,176  1,393,816 

 
Total assets 

 
  $ 21,878,270 

  
  $ 23,138,561 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
(Continued) 
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ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

(in thousands) 
 

 
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 

  

 
 

Current liabilities 
Long-term debt and commercial paper, current portion $ 101,204  $ 96,185 
Long-term debt subject to short-term financing arrangements 165,035  166,350 
Operating lease liabilities, current portion 73,026  68,247 
Accrued salaries and employee benefits 1,165,861  1,296,458 
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities 1,111,552  1,562,089 
Third-party payors payables 357,177  354,186 
Accrued insurance and claims costs, current portion 204,592  151,230 
Collateral under securities lending program 17,402  18,550 

Total current liabilities 3,195,849  3,713,295 

 
Noncurrent liabilities 

Long-term debt, less current portion 3,255,423  3,298,508 
Operating lease liabilities, less current portion 276,116  248,062 
Accrued insurance and claims cost, less current portion 634,468  615,576 
Accrued losses subject to insurance recovery 116,786  42,100 
Obligations under swap agreements 29,514  91,217 
Other noncurrent liabilities 922,567  798,824 

Total noncurrent liabilities 5,234,874  5,094,287 

 
Total liabilities 

 
8,430,723 

  
8,807,582 

 
Net assets 

Without donor restrictions 
Controlling interest 13,037,580  13,911,862 
Noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries 171,791  167,440 

Total net assets without donor restrictions 13,209,371  14,079,302 
With donor restrictions 238,176  251,677 

Total net assets 13,447,547  14,330,979 

 
Total liabilities and net assets 

 
  $ 21,878,270 

  
  $ 23,138,561 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

(in thousands) 
 

 
 Year Ended  Year Ended 
 December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Revenue 

Patient service revenue 
 
$ 12,065,771 

  
$ 11,702,581 

Capitation revenue 1,197,327  1,196,109 
Other revenue 1,281,148  1,163,442 

Total revenue 14,544,246  14,062,132 

 
Expenses 

   

Salaries, wages and benefits 8,560,787  7,665,848 
Supplies, purchased services and other 4,735,148  4,530,877 
Contracted medical services 518,834  564,586 
Depreciation and amortization 599,706  563,409 
Interest 118,319  106,101 

Total expenses 14,532,794  13,430,821 

 
Operating income before nonrecurring expenses 

 
11,452 

  
631,311 

Nonrecurring expenses 35,339 
 

37,759 

 
Operating (loss) income 

 
(23,887) 

  
593,552 

 
Nonoperating (loss) income 

Investment (loss) income, net 

 
 

(723,225) 

  
 

1,303,546 
Loss on debt refinancing (33)  (14,468) 
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps 61,703  27,403 
Other nonoperating (loss) income, net (20,266)  12,220 

Total nonoperating (loss) income, net (681,821)  1,328,701 

 
Revenue (less than) in excess of expenses 

 
(705,708) 

  
1,922,253 

Less income attributable to noncontrolling interests (45,124)  (73,130) 
 
Revenue (less than) in excess of expenses - attributable to controlling interest 

 
$ (750,832) 

  
$ 1,849,123 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Continued) 
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ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

(in thousands) 

 
 Year Ended  Year Ended 
 December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Net assets without donor restrictions, controlling interest 

Revenue (less than) in excess of expenses - attributable to controlling interest 
 
$ (750,832) 

  
$ 1,849,123 

Pension-related changes other than net periodic pension costs (133,071)  48,236 
Net assets released from restrictions for purchase of property and equipment 4,159  9,709 
Other, net 5,462  (7,925) 

(Decrease) increase in net assets without donor restrictions, controlling interest (874,282)  1,899,143 

 
Net assets without donor restrictions, noncontrolling interests 

Revenues in excess of expenses 45,124  73,130 
Distributions to noncontrolling interests (40,773)  (60,335) 

Increase in net assets without donor restrictions, noncontrolling interests 4,351  12,795 

 
Net assets with donor restrictions 

Contributions 11,702  18,693 
Investment (loss) income, net (8,261)  21,106 
Net assets released from restrictions for operations (12,760)  (11,102) 
Net assets released from restrictions for purchase of property and equipment (3,864)  (9,709) 
Other, net (318)  9 

(Decrease) increase in net assets with donor restrictions (13,501)  18,997 

 
 

(Decrease) increase in net assets (883,432)  1,930,935 
Net assets at beginning of period 14,330,979  12,400,044 
Net assets at end of period   $ 13,447,547    $ 14,330,979 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

(in thousands) 
 

 

Year Ended 
December 31, 2022 

Year Ended 
December 31, 2021 

 
 
 

activities: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 

Cash flows from operating activities  
(Decrease) Increase in net assets $ (883,432)  $ 1,930,935 

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by operating      

Depreciation, amortization and accretion 590,030 555,983 
Amortization of operating lease right-of-use assets 64,119 79,398 
Loss on debt refinancing 33 14,468 
Loss (gain) on sale of property and equipment 836 (13,117) 
Change in fair value of swap agreements (61,703) (27,403) 
Pension-related changes other than net periodic pension cost 133,071 (48,236) 
Net assets released from restrictions for operations (12,760) (11,102) 
Distribution to noncontrolling interests 46,809 60,335 
Distributions from unconsolidated entities 35,746 11,442 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities      

Trading securities, net 1,423,034  (1,330,868) 
Patient accounts receivable 20,300  (245,966) 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (707,054)  (56,718) 
Third-party payors receivables and payables, net 1,745  30,163 
Other assets and liabilities, net (83,489)  (342,705) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 567,285  606,609 

 
Cash flows from investing activities 

     

Capital expenditures (498,759)  (570,166) 
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 3,814  2,019 
(Purchases) sales of investments designated as non-trading, net (303)  4 
Investments in unconsolidated entities, net (18,569)  (38,021) 
Acquisition of Senior Helpers, net of cash acquired —  (183,672) 
Acquisition of MobileHelp, net of cash acquired (286,133)  — 
Other (7,896)  (2,879) 

Net cash used in investing activities (807,846)  (792,715) 

 
Cash flows from financing activities 

   

Proceeds from issuance of debt —  182,157 
Repayments of long-term debt (46,898)  (231,668) 
Distribution to noncontrolling interests (46,809)  (60,335) 
Proceeds from restricted contributions and income on investments 3,441  39,799 

Net cash used in financing activities (90,266)  (70,047) 

 
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 

 
(330,827) 

  
(256,153) 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 703,725  959,878 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period   $ 372,898    $ 703,725 

 
Supplemental disclosures of noncash information 

   

Operating lease right-of-use assets in exchange for new operating lease liabilities $ 105,805  $ 46,016 
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ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 
(dollars in thousands) 

 

1. ORGANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

Description of Business 

Advocate Aurora Health, Inc., a Delaware nonprofit corporation (the “Parent Corporation”), owns and 
operates primarily not-for-profit healthcare facilities in Illinois and Wisconsin. The Parent Corporation  
is the sole corporate member of Advocate Health Care Network, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation 
(“Advocate”) and Aurora Health Care, Inc., a Wisconsin nonstock not-for-profit corporation (“Aurora”). 
The Parent Corporation, Advocate, Aurora and their controlled subsidiaries are collectively referred to 
herein as the “System.” The System was formed in furtherance of the parties’ common and unifying 
charitable health care mission to promote and improve the quality and expand the scope and 
accessibility of affordable health care and health care-related services for the communities they serve. 

 
Effective December 2022, the System and Atrium Health, Inc., a North Carolina not-for-profit 
corporation, ("Atrium") entered into a joint operating agreement pursuant to which they created 
Advocate Health, Inc. ("Advocate Health"), a Delaware nonprofit corporation, to manage and oversee 
an integrated health care delivery and academic system that will focus on meeting patients’ needs by 
redefining how, when and where care is delivered. The System and Atrium are the two corporate 
members of Advocate Health. The System maintains its separate legal existence and no sale, transfer  
or other conveyance of assets or assumption of debt and liabilities occurred in connection with the 
formation of Advocate Health. 

 
The System provides a continuum of care through its 25 acute care hospitals, an integrated children’s 
hospital, a psychiatric hospital, primary and specialty physician services, outpatient centers, physician 
office buildings, pharmacies, rehabilitation and home health and hospice care in northern Illinois and 
eastern Wisconsin. 

 
Principles of Consolidation 

 
Included in the System’s consolidated financial statements are all of its wholly owned or controlled 
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 

 
2. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS 

 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the behavior of businesses and people globally was altered in a 
manner that had a negative impact on global and local economies including significant investment 
market volatility, various temporary business closures resulting in increased unemployment and other 
effects which have and could continue to result in supply disruptions, lower collections on patient 
accounts receivable and/or decisions to defer medical treatments at the System’s facilities. 

 
The continuing and total impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the System is difficult to predict and 
could adversely impact the business, investment portfolio, financial condition or results of operations 
and, accordingly, may have a material adverse impact on the financial condition of the System. The 
System continues to monitor liquidity and cash flow and has taken, and continues to take, steps to 
protect its fiscal health, including a focus on maintaining liquidity to meet its obligations. In addition, 
the System applied for certain COVID-19 related resources, including supplies, financial support, 
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payroll tax deferrals and relief and other assistance made available through local, state and federal 
governments. 

 
The System received $1,113 and $34,354 for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, 
respectively in grant payments from the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services from the 
Provider Relief Fund established under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (“CARES 
Act”), which has been recognized as revenue and included in other operating revenue within the 
accompanying consolidated statement of operations and changes in net assets. Payments from the 
Provider Relief Fund are intended to cover unreimbursed healthcare related expenses and lost revenue 
from patient care attributed to COVID-19 and are not required to be repaid provided the recipient 
attests to and complies with the terms and conditions of the grant funds. Management of the System 
believes the System is in compliance with the terms and conditions of the Provider Relief Fund 
distributions and will continue to monitor compliance. The CARES Act also entitled eligible employers 
to an employee retention tax credit designed to encourage employers to keep employees on their 
payroll. The refundable tax credit is limited to 50% of up to $10 in qualified wages paid to each 
employee by an eligible employer whose business had been financially impacted by COVID-19. The 
System recognized $37,060 for the year ended December 31, 2020 for the employee retention tax 
credit, this amount is included as a receivable that is included in other current assets in the 
accompanying consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021. The 
recognition of the COVID-19 support falls under the grant accounting guidance of accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States. This guidance requires all significant terms and conditions to 
have been met for recognition to occur. Management of the System will continue to monitor 
compliance with the terms and conditions of the CARES Act grant funds and the impact of the 
pandemic on the System’s revenues and expenses. 

 
In addition, the System received $773,000 for the year ended December 31, 2020 from the Centers for 
Medicare and Medicaid Services (“CMS”) as an advance payment for Medicare services. The funds 
were provided through the expansion of the Medicare Accelerated and Advance Payment Program to 
ensure providers and suppliers had the resources needed to combat the COVID-19 pandemic. The 
advances are being recouped by withholding future Medicare fee-for-service payments for claims until 
the full accelerated payment has been recouped, unless the System elects to repay the advances prior 
to full recoupment. Subsequent to the twenty-nine month recoupment period any unpaid remaining 
balance is subject to an interest charge of 4 percent per annum. For the years ended December 31, 
2022 and 2021, CMS payments of approximately $505,000 and $257,000 were recouped, respectively. 
Medicare accelerated and advance payments of approximately $11,000 and $516,000 are included in 
accounts payable and other accrued liabilities within the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at 
December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively. The CARES Act also permitted employers to 
defer the employer portion of social security taxes through December 31, 2020. Employers were 
required to remit one-half of the amount deferred by December 31, 2021 and the remaining half by 
December 31, 2022. During 2020 the System deferred approximately $215,000 of these taxes and 
approximately $107,500 were remitted during 2021 and the remaining amount was remitted during 
2022 to fulfill this payment obligation. At December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, $0 and 
approximately $107,500, respectively is included in accrued salaries and employee benefits within the 
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. 

 
The System was awarded approximately $17,700 in Federal American Rescue Plan Act funds by the 
Illinois Department of Healthcare and Family Services. These funds were meant to cover premium pay 
and payroll and benefit expenses for employees who spent time mitigating or responding to COVID-19 
from March 2021 through June 2022. The System recognized $12,800 and $4,900 for the years ended 
December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively as revenue that is included in other operating revenue 
within the accompanying consolidated statement of operations and changes in net assets. 
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The System was awarded approximately $36,000 in Federal Emergency Management Agency funds to 
reimburse the System for personal protective equipment used during the COVID-19 pandemic. For the 
year ended December 31, 2022, the entirety of these funds were recognized as revenue and included 
in other operating revenue within the accompanying consolidated statement of operations and 
changes in net assets. 

 
On April 1, 2021, the System purchased the stock of SH Corporate Company, Inc. and SHF Acquisition 
Company, Inc. (collectively “Senior Helpers”) for $183,672, net of cash acquired, to further the 
System's strategy. 

 
On April 1, 2022, the System purchased MobileHelp Group Holdings, LLC (“MobileHelp”) for $286,133, 
net of cash acquired, to further the System's strategy. 

 
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States ("GAAP") requires management to make estimates, 
assumptions and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and amounts 
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements at the date of the consolidated financial 
statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting 
period. Although estimates are considered to be fairly stated at the time made, actual results could 
differ materially from those estimates. 

 
Cash Equivalents 

 
The System considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when 
purchased, other than those included in the investment portfolio, to be cash equivalents. 

 
Investments 

 
The System has designated substantially all of its investments as trading. Investments in debt and 
equity securities with readily determinable fair values are measured at fair value using quoted market 
prices or otherwise observable inputs. Investments in private equity limited partnerships and derivative 
products (hedge funds) are reported at fair value using net asset value as a practical expedient. 
Commingled funds are carried at fair value based on other observable inputs. Investment income or 
loss (including realized gains and losses, interest, dividends and unrealized gains and losses) is included 
in the nonoperating section of the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in 
net assets, unless the income or loss is restricted by donor or law or is related to assets designated for 
self-insurance programs. Investment income on self-insurance trust funds is reported in other revenue 
in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets. Investment 
income or loss that is restricted by donor or law is reported as a change in net assets with donor 
restrictions. 

 
Assets Limited as to Use 

 
Assets limited as to use consist of investments set aside by the System for future capital improvements 
and certain medical education and other health care programs. The System retains control of these 
investments and may, at its discretion, subsequently use them for other purposes. Additionally, assets 
limited as to use include investments held by trustees or in trust under debt agreements, self-insurance 
trusts, assets held in reinsurance trust accounts and donor-restricted funds. 
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Patient Service Revenue and Accounts Receivable 
 

Patient service revenue is reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to which the System 
expects to be entitled in exchange for providing patient care. These amounts are due from patients, 
third-party payors (including managed care payors and government programs and excludes revenues 
for services provided to patients under capitated arrangements) and others and include variable 
consideration for retroactive revenue adjustments due to settlement of audits, reviews and 
investigations. Generally, patients and third-party payors are billed within days after the services are 
performed or after discharge. Revenue is recognized as performance obligations are satisfied. 
Provisions for third-party payor settlements and adjustments are estimated in the period the related 
services are provided and adjusted in future periods as additional information becomes available and 
final settlements are determined. 

 
As the System's performance obligations relate to contracts with a duration of less than one year, the 
System has applied the optional exemption provided in the guidance and, therefore, is not required to 
disclose the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to performance obligations that are 
unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied at the end of the reporting period. The unsatisfied or partially 
unsatisfied performance obligations are primarily related to inpatient acute care services at the end of 
the reporting period. The performance obligations for these contracts are generally completed when 
the patients are discharged, which typically occurs within days or weeks of the end of the reporting 
period. 

 
The System does not adjust the promised amount of consideration from patients and third-party payors 
for the effects of a significant financing component, due to the expectation that the period between 
the time the service is provided to a patient and the time that the patient or a third-party payor pays 
for that service will be one year or less. 

 
The System has entered into payment arrangements with patients that allow for payments over a term 
in excess of one year. The System has evaluated historical collections in excess of one year and current 
market interest rates to determine whether a significant financing component exists that would require 
an adjustment to the promised amount of consideration from patients and third-party payors. The 
System has determined that the impact of implicit financing arrangements for payment agreements in 
excess of one year is insignificant to the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and 
changes in net assets. 

 
The System does not incur significant incremental costs in obtaining contracts with patients. Any costs 
incurred are expensed in the period of occurrence, as the amortization period of any asset that the 
System would have recognized is one year or less in duration. 

 
Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to 
interpretation. As a result, there is a possibility that recorded estimates will change by a material 
amount. 

 
Inventories 

 
Inventories, consisting primarily of medical supplies, pharmaceuticals and durable medical equipment, 
are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. 

 
Reinsurance Receivables 

 
Reinsurance receivables are recognized in a manner consistent with the liabilities relating to the 
underlying reinsured contracts. 
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Goodwill and Intangible Assets, Net 
 

Goodwill of $267,385 and $151,655 and intangible assets of $209,179 and $119,523 are included in 
goodwill and intangible assets, net in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as of December 
31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The System has elected to amortize goodwill prospectively using the 
straight-line method over a 10-year period. Intangible assets with expected useful lives are amortized 
over that period. Amortization is included in depreciation and amortization in the accompanying 
consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets. Amortization expense was $50,837 
and $25,129 for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 

 
Asset Impairment 

 
The System considers whether indicators of impairment are present and, if indicators are present, 
performs the necessary tests to determine if the carrying value of an asset is recoverable. Impairment 
write-downs are recognized in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in 
net assets as a component of operating expense at the time the impairment is identified. There were 
no material impairment charges recorded for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021. 

 
Property and Equipment, Net 

 
Property and equipment are reported at cost or, if donated, at fair value at the date of the gift. Costs of 
computer software developed or obtained for internal use, including external and internal direct costs 
of materials and labor directly associated with internal-use software development projects, are 
capitalized during the application development stage and included in property and equipment. Internal 
labor and interest expense incurred during the period of construction of significant capital projects are 
capitalized as a component of the costs of the asset. 

 
Property and equipment capitalized under direct financing leases are recorded at the present value of 
future lease payments, adding initial direct costs and prepaid lease payments, reduced by any lease 
incentives. Property and equipment capitalized under direct financing leases are amortized using the 
straight-line method over the related lease term. Amortization of property and equipment under 
financing leases is included in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in 
net assets in depreciation and amortization expense. 

 
Property and equipment assets are depreciated on the straight-line method over a period ranging from 
3 years to 80 years. 

 
Operating Lease Right-of-use Assets 

 
The System records an operating lease right-of-use asset (an asset that represents the System's right to 
use the leased asset for the lease term) for leases that do not meet the criteria as a sales-type lease or 
a direct financing lease. 

 
The System records operating lease right-of-use assets at the present value of future lease payments, 
adding initial direct costs and prepaid lease payments, reduced by any lease incentives. Operating lease 
right-of-use assets are amortized using the straight-line method over the related lease term. 
Amortization of operating lease right-of-use assets is included in supplies, purchased services and other 
expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets. 
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Investments in Unconsolidated Entities 
 

Investments in unconsolidated entities are accounted for using the equity method or as an equity 
security without a readily determinable fair value. The System applies the equity method of accounting 
for investments in unconsolidated entities when its ownership or membership interest is 50% or less 
and the System has the ability to exercise significant influence over the operating and financial policies 
of the investee. The income (loss) on these unconsolidated entities is included in other revenue in the 
accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets. All other 
unconsolidated entities are accounted for as an equity security without a readily determinable fair 
value. These unconsolidated entities are initially recorded at cost, tested for impairment at least 
annually and adjusted as market transactions occur that would indicate a fair value adjustment is 
needed. The income (loss) on these unconsolidated entities is included in nonoperating (loss) income in 
the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets. 

 
Derivative Financial Instruments 

 
The System enters into transactions to manage its interest rate, credit and market risks. Derivative 
financial instruments, including exchange-traded and over-the-counter derivative contracts and 
interest rate swaps, are recorded as either assets or liabilities at fair value. Subsequent changes in a 
derivative's fair value are recognized in nonoperating (loss) income, net. 

 
Bond Issuance Costs, Discounts and Premiums 

 
Bond issuance costs, discounts and premiums are amortized over the term of the bonds using the 
effective interest method and are included in long-term debt, less current portion in the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheets. 

 
General and Professional Liability Risks 

 
The provision for self-insured general and professional liability claims includes estimates of the ultimate 
costs for both reported claims and claims incurred but not reported. The System measures the cost of 
its unfunded obligations under such programs based upon actuarial calculations and records a liability 
on a discounted basis. 

 
Net Assets With Donor Restrictions 

 
Net assets with donor restrictions are those assets whose use by the System has been limited by donors 
to a specific time period or purpose or consist of gifts with corpus values that have been restricted by 
donors to be maintained in perpetuity. Net assets with donor restrictions are used in accordance with 
the donor's wishes primarily to purchase property and equipment, to fund medical education or to 
fund health programs. 

 
Assets released from restrictions to fund purchases of property and equipment are reported as 
increases to net assets without donor restrictions in the accompanying consolidated statements of 
operations and changes in net assets. Those assets released from restriction for operating purposes are 
reported in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets as 
other revenue. When restricted, earnings are recorded as net assets with donor restrictions until 
amounts are expended in accordance with the donor's specifications. 
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Nonrecurring Expenses 
 

The System has incurred salaries, purchased services and other expenses in connection with the 
implementation of an enterprise resource planning system in 2022 and 2021, which was placed into 
service on April 1, 2022. Also included in nonrecurring expenses are costs related to the joint operating 
agreement with Atrium as described in Note 1. ORGANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION. Due to 
the nature of these expenses, the costs were reported as nonrecurring in the accompanying 
consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets. 

 
Other Nonoperating (Loss) Income, Net 

 
Revenues and expenses related to the delivery of health care services are reported in operations. 
Income and losses that arise from transactions that are peripheral or incidental to the System's main 
purpose are included in other nonoperating (loss) income, net. Other nonoperating (loss) income, net 
primarily consists of fund-raising expenses, contributions to charitable organizations, income taxes and 
the net non-service components of the periodic benefit expense of the System's pension plans. 

 
Revenue (Less Than) in Excess of Expenses and Changes in Net Assets 

 
The accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets includes the 
revenue (less than) in excess of expenses as the performance indicator. Changes in net assets without 
donor restrictions, which are excluded from revenue (less than) in excess of expenses, primarily include 
contributions of long-lived assets (including assets acquired using contributions, which by donor 
restriction were to be used for the purposes of acquiring such assets), pension-related changes other 
than net periodic pension costs and distributions to noncontrolling interests. 

 
Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted 

 
In March 2020, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update 
("ASU") 2020-04, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848): Facilitation of the Effects of Reference Rate 
Reform on Financial Reporting. This guidance provides optional expedients and exceptions for applying 
current GAAP to contracts, hedging relationships and other transactions affected by the transition from 
the use of London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) to an alternative reference rate. In response to 
concerns about structural risks of interbank offered rates, and, particularly, the risk of cessation of 
LIBOR, regulators in several jurisdictions around the world have undertaken reference rate reform 
initiatives to identify alternative reference rates that are more observable or transaction based and less 
susceptible to manipulation. This guidance provides companies the option to ease the potential 
accounting burden associated with transitioning away from reference rates that are expected to be 
discontinued. In January 2021, the FASB issued ASU 2021-01, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848): Scope, 
which adds implementation guidance to ASU 2020-04 to clarify certain optional expedients in Topic 
848. In December 2022, the FASB issued ASU 2022-06, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848): Deferral of 
the Sunset Date of Topic 848, which defers the sunset date of Topic 848 to December 31, 2024. 
Management has evaluated the impact of this guidance and does not expect it to have a material 
impact on the System's consolidated financial statements. 

 
4. COMMUNITY BENEFIT 

 
The System provides health care services without charge to patients who meet the criteria of its charity 
care policies. Charity care services are not reported as patient service revenue, because payment is not 
anticipated while the related costs to provide the health care are included in operating expenses. 
Qualifying patients can receive up to 100% discounts from charges and extended payment plans. The 
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System’s cost of providing charity care was $102,000 and $126,600 for the years ended December 31, 
2022 and 2021, respectively, as determined using total cost to charge ratios. 

 
In addition to the provision of charity care, the System provides significant financial support to its 
communities to sustain and improve health care services. 

 
These activities include: 

• The unreimbursed cost of providing care to patients covered by the Medicare and Medicaid 
programs. 
• The cost of providing services that are not self-sustaining, for which patient service revenues 
are less than the costs required to provide the services. Such services benefit uninsured and low- 
income patients, as well as the broader community, but are not expected to be financially self- 
supporting. 
• Other community benefits include the unreimbursed costs of community benefits programs 
and services for the general community, not solely for those demonstrating financial need, including 
the unreimbursed cost of medical education, health education, immunizations for children, support 
groups, health screenings and fairs. 

 
5. REVENUE AND RECEIVABLES 

Patient service revenue 

Patient service revenue is reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to which the System 
expects to be entitled in exchange for providing patient care. These amounts are due from patients, 
third-party payors (including managed care payors and government programs and excludes revenues 
for services provided to patients under capitated arrangements) and others and include variable 
consideration for retroactive revenue adjustments due to settlement of audits, reviews and 
investigations. Generally, patients and third-party payors are billed shortly after discharge. Revenue is 
recognized as performance obligations are satisfied. 

 
Performance obligations are identified based on the nature of the services provided. Revenue 
associated with performance obligations satisfied over time is recognized based on actual charges 
incurred in relation to total expected (or actual) charges. Performance obligations satisfied over time 
relate to patients receiving inpatient acute care services. The System measures the performance 
obligation from admission into the hospital to the point when there are no further services required for 
the patient, which is generally the time of discharge. For outpatient services, the performance 
obligation is satisfied as the patient simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided as the 
services are performed. In the case of these outpatient services, recognition of the obligation over time 
yields the same result as recognizing the obligation at a point in time. Management believes this 
method provides a faithful depiction of the transfer of services over the term of performance 
obligations based on the inputs needed to satisfy the obligations. 

 
The System uses a portfolio approach to account for categories of patient contracts as a collective 
group rather than recognizing revenue on an individual contract basis. The portfolios consist of major 
payor classes for inpatient revenue and major payor classes and types of services provided for 
outpatient revenue. Based on the historical collection trends and other analyses, the System believes 
revenue recognized by utilizing the portfolio approach approximates the revenue that would have been 
recognized if an individual contract approach were used. 

 
The System determines the transaction price, which involves significant estimates and judgment, based 
on standard charges for goods and services provided, reduced by explicit and implicit price concessions, 

#24-008



including contractual adjustments provided to third-party payors, discounts provided to uninsured and 
underinsured patients in accordance with policy and/or implicit price concessions based on the 
historical collection experience of patient accounts. The System determines the transaction price 
associated with services provided to patients who have third-party payor coverage based on 
reimbursement terms per contractual agreements, discount policies and historical experience. For 
uninsured patients who do not qualify for charity care, the System determines the transaction price 
associated with services based on charges reduced by implicit price concessions. Implicit price 
concessions included in the estimate of the transaction price are based on historical collection 
experience for applicable patient portfolios. Patients who meet the System's criteria for charity care are 
provided care without charge; such amounts are not reported as revenue. Subsequent changes to the 
estimate of the transaction price are generally recorded as adjustments to patient service revenue in 
the period of the change. Settlements with third-party payors for retroactive adjustments due to 
audits, reviews or investigations are considered variable consideration and are included in the 
determination of the estimated transaction price for providing patient care using the most likely 
outcome method. These settlements are estimated based on the terms of the payment agreements 
with the payor, correspondence from the payor and historical settlement activity, including an 
assessment to ensure it is probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue 
recognized will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the retroactive adjustment is 
subsequently resolved. Estimated settlements are adjusted in future periods as new information 
becomes available or as years are settled or are no longer subject to such audits, reviews and 
investigations. 

 
For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, changes in the System’s estimates of implicit price 
concessions, discounts and contractual adjustments or other reductions to expected payments for 
performance obligations related to prior years were not significant. 

 
In the normal course of business, the System does receive payments in advance for certain services 
provided and would consider these amounts to represent contract liabilities. The amounts received in 
the normal course of business at December 31, 2022 and 2021 were not material. In 2020 the CMS 
accelerated and advance payments received in relation to the COVID-19 pandemic for Medicare 
services are deemed contract liabilities at December 31, 2022 and 2021. See Note 2. SIGNIFICANT 
EVENTS. 

 
Currently, the State of Illinois utilizes supplemental reimbursement programs to increase 
reimbursement to providers to offset a portion of the cost of providing care to Medicaid and indigent 
patients. These programs are designed with input from the CMS and are funded with a combination of 
state and federal resources, including assessments levied on the providers. Under these supplemental 
programs, the System recognizes revenue and related expenses in the period in which amounts are 
estimable and collection is reasonably assured. Reimbursement and the assessment under these 
programs are reflected in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net 
assets are as follows: 

 
 

Classification 
Year Ended 

December 31, 2022 
Year Ended 

December 31, 2021 
 

Reimbursement Patient service revenue $ 331,438   $ 321,123 
Assessment Supplies, purchased services and other  173,141 181,784 
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The State of Wisconsin assesses a fee or tax on gross patient service revenue. The revenues from this 
assessment are used to increase payments made to hospitals for services provided to Medicaid and 
other medically indigent patients. The System’s patient service revenue reflects this increase in 
payment for services to Medicaid and other medically indigent patients and hospital tax assessment 
expense reflects the fees assessed by the State. Reimbursement and the assessment under these 
programs are reflected in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net 
assets are as follows: 

 
 

Classification 
Year Ended 

December 31, 2022 
Year Ended 

December 31, 2021 
 

Reimbursement Patient service revenue $ 123,358   $ 136,679 
Assessment Supplies, purchased services and other   99,010  99,140 

 

Management has determined that the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash 
flows are affected by the payor's geographical location, the line of business that renders services to 
patients and the timing of when revenue is recognized and billed. 

 
The composition of patient service revenue by payor is as follows: 

 
Year Ended December 31, 

2022 

 
Year Ended December 31, 

2021 
 

Managed care $ 6,506,440 53 %  $ 6,534,404 55 % 
Medicare 3,813,381 32 %  3,371,753 29 % 
Medicaid - Illinois 909,095 8 %  825,834 7 % 
Medicaid - Wisconsin 534,105 4 %  539,922 5 % 
Self-pay and other 302,750 3 %  430,668 4 % 

  $ 12,065,771 100 %   $ 11,702,581 100 % 

 

Deductibles, copayments and coinsurance under third-party payment programs which are the patient's 
responsibility are included within the primary payor category in the table above. 

 
Capitation Revenue 

 
The System has agreements with various managed care organizations under which the System provides 
or arranges for medical care to members of the organizations in return for a monthly payment per 
member. Revenue is earned each month as a result of the System agreeing to provide or arrange for 
their medical care. 

 
Other Revenue 

 
Other revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the System expects 
to be entitled in exchange for providing goods and services. The amounts recognized reflect 
consideration due from customers, third-party payors and others. Primary categories of other revenue 
include grant revenue related to the COVID-19 pandemic as described in Note 2. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS, 
retail pharmacy revenue, clinical integration revenue, managed care risk/quality shared savings 
revenue and other miscellaneous revenue. 
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Revenue disaggregation by state and business line are as follows:  
 

Year Ended 
December 31, 2022 

 
 

Year Ended 
December 31, 2021 

 

Illinois 
Wisconsin 

$ 6,614,232 
6,648,866 

 $ 6,388,560 
6,510,130 

Total patient service revenue and capitation 13,263,098  12,898,690 
Other revenue 1,281,148  1,163,442 
Total revenue   $ 14,544,246    $ 14,062,132 

 
Hospital 

 
$ 8,910,925 

  
$ 8,640,613 

Clinic 2,773,500  2,711,468 
Home Care 267,091  259,692 
Other 114,255  90,808 
Total patient service revenue 12,065,771  11,702,581 
Capitated revenue 1,197,327  1,196,109 
Other revenue 1,281,148  1,163,442 
Total revenue   $ 14,544,246    $ 14,062,132 

 
Patient accounts receivable 

   

 

The System's patient accounts receivable is reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to 
which it expects to be entitled, in exchange for providing patient care. Patient accounts receivable are 
reported at net realizable value based on certain assumptions. For third-party payors, including 
Medicare, Medicaid and Managed Care, the net realizable value is based on the estimated contractual 
reimbursement percentage, which is based on current contract prices or historical paid claims data by 
payor. For self-pay, the net realizable value is determined using estimates of historical collection 
experience including an analysis by aging category. These estimates are adjusted for expected 
recoveries and any anticipated changes in trends, including significant changes in payor mix and 
economic conditions or trends in federal and state governmental health care coverage. 

 
The composition of patient accounts receivable is summarized as follows: 

 
 December 31, 2022    December 31, 2021  

Managed care $ 913,665 51 %  $ 935,709 52 % 
Medicare  390,456 22 %   356,959 20 % 
Medicaid - Illinois  105,857 6 %   177,188 10 % 
Medicaid - Wisconsin  48,172 3 %   50,111 3 % 
Self-pay and other  338,349 18 %   296,738 15 % 

  $ 1,796,499 100 %   $ 1,816,705 100 % 
  

 
The self-pay patient accounts receivable above includes amounts due from patients for co-insurance, 
deductibles, installment payment plans and amounts due from patients without insurance. 

 
6. INVESTMENTS 

 
The System invests in a diversified portfolio of investments, including alternative investments, such as 
real asset funds, hedge funds and private equity limited partnerships, whose fair value was $5,990,443 
and $5,856,960 at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Collectively, these funds have liquidity 
terms ranging from daily to annual with notice periods typically ranging from 1 to 90 days. Certain of 
these investments have redemption restrictions that may restrict redemption for up to 11 years. 
However, the potential for the System to sell its interest in these funds in a secondary market prior to 
the end of the fund term does exist for prices at or other than the carrying value. 
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At December 31, 2022, the System had additional commitments to fund alternative investments, 
including recallable distributions of $2,040,918 over the next seven years. 

 
In the normal course of operations and within established investment policy guidelines, the System 
may enter into various exchange-traded and over-the-counter derivative contracts for trading 
purposes, including futures, options and forward contracts. These instruments are used primarily to 
maintain the System’s strategic asset allocation and hedge security price movements. These 
instruments require the System to deposit cash or securities collateral with the broker or custodian. 
Collateral provided was $7,529 and $16,589 at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The gross 
notional value of the derivatives outstanding was $331,094 and $282,289 at December 31, 2022 and 
2021, respectively. 

 
By using derivative financial instruments, the System exposes itself to credit and market risk. Credit risk 
is the failure of the counterparty to perform under the terms of the derivative contracts. When the fair 
value of a derivative contract is positive, the counterparty owes the System, which creates credit risk 
for the System. When the fair value of a derivative contract is negative, the System owes the 
counterparty and, therefore, it does not possess credit risk. The System minimizes the credit risk in 
derivative instruments by entering into transactions that may require the counterparty to post 
collateral for the benefit of the System based on the credit rating of the counterparty and the fair value 
of the derivative contract. Market risk is the adverse effect on the value of a financial instrument that 
results from a change in the underlying reference security. The market risk associated with market 
changes is managed by establishing and monitoring parameters that limit the types and degree of 
market risk that may be undertaken. 

 
Receivables and payables for investment trades not settled are presented within other current assets 
and accounts payable and other accrued liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. 
Unsettled sales resulted in receivables due from brokers of $13,769 and $25,384 at December 31, 2022 
and 2021, respectively. Unsettled purchases resulted in payables due to brokers of $69,023 and 
$135,997 at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 

 
Investment returns for assets limited as to use and cash and cash equivalents are composed of the 
following: 

 

 Year Ended  Year Ended 
December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Interest income and dividends $ 61,893  $ 99,332 
Income from alternative investments 327,168  926,066 
Net realized gains 63,760  273,325 
Net unrealized (losses) gains (1,134,151)  79,580 
Total   $ (681,330)    $ 1,378,303 

 
Investment returns are included in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and 
changes in net assets as follows: 

 

 Year Ended  Year Ended 
December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Other revenue $ 50,156  $ 53,651 
Investment (loss) income, net (723,225)  1,303,546 
Net assets with donor restrictions (8,261)  21,106 
Total   $ (681,330)    $ 1,378,303 
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The cash and cash equivalents and assets limited as to use presented within the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheets are comprised of the following: 

 
 December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Internally designated for capital and other $ 10,301,972  $ 11,572,323 
Held for self-insurance 564,195  649,513 
Donor restricted 98,293  155,009 

Investments under securities lending program 16,732  17,760 

Total noncurrent assets limited as to use 10,981,192  12,394,605 

Cash and cash equivalents 372,898  703,725 

Current assets limited as to use 153,557  139,742 

Total cash and cash equivalents and assets limited as to use   $ 11,507,647    $ 13,238,072 

 
As part of the management of the investment portfolio, the System has entered into an arrangement 
whereby securities owned by the System are loaned primarily to brokers and investment banks. The 
loans are arranged through a bank. Borrowers are required to post collateral for securities borrowed 
equal to no less than 102% of the value of the security on a daily basis, at a minimum. The bank is 
responsible for reviewing the creditworthiness of the borrowers. The System has also entered into an 
arrangement whereby the bank is responsible for the risk of borrower bankruptcy and default. At 
December 31, 2022 and 2021, the System loaned $16,732 and $17,760, respectively, in securities and 
accepted collateral for these loans in the amount $17,402 and $18,550, respectively, which represents 
cash and governmental securities, and are included in current liabilities and current assets, respectively, 
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. 

 
7. FAIR VALUE 

 
The System accounts for certain assets and liabilities at fair value and categorizes assets and liabilities 
measured at fair value in the accompanying consolidated financial statements based upon whether the 
inputs used to determine their fair values are observable or unobservable. Observable inputs are inputs 
that are based on market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity. 
Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the reporting entity’s own assumptions about pricing the 
asset or liability, based on the best information available under the circumstances. 

 
The fair value of all assets and liabilities recognized or disclosed at fair value are classified based on the 
lowest level of significant inputs. Assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value are disclosed and 
classified in one of the three categories. Category inputs are defined as follows: 

 
Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities on the reporting 
date. 

 
Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted market prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset 
or liability, either directly or indirectly. If the asset or  liability has a specified (contractual) term,  a  
Level 2 input must be observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability. 

 
Level 3 — Inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability for which there is little or no market 
data. 

 
The following section describes the valuation methodologies used by the System to measure financial 
assets and liabilities at fair value. In general, where applicable, the System uses quoted prices in active 
markets for identical assets and liabilities to determine fair value. This pricing methodology applies to 
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Level 1 investments, such as domestic and international equities, exchange-traded funds and agency 
securities. 

 
If quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities are not available to determine the 
fair value, then quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities or inputs other than quoted prices that 
are observable either directly or indirectly are used. These investments are included in Level 2 and 
consist primarily of corporate notes and bonds, foreign government bonds, mortgage-backed 
securities, fixed-income securities, including fixed-income government obligations, commercial paper 
and certain agency, United States and international equities, which are not traded on an active 
exchange. The fair value for the obligations under swap agreements included in Level 2 is estimated 
using industry-standard valuation models. These models project future cash flows and discount the 
future amounts to a present value using market-based observable inputs, including interest rate curves. 
The fair values of the obligation under swap agreements include adjustments related to the System’s 
credit risk. 

 
Investments owned by the System are exposed to various kinds and levels of risk. Equity securities and 
equity funds expose the System to market risk, performance risk and liquidity risk for both domestic 
and international investments. Market risk is the risk associated with major movements of the equity 
markets. Performance risk is the risk associated with a company’s operating performance. Fixed- 
income securities and fixed-income mutual funds expose the System to interest rate risk, credit risk and 
liquidity risk. As interest rates change, the value of many fixed-income securities is affected, including 
those with fixed interest rates. Credit risk is the risk that the obligor of the security will not fulfill its 
obligations. Liquidity risk is affected by the willingness of market participants to buy and sell particular 
securities. Liquidity risk tends to be higher for equities related to small capitalization companies and 
certain alternative investments. Due to the volatility in the capital markets, there is a reasonable 
possibility of subsequent changes in fair value, resulting in additional gains and losses in the near term. 

 
The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and payable, other current assets 
and accrued liabilities are reasonable estimates of their fair values, due to the short-term nature of 
these financial instruments. 
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The fair values of financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis are as 
follows: 

 
 
 

December 31, 2022 

Quoted Prices 
in Active 

Markets for 
Identical Assets 

(Level 1) 

Other 
Significant 
Observable 

Inputs 
(Level 2) 

 
Significant 

Unobservable 
Inputs 

(Level 3) 
 

Assets 

Investments 

 

Cash and short-term investments $ 789,689 $ 540,092 $ 249,597 $ — 

Corporate bonds and other debt securities 720,424 — 720,424 — 

United States government bonds 586,517 — 586,517 — 

Bond and other debt security funds 465,762 96,219 369,543 — 

Non-government fixed-income obligations 32,307 — 32,307 — 

Equity securities 761,237 746,574 14,663 — 

Equity funds 2,143,486 121,424 2,022,062 — 
5,499,422   $ 1,504,309   $ 3,995,113   $ — 

Investments at net asset value 

Alternative investments 6,008,225 
 

Total investments  $ 11,507,647 

Collateral proceeds received under securities lending 
program   $ 17,402    $ 17,402 

Liabilities 
   

Obligations under swap agreements   $ (29,514)    $ (29,514) 

Obligations to return capital under securities lending 
   

program   $ (17,402)   $ (17,402) 
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December 31, 2021 

Quoted Prices 
in Active 

Markets for 
Identical Assets 

(Level 1) 

Other 
Significant 
Observable 

Inputs 
(Level 2) 

 
Significant 

Unobservable 
Inputs 

(Level 3) 
 

Assets 

Investments 

 

Cash and short-term investments $ 1,251,915 $ 895,856 $ 356,059 $ — 

Corporate bonds and other debt securities 816,147 — 816,147 — 

United States government bonds 667,877 — 667,877 — 

Bond and other debt security funds 559,769 99,237 460,532 — 

Non-government fixed-income obligations 34,374 — 34,374 — 

Equity securities 1,202,388 1,174,214 28,174 — 

Equity funds 2,819,140 147,118 2,672,022 — 
7,351,610   $ 2,316,425   $ 5,035,185 — 

Investments at net asset value 

Alternative investments 5,886,462 
 

Total investments  $ 13,238,072 

Collateral proceeds received under securities lending 
program   $ 18,550    $ 18,550 

Liabilities 

Obligations under swap agreements 

 

  $ (91,217) 

  

  $ (91,217) 

Obligations to return capital under securities lending 
program  $ (18,550)  $ (18,550) 

 
 

8. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET 
 

The components of property and equipment, net are summarized as follows: 
 

 December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Land and improvements $ 479,733  $ 470,257 
Buildings and fixed equipment 8,570,318  7,819,014 
Movable equipment and computer software 2,726,704  2,554,215 
Construction-in-progress 279,791  629,941 

 12,056,546  11,473,427 
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (6,085,004)  (5,530,416) 
Property and equipment, net   $ 5,971,542    $ 5,943,011 

 
Property and equipment, net include assets recorded as finance leases and under other financing 
arrangements. See additional disclosure in Note 9. LEASES. 

 
Depreciation expense was $549,086 and $536,567 for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, 
respectively. 

 
9. LEASES 

 
The System leases office and clinical space, land and equipment. Leases with an initial term of 12 
months or less are not recorded on the consolidated balance sheets. The System combines lease and 
non-lease components, except for medical equipment leases. 
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The depreciable lives of assets are limited by the expected lease terms. Most leases include options to 
renew. The majority of leases do not provide an implicit rate; therefore, the System has elected to use 
its incremental borrowing rate, which is the interest rate the System would borrow on a collateralized 
basis over a similar term, as the discount rate. The System used its incremental borrowing rate on 
January 1, 2019 for operating leases that commenced prior to that date. 

 
Operating and finance leases are classified as follows within the accompanying consolidated balance 
sheets: 

 
Leases Classification December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Assets     

Operating Operating lease right-of-use assets $ 305,311  $ 283,398 
Finance Property and equipment, net 226,039  226,766 

Total lease assets    $ 531,350    $ 510,164 

Liabilities 
    

Current     
Operating Operating lease liabilities, current portion $ 73,026  $ 68,247 
Finance Long-term debt and commercial paper, current portion 17,942  16,669 

Noncurrent     
Operating Operating lease liabilities, less current portion 276,116  248,062 
Finance Long-term debt, less current portion 247,979  248,069 

Total lease liabilities    $ 615,063    $ 581,047 

 
Finance lease assets are recorded net of accumulated amortization of $90,244 and $69,861 as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, 
respectively. 

 

Lease costs are classified as follows within the accompanying consolidated statements of operations 
and changes in net assets: 

 
 

Lease cost Classification December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Operating lease cost Supplies, purchased services and other $ 76,869  $ 82,822 
Short term lease cost Supplies, purchased services and other 17,187  13,956 
Variable lease cost Supplies, purchased services and other 37,133  36,358 

Finance lease cost 
Amortization of lease assets 

 
Depreciation and amortization 

 
18,795 

  
11,998 

Interest on lease liabilities Interest 18,898  11,482 
Sublease income Other revenue (2,140)  (2,503) 
Net lease cost    $ 166,742    $ 154,113 
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Lease terms, discount rates and other supplemental information are as follows: 
 

 December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 
Weighted average remaining lease term (in years)   

Operating 6.0 5.2 
Finance 9.6 10.4 

Weighted average discount rate 
Operating 

 
2.39 % 

 
2.05 % 

Finance 8.17 % 8.52 % 
 
 

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities  

Operating cash flows from operating leases $ 81,534 $ 86,743 
Operating cash flows from finance leases 18,898 11,482 
Financing cash flows from finance leases 17,370 9,246 

 
Future maturities of lease liabilities at December 31, 2022 are as follows: 

 

 Operating Leases  Finance Leases  Total  

2023 $ 80,121 $ 34,990 $  115,111 

2024  68,669  38,435   107,104 

2025  61,602  37,817   99,419 

2026  54,196  37,858   92,054 

2027  36,978  37,133   74,111 

Thereafter  75,628  204,879   280,507 

Future minimum lease payments  377,194  391,112   768,306 

Less remaining imputed interest  28,052  125,191   153,243 
Total   $ 349,142   $ 265,921   $ 615,063 

 
10. INTEREST IN MASONIC FAMILY HEALTH FOUNDATION 

 
The System has an interest in the net assets of the Masonic Family Health Foundation ("MFHF"), an 
independent organization, under the terms of an asset purchase agreement (the "Agreement"). 
Substantially all of MFHF’s net assets are designated to support the operations and/or capital needs of 
one of the System’s medical facilities. Additionally, 90% of MFHF’s investment yield, net of expenses, 
on substantially all of MFHF’s investments is designated for the support of one of the System’s medical 
facilities. MFHF must pay the System, annually, 90% of the investment yield or an agreed-upon 
percentage of the beginning of the year net assets. 

 
The interest in the net assets of MFHF amounted to $94,302 and $122,793 at December 31, 2022 and 
2021, respectively, and is presented within investments in unconsolidated entities in the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheets. The System’s interest in the investment (loss) income is reflected in the 
investment (loss) income, net line in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and 
changes in net assets and amounted to $(23,905) and $17,853 for the years ended December 31, 2022 
and 2021, respectively. Cash distributions of $4,077 and $3,584 were received by the System from 
MFHF under terms of the Agreement during the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, 
respectively. In addition, MFHF made $0 and $694 in contributions to the System for program support 
during the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 
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The summarized financial position and results of operations for MFHF accounted for under the equity 
method as of and for the periods ended is outlined below: 

 
 December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Total assets $ 99,802  $ 127,838 

Total liabilities 4,786  4,440 

Net assets 95,016  123,398 

Total revenue $ (22,495) 
 

$ 19,867 
Revenue (less than) in excess of expenses (28,382)  14,014 

 
11. LONG-TERM DEBT 

 
Long-term debt, net of unamortized original issue discount or premium and unamortized deferred 
bond issuance costs, consisted of the following: 

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 
Revenue bonds and revenue refunding bonds  

Series 2003A (weighted average rate of 1.38% during 2022 and 2021), principal payable in 
varying annual installments through November 2022; interest based on prevailing market 
conditions at time of remarketing $ —  $ 2,637 
Series 2003C (weighted average rate of 1.60% during 2022 and 2021), principal payable in      
varying annual installments through November 2022; interest based on prevailing market      

conditions at time of remarketing  —   2,640 
Series 2008A (weighted average rate of 4.35% during 2022 and 2021), principal payable in      
varying annual installments through November 2030; interest based on prevailing market      

conditions at time of remarketing  111,901   114,310 
Series 2008C (weighted average rate of 1.22% and 0.05% during 2022 and 2021,      
respectively), principal payable in varying annual installments through November 2038;      

interest based on prevailing market conditions at time of remarketing 271,703 271,672 

Series 2011A, 4.00%, principal payable in annual installments through April 2022 — 221 
Series 2011B (weighted average rate of 1.49% and 0.34% during 2022 and 2021,   
respectively), principal payable in varying annual installments through April 2051, subject   
to a put provision that provides for a cumulative seven-month notice and remarketing 
period; interest tied to a market index plus a spread 69,029 69,006 

Series 2011C (weighted average rate of 2.05% and 0.67% during 2022 and 2021, 
respectively), principal payable in varying annual installments through April 2049, subject 
to a put provision on September 3 ,2024; interest tied to a market index plus a spread 49,601 49,570 
Series 2011D (weighted average rate of 2.05% and 0.67% during 2022 and 2021, 
respectively), principal payable in varying annual installments through April 2049, subject 
to a put provision on September 3, 2024; interest tied to a market index plus a spread 49,601 49,570 
Series 2013A, 5.00%, principal payable in varying annual installments through June 2024 13,213 15,014 
Series 2014, 4.00% to 5.00%, principal payable in varying annual installments through   
August 2038 88,293 97,886 
Series 2015, 4.13%, principal payable in varying annual installments through May 2045 31,306 31,342 
Series 2015B, 4.00% to 5.00%, principal payable in varying annual installments through 
May 2044 13,997 15,980 
Series 2018A, 4.00% to 5.00%, principal payable in varying annual installments through 
August 2044 104,023 104,603 

Series 2018B (weighted average rate of 5.00% during 2022 and 2021), principal payable in 
varying annual installments through August 2054; interest based on prevailing market 
conditions at time of remarketing 192,279 197,045 
Series 2018C (weighted average rate of 2.37% and 1.31% during 2022 and 2021, 
respectively), principal payable in varying annual installments through August 2054, 
interest tied to a market index plus a spread or prevailing market conditions at 
remarketing 195,087 196,879 

  

1,190,033 1,218,375 
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December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 
  

Taxable bonds 
 

Taxable Bond Series 2018, 3.83% to 4.27%, principal payable in varying annual  

installments through August 2048 802,466 803,497 
Taxable Bond Series 2019, 3.39%, principal payable in October 2049 442,107 442,067 
Taxable Bond Series 2020A, 2.21% to 3.01%, principal payable in varying annual   

installments through June 2050 696,196  696,009 
 1,940,769  1,941,573 

 

Finance lease obligations and financing arrangements 270,423 270,876 
Commercial paper, weighted average interest rate of 1.74% and 0.14% during 2022 and 
2021, respectively 50,000 50,000 
Taxable Term Loan, (weighted average rate of 2.68% during 2022 and 2021), principal 
payable in varying annual installments through September 2024 70,437  80,219 

 3,521,662  3,561,043 

Less amounts classified as current 
Long-term debt, current portion 

 

(51,204) 

  

(46,185) 

Commercial paper (50,000)  (50,000) 

Long-term debt and commercial paper, current portion (101,204)  (96,185) 
Long-term debt subject to short-term financing arrangements (165,035)  (166,350) 

 (266,239)  (262,535) 

   $ 3,255,423    $ 3,298,508 

 
Maturities of long-term debt, capital leases, and sinking fund requirements, assuming remarketing of 
the variable rate demand revenue refunding bonds, for the five years ending December 31, 2027, are as 
follows: 2023 - $51,204; 2024 - $123,605; 2025 - $47,416; 2026 - $42,072; and 2027 - $43,502. 

 
The System's outstanding bonds are secured by obligations issued under the Second Amended and 
Restated Master Trust Indenture dated as of August 1, 2018, as the same may be amended from time 
to time, between Advocate Aurora Health, Inc., the other affiliates identified therein as the Members of 
the Obligated Group and U.S. Bank National Association, as master trustee ("the System Master 
Indenture"). Under the terms of the bond indentures and other arrangements, various amounts are to 
be on deposit with trustees, and certain specified payments are required for bond redemption and 
interest payments. The System Master Indenture and other debt agreements, including bank 
agreements, also place restrictions on the System and require the System to maintain certain financial 
ratios. 

 
The System's unsecured variable rate revenue bonds, Series 2011B of $69,660, Series 2018B-2 of 
$46,310 and Series 2018C-3 of $49,065, while subject to a long-term amortization period, may be put 
to the System at the option of the bondholders in connection with certain remarketing dates. To the 
extent that bondholders may, under the terms of the debt, put their bonds within 12 months after 
December 31, 2022, the principal amount of such bonds has been classified as a current obligation as 
long-term debt subject to short-term financing arrangements in the accompanying consolidated 
balance sheets. Management believes the likelihood of a material amount of bonds being put to the 
System is remote. However, to address this possibility, the System has taken steps to provide various 
sources of liquidity, including assessing alternate sources of financing, including lines of credit and/or 
net assets without donor restrictions as a source of self-liquidity. 

 
The System has standby bond purchase agreements with banks to provide liquidity support for the 
Series 2008C Bonds. In the event of a failed remarketing of a Series 2008C Bond upon its tender by an 
existing holder and subject to compliance with the terms of the standby bond purchase agreement, the 
standby bank would provide the funds for the purchase of such tendered bonds, and the System would 

#24-008



be obligated to repay the bank for the funds it provided for such bond purchase (if such bond is not 
subsequently remarketed), with the first installment of such repayment commencing on the date one 
year and one day after the bank purchases the bond. As of December 31, 2022, there were no bank- 
purchased bonds outstanding. To the extent that the standby bond purchase agreement expiration 
date is within 12 months after December 31, 2022, the principal amount of such bonds would be 
classified as a current obligation in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The standby bond 
purchase agreements expire as follows: $87,694 in September 2024, $58,225 in September 2025 and 
$129,456 in January 2026. 

 
In April 2021, the System issued additional Series 2018 Taxable Bonds in the principal amount of 
$85,000 and additional Series 2019 Taxable Bonds in the principal amount of $85,210 ("Additional 
Taxable Bonds"). The proceeds of the Additional Taxable Bonds were used to refinance a portion of the 
Series 2012, Series 2013A, Series 2014, Series 2015 Bonds and to pay certain financing costs. In 
connection with this transaction, the System recognized a loss on refinancing in the amount of $14,421. 

 
As of December 31, 2022, the System authorized the issuance of up to $1,000,000 in commercial paper 
aggregate principal outstanding. As of December 31, 2022, $50,000 of commercial paper notes was 
outstanding, with maturities ranging from 9 to 41 days. As of December 31, 2021, $50,000 of 
commercial paper was outstanding, with maturities ranging from 7 to 48 days. 

 
At December 31, 2022, the System had lines of credit with banks aggregating to $1,150,000 in available 
commitments. These lines of credit provide for various interest rates and payment terms and as of 
December 31, 2022 expire as follows: $350,000 in December 2023, $150,000 in August 2024, $325,000 
in December 2024 and $325,000 in December 2025. These lines of credit may be used to redeem 
bonded indebtedness, to pay costs related to such redemptions, for capital expenditures for general 
working capital purposes or to provide for certain letters of credit. At December 31, 2022, letters of 
credit totaling $65,550 have been issued under one of these lines. At December 31, 2022, no amounts 
were outstanding on these lines or letters of credit. 

 
The System maintains an interest rate swap program on certain of its variable rate debt, as described in 
Note 12. INTEREST RATE SWAP PROGRAM. 

 
The System’s interest paid amount includes all debt agreements including revenue bonds and revenue 
refunding bonds, taxable bonds, finance lease obligations, financing arrangements and interest rate 
swaps. The System's interest paid, net of capitalized interest, amounted to $126,333 and $113,633 for 
the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The System capitalized interest of $5,698 
and $13,027 for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 

 
12. INTEREST RATE SWAP PROGRAM 

 
The System has interest rate-related derivative instruments to manage the exposure of its variable rate 
debt instruments. By using derivative financial instruments to manage the risk of changes in interest 
rates, the System exposes itself to credit risk and market risk. Credit risk is the failure of the 
counterparty to perform under the terms of the derivative contracts. When the fair value of a 
derivative contract is positive, the counterparty owes the System, which creates credit risk for the 
System. When the fair value of a derivative contract is negative, the System owes the counterparty and, 
therefore, it does not possess credit risk. The System minimizes the credit risk in derivative instruments 
by entering into transactions that may require the counterparty to post collateral for the benefit of the 
System based on the credit rating of the counterparty and the fair value of the derivative contract. 
Market risk is the adverse effect on the value of a derivative financial instrument that results from a 
change in interest rates. The market risk associated with interest rate changes is managed by 
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establishing and monitoring parameters that limit the types and degree of market risk that may be 
undertaken. The System also mitigates risk through periodic reviews of its derivative positions in the 
context of its total blended cost of capital. 

 
At December 31, 2022, the System maintains an interest rate swap program on its Series 2008C 
variable rate demand revenue bonds. These bonds expose the System to variability in interest 
payments due to changes in interest rates. The System believes that it is prudent to limit the variability 
of its interest payments. To meet this objective and to take advantage of low interest rates, the System 
entered into various interest rate swap agreements to manage fluctuations in cash flows resulting from 
interest rate risk. These swaps convert the variable rate cash flow exposure on the variable rate 
demand revenue bonds to synthetically fixed cash flows. The notional amount under each interest rate 
swap agreement is reduced over the term of the respective agreement to correspond with reductions 
in the principal outstanding under various bond series. 

 
The System has two swaps that are being held as a swap portfolio as the related debt is no longer 
outstanding. 

 
The following is a summary of the outstanding positions under these interest rate swap agreements at 
December 31, 2022: 

 
Bond Series Notional Amount Maturity Date Rate Received Rate Paid 
2008C-1 $ 129,900 November 1, 2038 61.7% of LIBOR + 26bps 3.605 % 
2008C-2B 58,425 November 1, 2038 61.7% of LIBOR + 26bps 3.605 % 
2008C-3A 88,000 November 1, 2038 61.7% of LIBOR + 26bps 3.605 % 
Swap portfolio 50,000 November 1, 2038 61.7% of LIBOR + 26bps 3.605 % 
Swap portfolio 24,265 February 1, 2038 70.0% of LIBOR 3.314 % 

 
The swaps are not designated as hedging instruments and, therefore, hedge accounting has not been 
applied. As such, unrealized changes in fair value of the swaps are classified as changes in fair value of 
swaps in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets. The net 
cash settlement payments, representing the realized changes in fair value of the swaps, are included as 
interest expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets. 

 
The fair value of the interest rate swap agreements was a liability of $29,514 and $91,217 as of 
December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. No collateral was posted under these swap agreements as 
of December 31, 2022 and 2021. 

 
Amounts recorded in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net 
assets are as follows: 

 

 Year Ended  Year Ended 
December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Net cash payments on interest rate swap agreements (interest expense)   $ 8,432    $ 11,487 

Change in fair value of interest rate swaps   $ 61,703    $ 27,403 

 
The interest rate swap instruments contain provisions that require the System to maintain an 
investment grade credit rating on its bonds from certain major credit rating agencies. If the System's 
bonds were to fall below investment grade, it would be in violation of these provisions and the 
counterparties to the swap instruments could request immediate payment or demand immediate and 
ongoing full overnight collateralization on interest rate swap instruments in net liability positions. 
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13. RETIREMENT PLANS 
 

The System maintains various employee retirement benefit plans available to qualifying employees and 
retirees. 

 
The Advocate Health Care Network Pension Plan (“Advocate Plan”) was frozen effective December 31, 
2019 to new participants and participants ceased accruing additional pension benefits. The 
accompanying consolidated balance sheets contain an other noncurrent liability related to the 
Advocate Plan totaling $174,023 and $75,012 at December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, 
respectively. During the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, $0 and $30,000, respectively, in 
cash contributions were made to the Advocate Plan. 

 
The Advocate Aurora Health Pension Plan (“AAH Plan”) was created through a merger of the Condell 
Health Network Retirement Plan (frozen effective January 1, 2008) and the Aurora Health Care, Inc. 
Pension Plan (frozen effective December 31, 2012). The accompanying consolidated balance sheets 
contain an other noncurrent liability related to the AAH Plan of $105,335 and $57,617 at December 31, 
2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively. During the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, no 
contributions were made to the AAH Plan. 

 
A summary of changes in the plan assets, projected benefit obligation and the resulting funded status 
for the year ended December 31, 2022 is as follows: 

 
 Advocate  AAH  Total 

Change in plan assets: 

Plan assets at fair value at beginning of period 

 

$ 982,077 

  

$ 1,405,674 

  

$ 2,387,751 

Actual return on plan assets (55,218)  (378,408)  (433,626) 

Benefits paid (63,650)  (44,774)  (108,424) 

Plan assets at fair value at end of period   $ 863,209    $ 982,492    $ 1,845,701 

 
Change in projected benefit obligation: 

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of period 

 
 

$ 1,057,089 

  
 

$ 1,463,291 

  
 

$ 2,520,380 

Interest cost 39,130  43,849  82,979 

Actuarial loss (gain) 4,663  (374,539)  (369,876) 

Benefits paid (63,650)  (44,774)  (108,424) 

Projected benefit obligation at end of period   $ 1,037,232    $ 1,087,827    $ 2,125,059 

 
Plan assets less than projected benefit obligation 

 
  $ (174,023) 

  
  $ (105,335) 

  
  $ (279,358) 

 
Accumulated benefit obligation at end of period 

 
  $ 1,037,232 

  
  $ 1,087,827 

  
  $ 2,125,059 
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A summary of changes in the plan assets, projected benefit obligation and the resulting funded status 
for the year ended December 31, 2021 is as follows: 

 
 Advocate  AAH  Total 

Change in plan assets: 

Plan assets at fair value at beginning of period 

 

$ 952,588 

  

$ 1,449,588 

  

$ 2,402,176 

Actual return on plan assets 53,662  (2,694)  50,968 

Employer contributions 30,000  —  30,000 

Benefits paid (54,173)  (41,220)  (95,393) 

Plan assets at fair value at end of period   $ 982,077    $ 1,405,674    $ 2,387,751 

Change in projected benefit obligation: 

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of period 
 
$ 1,086,913 

  
$ 1,516,082 

  
$ 2,602,995 

Interest cost 28,119  41,650  69,769 

Actuarial gain (3,770)  (53,221)  (56,991) 

Benefits paid (54,173)  (41,220)  (95,393) 

Projected benefit obligation at end of period   $ 1,057,089    $ 1,463,291    $ 2,520,380 

 
Plan assets less than projected benefit obligation 

 
  $ (75,012) 

  
  $ (57,617) 

  
  $ (132,629) 

 
Accumulated benefit obligation at end of period 

 
  $ 1,057,089 

  
  $ 1,463,291 

  
  $ 2,520,380 

 
The AAH Plan actuarial gain of $374,539 for the year ending December 31, 2022 was primarily driven by 
an increase in discount rates and an increase in the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets. 
The AAH Plan actuarial gain of $53,221 for the year ending December 31, 2021 was primarily driven by 
an increase in discount rates which was slightly offset by an actuarial loss due to updated mortality 
improvement assumptions. 

 
The Advocate Plan paid lump sums totaling $60,526 and $51,104 in 2022 and 2021, respectively. The 
amount in 2022 and 2021 was greater than the sum of the Advocate Plan’s service cost and interest 
cost, resulting in a settlement charge in the amount of $17,789 and $12,102, respectively. 

 
Pension plan expense included in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and 
changes in net assets is as follows for the year ended December 31, 2022: 

 
 Advocate  AAH  Total 

Interest cost $ 39,130  $ 43,849  $ 82,979 

Expected return on plan assets (44,909)  (52,179)  (97,088) 

Amortization of:      

Actuarial loss 3,491  6,034  9,525 

Prior service cost —  3  3 

Settlement 17,789  —  17,789 

Net pension expense (income)   $ 15,501     $ (2,293)    $ 13,208  
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Pension plan expense included in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and 
changes in net assets is as follows for the year ended December 31, 2021: 

 
 Advocate  AAH   Total  

Interest cost 28,119   41,650   69,769 

Expected return on plan assets (42,421)   (43,487)   (85,908) 

Amortization of:        

Actuarial loss 4,477   10,410   14,887 

Prior service cost —   3   3 

Settlement 12,102   —   12,102 

Net pension expense   $ 2,277    $ 8,576    $ 10,853  
   

 
The components of net periodic benefit costs, other than the service cost component, are included in 
other nonoperating (loss) income, net in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and 
changes in net assets. 

 
The net change recognized in net assets without donor restrictions as a component of pension-related 
changes other than net periodic pension cost was as follows for the year ended December 31, 2022: 

 
 Advocate AAH   Total 

Net change recognized 
 

$ 83,510 $  50,011  $ 133,521 

 
The net change recognized in net assets without donor restrictions as a component of pension-related 
changes other than net periodic pension cost was as follows for the year ended December 31, 2021: 

 
 Advocate AAH   Total 

Net change recognized 
 

$ 31,590 $  17,454  $ 49,044 

 
Included in net assets without donor restrictions at December 31, 2022 are the following amounts that 
have not yet been recognized in net pension expense: 

 
 Advocate  AAH  Total 
Unrecognized prior credit $ —  $ 93  $ 93 

Unrecognized actuarial loss 327,637  390,465  718,102 
   $ 327,637    $ 390,558    $ 718,195 

 
Expected employee benefit payments to be paid from the pension plans are as follows: 

 

 Advocate  AAH  Total 

2023 $ 67,536  $ 54,663  $ 122,199 

2024 68,730  58,219  126,949 

2025 69,244  61,099  130,343 

2026 67,474  64,485  131,959 

2027 67,999  66,946  134,945 

2028-2032 352,072  363,684  715,756 

Total   $ 693,055    $ 669,096    $ 1,362,151 
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Expected contributions to the pension plans are as follows: 
Advocate AAH Total 

   

2023  $ 10,000      $ —      $ 10,000 
 

Employer contributions were paid from employer assets. No plan assets are expected to be returned to 
the employer. All benefits paid under the Advocate Plan and AAH Plan (collectively referred to as the 
"Plans") were paid from the Plans' assets. 

 
The System's asset allocation and investment strategies are designed to earn returns on plan assets 
consistent with a reasonable and prudent level of risk. Investments are diversified across classes, 
economic sectors and manager style to minimize the risk of loss. The System utilizes investment 
managers specializing in each asset category and, where appropriate, provides the investment manager 
with specific guidelines that include allowable and/or prohibited investment types. The System 
regularly monitors manager performance and compliance with investment guidelines. 

 
The System's target and actual pension asset allocations for the Plans are as follows: 

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 
Asset Category - Advocate Plan Target Actual Target Actual 
De-risking portfolio 70 % 70 % 70 % 70 % 
Domestic and international equity securities 21 20 21 21 
Alternative investments 6 7 6 6 
Cash and fixed-income securities 3 3 3 3 

  100 % 100 % 100 % 100 % 

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 
Asset Category - AAH Plan Target Actual Target Actual 
De-risking portfolio 85 % 82 % 85 % 83 % 
Domestic and international equity securities 12 15 12 14 
Real estate 1 1 1 1 
Cash and fixed-income securities 2 2 2 2 

  100 % 100 % 100 % 100 % 
 

The de-risking portfolio is comprised of cash and fixed-income instruments designed to hedge Plan 
liabilities. 

 
At December 31, 2022, the Advocate Plan had commitments to fund alternative investments, including 
recallable distributions of $15,026 over the next four years. 

 
In the normal course of operations and within established investment policy guidelines, the Plans may 
enter into various exchange-traded and over-the-counter derivative contracts for trading purposes, 
including futures, options and forward contracts. These instruments are used primarily to maintain the 
Plans' strategic asset allocation and hedge security price movements. These instruments require the 
Plans to deposit cash collateral with the broker or custodian. 

 
Derivative contract information at December 31, 2022 are as follows: 

 

 Advocate  AAH Total 

Cash and security collateral provided $ 15,659  
 

$ 6,819 $ 22,478 

Gross notional value $ (398,544)  $ 232,011 $ (166,533) 
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Derivative contract information at December 31, 2021 are as follows: 
 

 Advocate  AAH Total 
Cash and security collateral provided $ 15,978  

 

$ 6,065 $ 22,043 

Gross notional value $ (539,122)  $ 262,962 $ (276,160) 

 
By using derivative financial instruments, the System exposes itself to credit risk and market risk. Credit 
risk is the failure of the counterparty to perform under the terms of the derivative contracts. When the 
fair value of a derivative contract is positive, the counterparty owes the System, which creates credit risk 
for the System. When the fair value of a derivative contract is negative, the System owes the 
counterparty and, therefore, it does not possess credit risk. The System minimizes the credit risk in 
derivative instruments by entering into transactions that may require the counterparty to post collateral 
for the benefit of the System based on the credit rating of the counterparty and the fair value of the 
derivative contract. Market risk is the adverse effect on the value of a financial instrument that results 
from a change in the underlying reference security. The market risk associated with market changes is 
managed by establishing and monitoring parameters that limit the types and degree of market risk that 
may be undertaken. 

 
Receivables and payables for investment trades not settled are presented within Advocate Plan assets. 
Unsettled sales resulted in receivables due from brokers of $118 and $8,515 at December 31, 2022 and 
2021, respectively. Unsettled purchases resulted in payables of $647 and $17,265 at December 31, 2022 
and 2021, respectively. 

 
Receivables and payables for investment trades not settled are presented within AAH Plan assets. 
Unsettled sales resulted in receivables due from brokers of $9 and $7,808 at December 31, 2022 and 
2021, respectively. Unsettled purchases resulted in payables of $995 and $16,500 at December 31, 2022 
and 2021, respectively. 

 
Fair value methodologies for Level 1 and Level 2 are consistent with the inputs described in Note 7. FAIR 
VALUE. Real estate commingled funds for which an active market exists are included in Level 2. The 
System opted to use the net asset value per share, or its equivalent, as a practical expedient for the fair 
value of the Plans’ interest in hedge funds, private equity limited partnerships and real estate 
commingled funds. There is inherent uncertainty in such valuations and the estimated fair values may 
differ from the values that would have been used had a ready market for these investments existed. 
Private equity limited partnerships and real estate commingled funds typically have finite lives ranging 
from five to ten years, at the end of which all invested capital is returned. For hedge funds, the typical 
lockup period is one year, after which invested capital can be redeemed on a quarterly basis with at 
least 30 days’ but no more than 90 days’ notice. The Plans’ investment assets are exposed to the same 
kinds and levels of risk as described in Note 7. FAIR VALUE. 
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The following are the Plans’ financial instruments at December 31, 2022, measured at fair value on a 
recurring basis by the valuation hierarchy defined in Note 7. FAIR VALUE: 

 
Quoted Prices Other 

in Active Significant Significant 
Markets for Observable Unobservable 

December 31, Identical Assets Inputs Inputs 
Description 2022 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 

Cash and short-term investments $ 87,955 $ 627 $ 87,328 $ — 

Corporate bonds and other debt securities 748,185 — 748,185 — 

United States government obligations 540,677 — 540,677 — 

Bond and other debt security funds 44,071 — 44,071 — 

Equity securities 13,393 13,393 — — 

Equity funds 335,434 9,418 326,016 — 

Real estate funds 16,407 — 16,407 — 

1,786,122   $ 23,438   $ 1,762,684   $ — 

 
Investments at net asset value 

Alternative investments 
 

59,579 

Total investments   $ 1,845,701 
 

The following are the Plans’ financial instruments at December 31, 2021, measured at fair value on a 
recurring basis by the valuation hierarchy defined in Note 7. FAIR VALUE: 

Quoted Prices Other 
in Active Significant Significant 

Markets for Observable Unobservable 
December 31, Identical Assets Inputs Inputs 

Description 2021 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 

Cash and short-term investments $ 78,247 $ 43,778 $ 34,469 $ — 

Corporate bonds and other debt securities 984,539 — 984,539 — 

United States government obligations 740,439 — 740,439 — 

Bond and other debt security funds 53,923 — 53,923 — 

Equity securities 19,900 19,900 — — 

Equity funds 432,928 12,474 420,454 — 

Real estate funds 16,180 — 16,180 — 

2,326,156   $ 76,152   $ 2,250,004   $ — 

 
Investments at net asset value 

Alternative investments 
 

61,595 

Total investments   $ 2,387,751 

 
Assumptions used to determine benefit obligations are as follows:  

 December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Discount rate - Advocate Plan 5.19 %  

 

2.85 % 
Discount rate - AAH Plan 5.23 %  3.05 % 
Assumed rate of return on assets - Advocate Plan 6.00 %  4.50 % 
Assumed rate of return on assets - AAH Plan 4.50 %  3.80 % 
Interest crediting rate - Advocate Plan 4.10 %  1.80 % 
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Assumptions used to determine net pension expense are as follows:  
 December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Discount rate - Advocate Plan 2.85 %  2.49 % 
Discount rate - AAH Plan 3.05 %  2.79 % 
Assumed rate of return on assets - Advocate Plan 4.50 %  4.40 % 
Assumed rate of return on assets - AAH Plan 3.80 %  3.40 % 
Interest crediting rate - Advocate Plan 1.80 %  1.35 % 

 

The assumed rate of return on each of the Plan's assets is based on historical and projected rates of 
return for asset classes in which the portfolio is invested. 

 
The 2022 and 2021 mortality assumption for the Plans was the amounts-weighted aggregate rates from 
the Pri-2012 mortality study, with white-collar adjustments projected generationally from 2012 with 
Scale MP-2021. 

 
In addition to these Plans, the System sponsors a defined contribution plan for its employees. Expense 
related to the plan, is included in salaries, wages and benefits expense in the accompanying 
consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets, were $312,816 and $296,894 for the 
years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 

 

14. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS 
 

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes: 
 December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 
Purchases of property and equipment $ 19,422 $ 17,579 

Medical education and other health care programs 218,754 234,098 
   $ 238,176   $ 251,677 
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15. FUNCTIONAL OPERATING EXPENSES 
 

Operating expenses directly attributable to a specific functional area of the System are reported as 
expenses of those functional areas. Expenses other than interest expense are directly allocated to 
functional departments at the time they are incurred. Interest expense that relates to debt financing is 
allocated based on the use of the related funds. General and administrative expenses primarily include 
legal, finance, marketing, purchasing and human resources. Health care services require the benefit of 
and the expense of general and administrative services; therefore, these costs are further allocated to 
health care services. A majority of fundraising costs are reported as other nonoperating (loss) income, 
net in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets. 

Functional operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2022 are as follows: 
 

General and 
 Health care services  administrative  Consolidated 
Salaries, wages and benefits $ 7,810,612  $ 750,010  $ 8,560,622 
Supplies, purchased services and other 4,139,707  630,728  4,770,435 

Contracted medical services 518,834  —  518,834 

Depreciation and amortization 563,195  36,728  599,923 

Interest 118,319  —  118,319 

Total operating expenses 13,150,667  1,417,466  14,568,133 
Allocation of general and administrative 1,417,466  (1,417,466)  — 

Total operating expenses after allocation   $ 14,568,133    $ —     $ 14,568,133  

 
Functional operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2021 are as follows: 

 

General and 
 Health care services  administrative  Consolidated 
Salaries, wages and benefits $ 6,936,615  $ 727,322  $ 7,663,937 

Supplies, purchased services and other 3,937,999  632,548  4,570,547 

Contracted medical services 564,586  —  564,586 

Depreciation and amortization 495,608  67,801  563,409 

Interest 106,101  —  106,101 

Total operating expenses 12,040,909  1,427,671  13,468,580 

Allocation of general and administrative 1,427,671  (1,427,671)  — 

Total operating expenses after allocation   $ 13,468,580    $ —     $ 13,468,580  
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16. LIQUIDITY 
 

The System’s financial assets available within one year of the consolidated balance sheets date for 
general expenditures are as follows: 

 
 December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Current assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
 
$ 372,898 

  
$ 703,725 

Assets limited as to use 153,557  139,742 

Patient accounts receivable 1,796,499  1,816,705 

Third-party payors receivables 23,400  22,154 

Collateral proceeds under securities lending program 17,402  18,550 

Total current assets 2,363,756  2,700,876 

Assets limited as to use 

Internally designated for capital and other 

 

10,301,972 

  

11,572,323 
Held for self-insurance 564,195  649,513 

Donor restricted 98,293  155,009 

Investments under securities lending program 16,732  17,760 

Total assets limited as to use 10,981,192  12,394,605 
Total financial assets   $ 13,344,948    $ 15,095,481 

Less 

Amounts unavailable for general expenditures 
Alternative investments 

 
 

(3,000,238) 

  
 

(2,727,059) 
Total amounts unavailable for general expenditure (3,000,238)  (2,727,059) 

Amounts unavailable to management without approval 
Held for self-insurance 

 

(717,752) 

  

(789,255) 
Donor restricted (98,293)  (155,009) 

Investments under securities lending program (16,732)  (17,760) 

Total amounts unavailable to management without approval (832,777)  (962,024) 

Total financial assets available to management for general expenditure within one year   $ 9,511,933    $ 11,406,398 

 
17. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

 
Aurora West Allis Medical Center has the right to operate the hospital under the terms of a lease 
agreement with the City of West Allis ("the City"). In accordance with the lease agreement, the City has 
title to all assets and any subsequent additions (with the exception of certain equipment used by 
Aurora for laboratory services). Aurora West Allis Medical Center has an exclusive right to the use of 
the assets and the obligation to maintain and replace them. The historical cost to the System of the 
leased facilities is included within the System’s property and equipment, net. The agreement provides 
for annual payments of less than $100 in lieu of annual lease payments and includes payment 
escalations each subsequent year. The lease expires in 2063. 

 
The System is committed to constructing additions and renovations to its medical facilities that are 
expected to be completed in future years. The estimated cost of these commitments is $879,407, of 
which $553,775 has been incurred as of December 31, 2022. 

 
The System entered into agreements for information technology services provided by third parties. The 
maximum amount of future payments that the System could be required to make under these 
agreements  is  approximately  $102,000  over  the  next  eight  years  and  approximately  $3,000  and 
$22,000 is included in accounts payable and other accrued liabilities and other noncurrent liabilities, 
respectively in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2022.  The System has 
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also entered into various other agreements. The future commitments under these agreements are 
$27,500 over the next three years. 

 
18. GENERAL AND PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY RISKS 

 
The System is self-insured for substantially all general and professional liability risks. The self-insurance 
programs combine various levels of self-insured retention with excess commercial insurance coverage. 
In addition, various umbrella insurance policies have been purchased to provide coverage in excess of 
the self-insured limits. Revocable trust funds, administered by a trustee and captive insurance 
companies, have been established for the self-insurance programs. Actuarial consultants have been 
retained to determine the estimated cost of claims, as well as to determine the amount to fund into the 
irrevocable trust and captive insurance companies. 

 
The System's hospitals, clinics, surgery centers, physicians and certified registered nurse anesthetist 
providers that provide health care in Wisconsin are qualified health care providers that are fully 
covered for losses in excess of statutory limits through mandatory participation in the State of 
Wisconsin Injured Patients and Families Compensation Fund. 

 
The estimated cost of claims is actuarially determined based on past experience, as well as other 
considerations, including the nature of each claim or incident and relevant trend factors. Accrued 
insurance liabilities and contributions to the trust were determined using a discount rate of 3.00% as of 
December 31, 2022 and 2021. Total accrued insurance liabilities would have been $81,651 and $78,450 
greater at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, had these liabilities not been discounted. 

 
The System entities are defendants in certain litigation related to professional and general liability risks, 
and other matters. Although the outcome of the litigations cannot be determined with certainty, 
management believes, after consultation with legal counsel, that the ultimate resolution of the 
litigations will not have a material adverse effect on the System’s operations or financial condition. 

 
19. LEGAL, REGULATORY AND OTHER CONTINGENCIES 

 
Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are extremely complex and 
subject to interpretation. During the last few years, due to nationwide investigations by governmental 
agencies, various health care organizations have received requests for information and notices 
regarding alleged noncompliance with those laws and regulations, which, in some instances, have 
resulted in organizations entering into significant settlement agreements. Compliance with such laws 
and regulations may also be subject to future government review and interpretation, as well as 
significant regulatory action, including fines, penalties, exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid 
programs and revocation of federal or state tax-exempt status. Moreover, the System expects that the 
level of review and audit to which it and other health care providers are subject will increase. 

 
Various federal and state agencies have initiated investigations, which are in various stages of 
discovery, relating to reimbursement, billing practices and other matters of the System. There can be 
no assurance that regulatory authorities will not challenge the System’s compliance with these laws 
and regulations, and it is not possible to determine the impact, if any, such claims or penalties would 
have on the System. To foster compliance with applicable laws and regulations, the System maintains a 
compliance program designed to detect and correct potential violations of laws and regulations related 
to its programs. 
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20. INCOME TAXES AND TAX STATUS 
 

The subsidiaries of the System are primarily tax-exempt organizations under Internal Revenue Code 
Section 501(c)(3) and their related income is exempt from federal income tax. Accordingly, no income 
taxes are recorded for the majority of the income in the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements for these entities. Unrelated business income is generated by certain of these entities 
through the provision of services or other activities not directly related to the provision of patient care. 

 
At December 31, 2022, the System had $153,352 of federal and $113,825 of state net operating loss 
carryforwards with unutilized amounts of state net operating loss carryforwards expiring between 2022 
and 2039. At December 31, 2021, the System had $98,410 of federal and $113,825 of state net 
operating loss carryforwards with unutilized amounts of state net operating loss carryforwards expiring 
between 2021 and 2037. As a result of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017, net operating losses generated 
after 2017 do not expire for federal purposes. Of the $153,352 of federal net operating loss 
carryforwards at December 31, 2022, $138,431 was generated after 2017. 

 
The System calculated income taxes for its taxable subsidiaries. Taxable income differs from pretax  
book income primarily due to certain income and deductions for tax purposes being recorded in the 
consolidated financial statements in different periods. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are 
recorded for the tax effect of these differences using enacted tax rates for the years in which the 
differences are expected to reverse. 

 
In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than 
not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of 
deferred tax assets is dependent on the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which 
those temporary differences become deductible. 

 
The System had deferred tax assets of $71,943 and $51,248, including $41,562 and $30,326 related to 
net operating loss carryforwards, as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. These deferred tax 
assets were partially offset by valuation allowances of $40,580 and $14,534, respectively, which were 
recorded due to the uncertainty regarding the use of the deferred tax assets. 

 
The System had deferred tax liabilities of $30,748 and $23,655 as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, 
respectively, resulting in a net deferred tax asset of $615 and $13,059 as of December 31, 2022 and 
2021, respectively. 

 
Provisions (credits) for federal, state and deferred income taxes are included in other nonoperating 
(loss) income, net in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets 
as follows: 

 

 Year Ended  Year Ended 
December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Federal $ (15,041)  $ (1,019) 

State —  (303) 

Deferred 12,443  (8,668) 
   $ (2,598)    $ (9,990) 
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21 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 

The System evaluated events and transactions subsequent to December 31, 2022 through April 11, 
2023, the date of consolidated financial statement issuance. 

 
In January 2023, $46,310 of the Series 2018B-2 Bonds were remarketed for a new long-term rate 
period and will next be subject to mandatory purchase on June 24, 2026. In connection with the 
remarketing, $3,260 of the Series 2018B-2 Bonds were redeemed and a loss on refinancing was 
recorded in the amount of $19. 

 
In January 2023, $49,065 of the Series 2018C-3 Bonds were remarketed for a new long-term rate 
period and will next be subject to mandatory purchase on June 24, 2026. In connection with the 
remarketing, $3,455 of the Series 2018C-3 Bonds were redeemed and a loss on refinancing was 
recorded in the amount of $21. 

 

**** 
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Ernst & Young LLP 

155 North Wacker Drive 

Chicago, IL 60606-1787 

Tel: +1 312 879 2000 

Fax: +1 312 879 4000 

ey.com 

 
 
 
 

Report of Independent Auditors on Supplementary Information 
 

The Board of Directors 
Advocate Health, Inc. 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a 
whole. The accompanying details of consolidated balance sheets and details of consolidated 
statements of operations and changes in net assets are presented for purposes of additional analysis 
and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audits of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the 
financial statements as a whole. 

 
 

 
April 11, 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited 
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ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC. 
CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET 

December 31, 2022 

(in thousands) 
 

 
 

Assets 
Current assets 

 
Credit Group 

Noncredit 
Group Eliminations Consolidated 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 686,524 $ (313,626) $ — $ 372,898 
Assets limited as to use 142,005 11,552 — 153,557 
Patient accounts receivable 1,591,249 224,273 (19,023) 1,796,499 
Other current assets 768,824 165,780 — 934,604 
Third-party payors receivables 21,037 2,363 — 23,400 
Receivable from subsidiaries 418,484 300,078 (718,562) — 
Collateral proceeds under securities lending program 17,402 — — 17,402 

Total current assets 3,645,525 390,420 (737,585) 3,298,360 

Assets limited as to use 10,925,235 365,931 (309,974) 10,981,192 

Note receivable from subsidiaries 172,635 — (172,635) — 

Property and equipment, net 5,494,587 476,955 — 5,971,542 

Other assets 
Reinsurance receivable 

 

116,786 

 

— 

 

— 

 

116,786 
Goodwill and intangible assets, net 47,689 428,875 — 476,564 
Investment in subsidiaries 1,012,938 — (1,012,938) — 
Investments in unconsolidated entities 172,226 43,950 — 216,176 
Operating lease right-of-use assets 259,408 45,903 — 305,311 
Other noncurrent assets 491,921 20,418 — 512,339 

Total other assets 2,100,968 539,146 (1,012,938) 1,627,176 
 

Total assets  $    22,338,950   $ 1,772,452 $ (2,233,132) $ 21,878,270 
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ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC. 
CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET 

December 31, 2022 

(in thousands) 
 

 
 

Current liabilities 

 
Credit Group 

Noncredit 
Group Eliminations Consolidated 

 

Long-term debt and commercial paper, current portion $ 98,345 $ 25,014 $ (22,155) $ 101,204 
Long-term debt subject to short-term financing arrangements 165,035 — — 165,035 
Operating lease liabilities, current portion 61,210 11,816 — 73,026 
Accrued salaries and employee benefits 1,072,374 93,487 — 1,165,861 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 848,605 281,970 (19,023) 1,111,552 
Third-party payors payables 356,693 484 — 357,177 
Accrued insurance and claims costs, current portion 191,738 12,854 — 204,592 
Accounts payable to subsidiaries 288,749 407,658 (696,407) — 
Collateral under securities lending program 17,402 — — 17,402 

Total current liabilities 3,100,151 833,283 (737,585) 3,195,849 
 

Noncurrent liabilities 
Long-term debt, less current portion 3,252,131 175,927 (172,635) 3,255,423 
Operating lease liabilities, less current portion 235,957 40,159 — 276,116 
Accrued insurance and claims cost, less current portion 592,926 41,542 — 634,468 
Accrued losses subject to insurance recovery 116,786 — — 116,786 
Obligations under swap agreements 29,514 — — 29,514 
Due to subsidiaries 309,974 — (309,974) — 
Other noncurrent liabilities 870,746 51,821 — 922,567 

Total noncurrent liabilities 5,408,034 309,449 (482,609) 5,234,874 

 
Total liabilities 

 
8,508,185 

 
1,142,732 

 
(1,220,194) 

 
8,430,723 

 
Net assets 

Without donor restrictions 
Controlling interest 

 
13,666,706 

 
110,259 

 
(739,385) 

 
13,037,580 

Noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries — 445,344 (273,553) 171,791 
Total net assets without donor restrictions 13,666,706 555,603 (1,012,938) 13,209,371 

With donor restrictions 164,059 74,117 — 238,176 
Total net assets 13,830,765 629,720 (1,012,938) 13,447,547 

 
Total liabilities and net assets  $    22,338,950   $ 1,772,452 $ (2,233,132) $ 21,878,270 
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ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC. 
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS 

Year Ended December 31, 2022 

(in thousands) 
 

Noncredit 
 Credit Group Group Eliminations Consolidated 
Revenue 

Patient service revenue 
 

$ 10,812,322 
 
$ 1,597,719 

 
$ (344,270) $ 

 
12,065,771 

Capitation revenue 557,744 643,841 (4,258) 1,197,327 
Other revenue 700,071 936,489 (355,412) 1,281,148 

Total revenue 12,070,137 3,178,049 (703,940) 14,544,246 

 
Expenses 

    

Salaries, wages and benefits 7,497,794 1,088,848 (25,855) 8,560,787 
Supplies, purchased services and other 3,692,346 1,296,096 (253,294) 4,735,148 
Contracted medical services 179,908 689,605 (350,679) 518,834 
Depreciation and amortization 499,940 99,766 — 599,706 
Interest 112,642 15,903 (10,226) 118,319 

Total expenses 11,982,630 3,190,218 (640,054) 14,532,794 

 
Operating income (loss) before nonrecurring expenses 

 
87,507 

 
(12,169) 

 
(63,886) 

 
11,452 

Nonrecurring expenses 35,339 — — 35,339 

 
Operating income (loss) 

 
52,168 

 
(12,169) 

 
(63,886) 

 
(23,887) 

 
Nonoperating (loss) income 

Investment loss, net 

 
 

(698,863) 

 
 

(24,362) 

 
 

— 

 
 

(723,225) 
Loss on debt refinancing (33) — — (33) 
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps 61,703 — — 61,703 
Other nonoperating (loss) income, net (12,518) (7,752) 4 (20,266) 

Total nonoperating (loss) income, net (649,711) (32,114) 4 (681,821) 

 
Revenue less than expenses 

 
(597,543) 

 
(44,283) 

 
(63,882) 

 
(705,708) 

Less income attributable to noncontrolling interests — (109,006) 63,882 (45,124) 

Revenue less than expenses- attributable to controlling interests  $ (597,543) $ (153,289) $ —   $ (750,832) 
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Notes to Supplementary Information 
 
1. Credit Group 

 

The supplementary financial information for the Credit Group is in accordance with the Second Amended 
and Restated Master Trust Indenture dated as of August 1, 2018 between Advocate Aurora Health, Inc, the 
other affiliates identified therein as the Members of the Obligated Group, the Restricted Affiliates, and U.S. 
Bank National Association, as master trustee ("the System Master Indenture"). 

 
2. Credit Group Members 

 
The Credit Group is comprised of the Obligated Group in combination with the Restricted Affiliates. The 
Obligated Group includes Advocate Aurora Health, Inc.; Advocate Health Care Network; Advocate Health 
and Hospitals Corporation; Advocate North Side Health Network; Advocate Condell Medical Center; 
Advocate Sherman Hospital; Aurora Health Care, Inc.; Aurora Health Care Metro, Inc.; Aurora Health Care 
Southern Lakes, Inc.; Aurora Health Care Central, Inc. d/b/a Aurora Sheboygan Memorial Medical Center; 
Aurora Medical Center of Washington County, Inc.; Aurora Health Care North, Inc. d/b/a Aurora Medical 
Center Manitowoc County; Aurora Medical Center of Oshkosh, Inc.; Aurora Medical Group, Inc.; Aurora 
Medical Center Grafton LLC; and Aurora Medical Center Bay Area, Inc. The Restricted Affiliates include 
Advocate Charitable Foundation; Advocate Home Care Products, Inc.; EHS Home Health Care Services, Inc.; 
Evangelical Services Corporation, d/b/a Advocate Network Services, Inc.; High Technology, Inc.; Meridian 
Hospice; and West Allis Memorial Hospital Inc. d/b/a Aurora West Allis Medical Center. The Credit Group is 
with U.S. Bank National Association, as master trustee ("the System Master Indenture"). 
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CONSTRUCTION
INFLATION ALERT

For more than two years the U.S. construction industry has been buffeted by unprecedented increases in materials 
costs, supply-chain bottlenecks, and a tight labor market. To help project owners, government officials, and the public 
understand how these conditions are affecting contractors and their workers, the Associated General Contractors of 
America (AGC) has posted frequent updates of the Construction Inflation Alert. 

Several recent developments have raised the specter of a sharp slowdown or even a recession in the U.S. economy. 
Inflation is at a 40-year high, sapping consumers’ purchasing power despite elevated wage increases. Major stock 
indexes have declined sharply—a frequent but not foolproof harbinger of recession. A growing number of companies 
have announced layoffs, although the job market remains vibrant, as indicated by large monthly employment increases, 
near-record job openings, and a persistently low unemployment rate

However, a recession is far from certain. Demand for infrastructure, manufacturing, and power construction appears to 
be strong and likely to strengthen further, perhaps for several years to come. In any case, the cost of construction 
materials and labor does not generally move in sync with the overall economy. In short, owners should not assume that 
delaying projects will enable them to avoid volatility and disruptions in construction costs, delivery times, and labor 
supply, even if the economy slows significantly.

Meanwhile, Russia’s ongoing attack on Ukraine and Western sanctions against Russia have disrupted production and 
transport of dozens of commodities. China’s prolonged lockdown of Shanghai and other areas in an attempt to control 
the spread of covid has also affected production and shipping. New variants of covid, as well as a growing number of 
people with lingering or recurrent symptoms (“long-haul covid”), add to uncertainty about labor supply.

This version of the Alert is the seventh update since the first edition was posted in March 2021—an indication that the 
situation remains far from “normal.” This document will continue to be revised to keep it timely as conditions affecting 
demand for construction, labor supply, and materials costs and availability change. Each new version is posted here: 
https://www.agc.org/learn/construction-data/agc-construction-inflation-alert

Please send comments and feedback, along with “Dear Valued Customer” letters or other information about materials 
costs and supply-chain issues, to AGC of America’s chief economist, Ken Simonson, ken.simonson@agc.org.
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Recent changes in input costs
Previous editions of this guide have highlighted the extreme runup in materials costs that began in early 2020. More recently, 
prices have moved in divergent directions for different materials. But, on balance, they continue to climb at a much higher rate 
than the consumer price index.

The extent of these increases is documented by the Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS). BLS posts producer price indexes (PPIs) 
around the middle of each month for thousands of products and services (at www.bls.gov/ppi). Most PPIs 
are based on the prices that sellers say they charged for a specific item on the 11th day of the preceding 
month. Producers include manufacturers and fabricators, intermediaries such as steel service centers and
 distributors, and providers of services ranging from design to trucking.

Figure 1 shows the magnitude of the increases for seven widely used categories of construction inputs. 
From April 2020, the low point for prices of many goods during the early stage of the pandemic, to June 
2022, the PPI for steel mill products more than doubled (up 124% in 26 months). There were increases of 
more than 60% in the indexes for copper and brass mill shapes (up 68%) and lumber and plywood (up 
61%).  PPIs rose by more than half for plastic construction products (up 55%) and aluminum mill shapes 
(up 53%). The index for gypsum products increased 44% and the PPI for truck transportation climbed 
40%. Numerous other indexes rose by more than the 23% increase in the “bid price” index.

Figure 1

124%
The PPI for steel mill 
products rose 124% 
in 26 months
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Supply-chain issues
From the first days of the pandemic, availability and delivery times for materials have been never-ending headaches for 
construction firms. Problems began as early as February 2020, when factories in China and northern Italy were shut down, 
causing shortages of items as diverse as elevator parts, floor tiles, and kitchen appliances. Two years later, another round of 
covid-related restrictions in China disrupted production and shipping from that country.
Russia’s attack on Ukraine, Western countermeasures against Russia, and diversions or blockages of cargo ships are impeding or 
cutting off supplies of items as diverse as pig iron used in steelmaking, neon for lasers used in semiconductor manufacturing and 
other applications, and Ukrainian clay used in producing ceramic tile exported to the U.S. from Italy and Spain. Some of these 
impacts are far down the supply chain from the actual construction item. For instance, a producer of electrical switchgear 
reported in May that the time for delivering products from its plant had doubled from 20 weeks to 40, in part because of 
difficulty acquiring a fire-retardant chemical produced in Europe that goes into a plastic resin used to make the housing for its 
switchgear.

466,000
The number of job
openings at the end 
of May, a record for 
the month

Adding to these pandemic- and conflict-induced problems, a series of unusual mishaps interfered with 
output or delivery of numerous goods. The biggest impact for construction came from the severe freeze 
in Texas in February 2021 that damaged all of the petrochemical plants producing resins for a host of 
construction plastics. Damage to the electrical grid in Louisiana from Hurricane Ida last September 
further interfered with the production of some plastics inputs. Some cement plants have incurred 
unusually long outages, in part because of delays in sourcing replacement parts.

Contractors have also been affected by the much-publicized shortage of computer chips. Not only is the 
construction industry a major buyer of pickup trucks that are in short supply, but deliveries of 
construction equipment also have been held up by a lack of semiconductors. 

Contractors have reported being quoted exceptionally long lead times and/or allocations (less-than-full 
shipments, generally tied to previously ordered quantities) for inputs as varied as electrical 
transformers, traffic signal equipment, highway striping paint, wallboard, insulation, windows, and 
roofing fasteners. Strong demand, plant outages, and truck driver shortages have meant long delays in 
completing ready-mix concrete pours in several states in the Southeast and West.

So far, there is little sign that the supply chain will consistently improve before 2023—or even 2024, in 
the case of some computer chips. While the lead time for some items has shortened, deliveries for many 
materials remain delayed or unpredictable. In fact, the expiration of labor contracts for West Coast 
longshore workers and rail workers nationwide could result in new disruptions of shipments later this 
year. 

Labor supply and cost
Construction employment has bounced back well from the early months of the pandemic. However, construction firms are far 
short of the number of workers they have been seeking. They have partially closed the gap by getting more overtime from the 
workers they have, but this cannot continue indefinitely.

The construction industry lost 1.1 million employees from February to April 2020—a 15% decline in just two months. While both 
residential and nonresidential construction employment rebounded somewhat in May 2020, employment stalled for more than 
a year after that among nonresidential firms—nonresidential building and specialty trade contractors plus civil and heavy 
engineering construction firms. During that period, thousands of experienced workers moved into residential construction 
(homebuilding and remodeling), found jobs in other sectors, or left the workforce completely.
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By June 2022, seasonally adjusted construction employment totaled 7,670,000—modestly higher than the 7,624,000 employed 
in February 2020. But there was a large shift between residential and nonresidential subsectors. Compared to February 2020 
levels, residential construction firms had added nearly 180,000 workers, while employment in nonresidential construction was 
still down 134,000 employees or 2.9%, as shown in Figure 2.

Figure 2

There is strong evidence that the construction industry would have added many more workers if they had been available. Job 
openings in construction at the end of May totaled 466,000 (not seasonally adjusted), a jump of 130,000 or 39% from a year 
earlier and by far the largest May total in the 22-year history of the data, as shown in Figure 3. In fact, job openings exceeded the 
437,000 workers hired in May, implying that construction firms would have hired twice as many workers that month as they 
were able to, if there had been enough qualified applicants.

Figure 3
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In order to attract, retain, and bring back workers, construction firms are raising pay. Average hourly earnings in construction for 
“production and nonsupervisory employees”—mainly hourly craft workers—rose 6.0% from June 2021 to June 2022. That 
compared with increases of 4.0% in the previous 12 months and 2.8% in the 12 months ending in June 2000.
Despite the acceleration in wages, construction pay has not risen as fast as in other industries. Historically, as shown in Figure 4, 
contractors paid a “premium” to attract workers willing to work in the conditions, locations, and hours required for construction. 
Specifically, average hourly earnings for production workers in construction typically averaged 20% to 23% more than for all private 
sector employees, up until the onset of the pandemic. This premium shrank to less that 18% since the start of the pandemic as 
restaurants, warehouses, delivery services, and other industries drastically increased pay. Other sectors were also able to offer 
greater flexibility regarding hours and worksites, including work from home, that are not possible for construction.

Figure 4

These differences imply that construction wages will have to rise even more steeply to restore (and perhaps expand) the pay 
“premium.” In addition, it is likely that contractors will pay more overtime to make up for the workers they don’t have. They may 
also turn more to offsite production and onsite drones, robotics, 3-D printers, and other ways of reducing the number or skill 
level of the workers they employ.

Changes in bid prices
The extreme runup in so many input costs caused financial hardship for many contractors and subcontractors, especially for 
those whose purchases are concentrated in materials with extra-steep increases. 

BLS posts several PPIs for new nonresidential construction. Since every construction project is unique, it is not possible to collect 
prices for identical construction “products” in the same way as for most goods and services. Instead, the agency creates “bid 
price” PPIs (BLS refers to them as output price indexes) through a two-step process. Each quarter it receives data from 
construction cost-estimating firms regarding the cost of a package of installed components or “assemblies” of a particular 
nonresidential building. Every month BLS asks a fixed group of contractors the amount of overhead and profit they would 
charge to erect that building—the same building that contractor was asked about previously. BLS combines the answers from a 
set of contractors to create PPIs for new warehouse, school, office, industrial, and healthcare building construction, along with a 
weighted average of these building types for an overall index for new nonresidential building construction.
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BLS also creates PPIs for inputs to construction--weighted averages of the cost of materials and services purchased for every type of 
project.

As shown in Figure 5, the PPI for bid prices rose at the same rate as the PPI for inputs from September 2019 to September 2020, 
1.8% year-over-year. The bid-price PPI continued rising at a modest rate through mid-2021, while the year-over-year change in input 
prices accelerated to more than 24% by June 2021.

Since mid-2001, the bid-price PPI also has accelerated considerably, as contractors attempt to pass on their rising materials and labor 
costs. By June 2022, the bid-price index was climbing at a 19.8% year-over-year rate, compared to 16.8% for the PPI for inputs to new 
nonresidential construction. 

26 months
The year-over-year change in 
materials costs may exceed the 
change in bid prices for 2 years or 
more

Figure 5

The bid-price index only indicates the price contractors propose for new starts. On projects for which they had already submitted a 
bid or begun work, contractors were stuck with paying elevated materials prices that they could not pass on.

What’s next for bid prices?
 

 
There is no fixed relationship between input costs and bid prices. For every firm and time period, the relationship depends on specific 
market conditions and expectations.

However, it is possible to look at past relationships. Figure 6 shows the difference 
between the year-over-year change in the PPI for materials costs for goods inputs to 
construction and the bid-price index for new school construction. The areas in red 
indicate periods in which the year-over-year change in the PPI for exceeded the bid-
price PPI for schools. (Similar patterns exist for the bid-price indexes for new 
warehouse, office, industrial and healthcare buildings.)

Materials costs outran bid prices for as long as 26 months from late 2009 to early 
2012 and for 25 months from late 2016 to late 2018. The current gap hasn’t lasted as 
long but the peak was more than twice as high as in previous episodes, indicating the 
pain for contractors has been that much more intense. 
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What can contractors and 
owners do?
Contractors can provide project owners with timely and credible third-party information about changes in relevant material costs 
and supply-chain snarls that may impact the cost and completion time for a project that is underway or for which a bid has already 
been submitted. 

Owners can authorize appropriate adjustments to design, completion date, and payments to accommodate or work around these 
impediments. Nobody welcomes a higher bill, but the alternative of having a contractor go out of business because of impossible 
costs or timing is likely to be worse for many owners.

For projects that have not been awarded or started, owners should start with realistic expectations about current costs and the 
likelihood of increases. They should provide potential bidders with accurate and complete design information to enable bidders to 
prepare bids that minimize the likelihood of unpleasant surprises for either party.

Owners and bidders may want to consider price-adjustment clauses that would protect both parties from unanticipated swings in 
materials prices. Such contract terms can enable the contractor to include a smaller contingency in its bid, while providing the 
owner an opportunity to share in any savings from downward price movements (as has occurred recently with lumber, diesel fuel, 
and some metals prices). The ConsensusDocs set of contract documents (www.consensusdocs.org) is one source of industry-
standard model language for such terms. The ConsensusDocs website includes a price escalation resource center (https://
www.consensusdocs.org/price-escalation-clause/). 

The parties may also want to discuss the best timing for ordering materials and components. Buying items earlier than usual can 
provide protection against cost increases. But purchase before use entails paying sooner for the items; potentially paying for 
storage, security against theft and damage, and insurance; and the possibility of design changes that make early purchase unwise.

Figure 6
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Conclusion
The construction industry is in the midst of a period of exceptionally steep and fast-rising costs for a variety of materials, 
compounded by major supply-chain disruptions and difficulty finding enough workers—a combination that threatens the financial 
health of many contractors. No single solution will resolve the situation, but there are steps that government officials, owners, and 
contractors can take to lessen the pain.

Federal trade policy officials can act immediately to end tariffs and quotas on imported products and materials. With many U.S. mills 
and factories already at capacity, bringing in more imports at competitive prices will cool the overheated price spiral and enable 
many users of products that are in short supply to avoid layoffs and shutdowns.

The federal government can improve the labor supply by allowing employers to sponsor more foreign-born workers to fill positions 
for which there are not enough qualified applicants. In addition, the federal government should fund and approve more 
apprenticeship and training programs to enable students and career-switchers to acquire the skills needed for construction trades.

Officials at all levels of government should review all regulations, policies, and enforcement actions that may be unnecessarily driving 
up costs and slowing importation, domestic production, transport, and delivery of raw materials, components, and finished goods.

Owners need to recognize that fast-changing materials costs and availability require a quick decision regarding bids and requests for 
changes. For new and planned projects, owners should expect quite different pricing from previous estimates. They may want to 
consider building in more flexibility regarding design, timing, or cost-sharing.

Contractors need, more than ever, to closely monitor costs and delivery schedules for materials and to communicate information 
with owners, both before submitting bids and throughout the construction process.

Materials prices do eventually reverse course. Owners and contractors alike will benefit when that happens. Until then, cooperation 
and communication can help reduce the damage.

AGC resources
This document will be updated if market conditions warrant. Check for the latest edition at:
https://www.agc.org/learn/construction-data/agc-construction-inflation-alert for the latest edition

The AGC website, www.agc.org, has a variety of resources available to contractors, owners, and others wanting to know more about 
the construction industry.

AGC posts tables showing changes in PPIs and national, state, and metro construction employment each month at:
https://www.agc.org/learn/construction-data

AGC’s Data DIGest is a weekly one-page summary of economic news relevant to construction. Subscribe at:
https://store.agc.org/Store/Store/StoreLayouts/Item_Detail.aspx?iProductCode=4401 
or email chief economist Ken Simonson at ken.simonson@agc.org.

Construction documents are available for viewing and purchase from ConsensusDocs at www.consensusdocs.org, including the price 
escalation resource center, www.consensusdocs.org/price-escalation-clause/
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